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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

GROUP REVENUE UNDERLYING EBITDA REPORTED PBT UNDERLYING EPS

£2,706.0m £331.1m £239.5m 32.1p

i H

o Sports Retail ike-for-like stores gross contribution increased by 10 5% (FY13 106%)

o Accelerated European expanston including acquisitions in Austria and the Baltic region®”

« Growth (n online revenue of 26 8% — now representing 17 1% of all Sports Reta sales (FY13 15 0%)?
« Reported profit hefore tax up 15 6% to £239 5m (FY13 £207 2m)

o Underlying free cash generation of £277 Zm*®

« 34 new licence agreements signed with contracted values of $51m over the Iife of the agreements

« Second and final part of 2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme vested in August 2013

e Continued investment in mnventory and strategic acquisitions whilst maintaining a strong balance sheet
(1) M 27 Apnil 2014 Sports Retail traded fiom 19 countnies across Eurepe (2013 12) mcluding acquisitions and new store openings

12) Excludes wholesales sales and sales in EAG and SIG Including EAG and SIG sales anhine revenue regresents 15 1% of Sports Retail sales
(3) Underiying free cash generation 15 defined as operating cash flow hefere working caprtal made up af underlying EBITOA (belerc Share Scheme costs) plus reakiscd forergn exchange gainy and esses less carporation tax paid

FY14 SHARE PERFORMANGE

e hn & S fe ’3 '




STRATEGIC REPORT

“We have delivered another year of out-performance especially within our
Sports Retaif division This success 1s underpirned by our core strategy,
offering our customers a wide range of products which represent exceptional
guality and unbeatable value

“Through both indvidual hard work and operating as a team, against

a parbicularly tough comparative which included the UEFA European
Champtonships and the 2012 London Olympscs, we have sigmificantly
out-performed the third underlying EBITDA target of £260m set under the
2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme This means that the Group has now
successfully met the first three targets and the Board 1s very confident of
achieving the final target of £300m under the 2011 Employee Bonus
Share Scheme

“Overall trading since the year end has been tn line with management’s
expectations with some stronger weeks offset by England’s disappointing
World Cup matches Consistent with previous guidance, we continue to target
underlying EBITDA (before share scheme costs) of £360m for the current
pertod "

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

17 July 2014

SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIOHAL PLC
AtivA, REPGRT AND ACCGUNTS 2012

2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme vested to ¢.2.000
members of our staft

Shirebrook flagship store extension complate
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SPORTS DIRECT AT A GLANCE

The Group aperates through three strategic business segments
Sports Retall, Premium Lifestyle and Brands (oYL REpe
WS

Sports Retail

£2,074.4m

The Group s Sporis Retail stores {other than Field & Trek) supply a wide range of competitvely priced sports and leisure equipment, clothing footwear and accessories
under a mix of brands We stock third-party brands including adidas, Nike, Reebok and Puma Group-owned brands include Dunlap, $lazenger and Leasdate We alse
sell ligensed-in brands

We have continued to develop our specialised in-store areas with a substantial umtary rollout for our Dualop and Everlast brands Our SheRunsHeRuns areas alsc
benshited from a rollout of the Karrmor runming feotwear zone, featoning an integrated product information and selection panel

As at 27 April 2014 Sports Retail operated out of 418 stores in the Unsted Kingdom (excluding Northern Ireland) The majonty ot stores trede under the
SPORTSDIRECT com fasciz although Field & Trek stores trade under their own fascia

In Europe, the Group s growth has proven unrelenting with our products being offered via wholly-owned retail outlets, joint ventures with other retailers and stores
withsn anather retadter s store The acquisition of Sport Eybl and Sports Experts AG (EAG) ana a controfiing inierest in Sportiand internatwenal Group (S1G} alone
ncreased the store portfolio by 135 steres n hve countries

During the year, as pari of the accelerated growth programme in our European subsidiary, we opened 10 new stores in Europe and eatered two new countries,
opening stores in Poland and Spain Our strategy remains to identify partaers m new tesntories while continuing to expand our operations in the countries where
we currently trade

Read maore about Sports Retail on pages 1310 15
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Premum Lifestyle

£214.1m

Qur Premivm Lifestyle division centinued to evolve and expand with the
purchase of the remaiting 20% of Cruise during May 2013 During the year
93 Republic stores changed to the USC fascia, more than doubling the USC
portfolio to 90 stores

The diviston 1s 2 premier destenation for branded clothing footwear and
accessories Catering to dedicated fashion followers and trend alert men
and women throughaut the UK 1t 1s home to an extensive collection of
mainstream and independent footwear and apparei brands imciuding G Star
Diesel & Vero Moda

Brands

£217.5m

N

> karrimo

- BT FOR w

| ADVENTURE

THE NARRIMOR URBAN JADKET

The Brands divesion exploits Group portfolio brands by nat orly retailing

In store, but also via wholesale licensing and sponsorship The variety of
seliing methods ensures that our brands reach a larger audience and that
they obtain 2 far wider distsibution than if they were imited to retailing
within the Group

The division has maintained its igh visibility in the warldwide media
through on-going sponsorship of high-profile sports personalities
Recently-added faces of our Group brands include Gemma Atkinson
and Ashley Roberts

5

Read more about the Fremiuin Lifestyle division on page 16 Read miore about our Brands division an page 16 }
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

STRATEGIC REPORT

| am delighted to repart the Group exceeded its targets for another year We have maintained our position as the number one sports retailer in
the UK while reinforcing our status as the Consumers’ Champion, as demonstrated by our wide product range and value for money offering

The Group’s strategy of international expansion remains on course, with the acquisttion of Sports Eybl and Sports Experts Group (EAG) in

Austna, and Sportland International Group (SIG) in the Baltic region

| am also pleased to confirm that the expansian of the Shirebrook Sports Direct stare 15 now complete, including the addition of a ¢ 9,000 sq ft dedicated Nike area and the
opening of a USC store alongside We will shortly commence work on Phase 3 of our Shirebrook campus expansion, the construction of an additional ¢ 630 000 sq ft warehouse

and office extension which will be pivotal in fagilitating our ambitious plans for growth

I note also that the Group has recently signed a new £688m commitied unsecured sevolving credit facility which will remamn in piace until September 2018 prowiding a strong

{foundatien on which to delver our growlh plans over the next four years

EMPLOYEE BOKUS SHARE SCHEME

The Group s Employee Bonus Share Schemes are some of the most wide-reaching and
generous share schemes in the UK The adoption of such schemes has proven highly
effective at both motivating and remunerating our colleagues, and the performance
of the Sroup has gone from strength to strength since the imitial scheme was first
approved by sharehalders in September 2009

The second and final award under the 2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme vested
in August 2013 with over 19 million shares being distnbuted 1o a deserving ¢ 2,000
employees The tigh level of rewards for eligible participants has alsa praven key to
employee retention, and we crecit a great deal of our continued success to our

loyal workforce

The motivation and retention of aur key employees has also contributed substantially
towards the Group significantly out-performing the 2011 Employee Boaus Share
Scheme undertying EBITDA (before scheme costs) fargets for FY12, FY13 and FY14 1
am convinced that the Group has the right team n place to achieve the FY15 EBITDA
target and 1 look forward to seeing the scheme vest in bath 2015 and 2017

The Group recently proposed a 2015 Boaus Share Scheme to its shareholders under
which employees and the Executive Directors would be eligible to participate subject to

the achievement of EBITDA targets for the years FY16 to FY19 | am pleased to note that

the new Scheme was approved at a Genera) Meeting on 2 July 2014

0On behalf of the entire Board 1 wou'd Irke te thank shareholders for ther suppost and
participatien in this process Sperts Direct’s Employee Bonus Share Schemes are some
of the most successful employee reward schemes in the UK The success of these
schemes 1s demonstrated by the substantial shareholder value created over the last
five years

THE BOARD

During the vear Bob Mellors the Group Finance Director retived His dedication
and commitment to the Group cannot be understated and we wish him well 1n s
retirement The recrastment of a replacement 15 on-gomg

We are interviewing nternal and external tandidates to ensure that the new post holder
displays the qualities required by a FISE 100 company

We are aware of Lord Davies’ target of achieving Boaro diversity by ensuring a
amimum of 25% of the Board are female by 2015 However any appaintment will
be based on the shifls and expertise of the individual The Board s still giving
consideraticn to how the 25% target will be met Further details relating to the
secruitment of the Finance Director c2n be found on page 27

WEBSITE

During the year significant time has been spent on updating the Groups corporate
website The updated site was launched during December 2013 and 15 easy to navigate
for both potential investars and current shareholders alike New features to the site
clude interactive share price charts brands footage and aleris to subscribers
following Group anncuncements The site also incorporates links to adaitional
rasources such as our enline store and careers site

UNDERLYING EBITDA TARGETS
{Before Scheme Costs)

il il e Yl el fess Fre Fry r i
L I ] |
2009 SCHEME 2011 SCHEME 2015 SCHEME
2009 & 2011 SCHEME ACHIEVED W8 2011 SCHEME TARGETS W 2015 SCHEME TARGETS

NIVIDEND

Consistent with the recent practice the Board has decided not to propose a dividend
10 relation to £Y14 The Board remains of the opimion that it 15 1n the best interests of
the Group and its shareholdess to preserve financial flexbiity, facilitating the pursit
of potential acquisition and other growth apporiunities The payment of dwadends
remains under review 1 future years

CONCLUSION

The Board and | would like to show our gratitude to ous employees for the enormous
contribution they have made dunng the year Our results reflect their very hard work
and dedication which should never be taken for granted | look to the year ahead with
optimism Despite the difficult financial circumstances many of our customers fing
themselves (o we believe our compelling value proposion will allow us to achieve
continued success

Dr Keith Hellawell QPM
Nan-Executive Charman

17 Juiy 2014
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL AL 7
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2004

Qur business model 1s focused on long-term sustamable growth Whilst we continue to grow our business in the UK, we are now keen to use the
skills and knowledge we have gatned to build and expand our Sports Retail business across the rest of Europe

Our offening has developed further in specialist sports categanes and more fashion-
based retailing We are constantly refurbishing and upgrading our stores in order
to provide our customers with a compellsng consumer expenence The continued
development of our dedicated specialist areas and on-going collaboration with Nike,
adidas and Puma on 1r-store concepts are further examples of this

Acquisitions and stratepic investments in related businesses are an important part
of our strategy Opportunities to develop into new product categones or markets, or to
strengthen our position in existing areas, will continue to be considered on & case by
case basis

We aim to maintain our position as the market leader in the Sports Retail sector in the
UK, whilst alse gaining momentum in our expanston nte Europe The business model
provides guidance for the Group to implement an effective growth strategy to mastain
and develop the success achieved so far It compares our recent successes with our
future ambutions (n grder that we can assess how to progress in the future

1 IDENTIFY
Brand acquisitions and property enhancement

2 INVEST
Store partfolio and employees

3 DEVELOP
Website and mCommerce, enhanced product ranges

4 PROMOTE
Group-owned brands

5 ACHIEVE
Targets and Group success

The Group has significant memenfum and we must ensure that our product affering
and costomer proposition continue to grow and develop tn order to retatn our cuerent
customer base and to attract more customers in the future

Developing brand awareness 15 & key factor 1n ensuring a sustainable future and
the appropniate level of investmeant in advertising and technology are impaortant
components in achieving this

Qur international presence contrnues to grow through over 270 brand hcensing
pariners, our enlme presence and on-going European store apenings The Group's
appomtment of internaticnally-recogmsed celebrities and sporting professionals
as key ambassadors also promates our brands an a global basis

SPORTS

DIRECT com
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STRATEGY

OBIECTIVE SO FAR WHAT NEXT?

[DENTIFY

In-Store Our Shirebrock store 15 used 35 3 centre of excellence where presentation techniques  The Group continues to enhance us tn-store offering with further dedicated
are trialled and perected areas for specialist product collections
The Group facuses on 1ts stores to ensure the best presentation of our praduct + FEuropean Gol

range Qur product coflechons provide a good/betler/best’ presentation to ensure ¢ Swimshop cauk
ous customers find the nght product at the nght pnce Our specialist collaborations  » DragonCarp Direct

with SheRunsHeRuns and Seccer Scene @ the Boot Room provide a ugh level * Field & Trek
of customer service Our multi-channel approach alsa gives flexibihly to our ¢ SheRunsHeRuns
customers
Acguisitions The Group has continued its expansion n Europe, acquiring the Sporis Eybl and Acquisitions remain 2 high priory, n oroer to broaden the vanety of customer
Sports Experts Group {EAG) as well 25 a majority shareholdeng in Sporttand offering in all areas of the Group

tnternational Group (SIG) which operate n Austna and Germany and the Ballic
region respectively

Jn the UK the Group acquired a 51% stake in Yeomans Qutdoors to add to the Sports
Retail dwiston A 51% stake in Pulp and the remaining 20% stake in Cruise were
also purchased both being valuable additions to the Premuwm Lifestyle dviston

{n June 2013 the Brands division acquired the assets of Gelert

INVEST
Store Partfoho During FY14 we opened 32 stores in the UK closing 10 and opened a further 15 The Group intends to contenue to enhance its store portfolio in both the UK and
stores i Eusope closing five As at 27 Apeil 2014 Sparts Retail aperatedn 19 internationally The Group will contirue with the strategy to identdy strategic
countries sn Europe, as well as in the UK pariners in new terntones while expanding operations in those countries
where we currently have a presence Plzns are in olace o expand Sports Retadl
The Group also operates  store 1n Iceland as a joint venture and has a 50% stake cperations 1nto all the major t {
In the Heatons ¢hain in Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland peratiors 1to al the major countres i the European Economic Area
Our Shirebrack stoce has been extended to provade a tatal retail space of c 78,000
sq ft Ths offers customers a huge range of products under one roof enhancing
their shepping expenence
People We are aware 1hat the dedication of our employees has been essential to the Due to the success of the first Employee Bonus Share Scheme we continue to
success of the Group The commiiment that they have shown does not go unnoticed  encourage and mativate employees with the 2011 and 2015 Employee Bonus
Share Schemes
The Employee Banus Shase Schemes have been central to uniting our employees to o
wark towards a shared goal The 2009 Employee Borus Share Scheme has shown
our employees what they can achweve with teamwork and they ar¢ only one target
away fram meeting the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme targets set The
recently approved 2015 Bonus Share Scheme will further act as an incentive to
focus the minds cf our employees
DEVELOP
Website Onhine Retail sales currently represent 17 1% of Sports Retail revenue anancrease  Onhine sgvenue cantinues to be an area of significant growth and the Group
from 15 0% w1 FY13 contimues 1o ook at opportunities 1o develop this sevenue stream further The
website has benefited from nvestment in improving the customer experience
Improvements 1o the site such as speciaised landing pages and upgraded My including a mare efficient checkoul experience and parcel tracking services
Account” pages, offer the customer a mare personal experience Recognition of the oniine brand has increased with 401 UK stores displaying
Investment in the mobile site means that & now fully supports language the SPORTSDIRECT com fastia
and currency conversion Mobile visdts currently eguate 1o 25% of visits to The troduction of @it cards that can be purchased and redeemed online wil
SPCRTSDIRECT com be 1rialled 1n FY15 This will allow customers to use gift ¢ards to purchase
items from our whole product range
PROMOTE
Brands The Group s pertioho includes a wide vanety of world-famous spart, fashwn and The Brands division 15 closely invelved in the development of licensed products

hfestyle brands The Groups Retail division sells products under these Group brancs  and moaitors licensees and therr manufacturers to ensure product guality,
W its stores and the Brands drision cxatorts tho biands thought's whelpeale and  arncentation and conrstency with the appropnate brang sirategy The Brands
iicensing businesses division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigrous events and retams 2

portfeho of globalty-recognised, tigh-profile athletes
The Brands division wholesale busmess sells the brands’ core products, such as

Dunlop teanss rackets and Slazenger tennss balls to wholesale customers and Acguisihions of key brands will remain high on the agenda
distrsbutars throughout the world This results i far wader distribution of the

nsion into Asva and the
products than would be the case 1 thewr sale was restricted to Group stores The Brands Drvision strategy s focused an furibier expansion 1nto Asy

Amencas Such expansion will provide us with more opportunities to expand the
The Whalesale business 2lso whelesales childrenswear and appare! Thelicensing  global presence and international appeal of our Group brands

pusiness ficenses third parties to apply Group-owned brands to non-core products
manufaciured and distributed by those third oarties The division currently has

¢ 270 icensees worldwide We manage these licensees to ensure ghobal brand
consistency and the mternational success of gur Group brands

In order to ymprove worldwide brand awareness the Brands dwision will
conturie ta tnvest 10 the devetopment ef core products for wholesale custemers
and distnbuters throughout the world

We recently added 1o our brand portfolia with the purchase of Gelert
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The Board monitors the performance of the Group by reference to a number of key performance indicators (KPIs} which are discussed in this Chief Executive s Report and also in

the Financral Review The most impartant of these KPls are

52 waeks ended

Pro-tarma 52
weeks ended

27 Apnil 2014 26 Ao 2013 25 Apnl 20127
Financtal KPls
Group revenue £2,706 Dm £21856m £1,807 2m
Underlying EBITDA £331 Im £287 9m £2357m
Sports Retail gross margin 429% 403% 403%
Sports Retail like-for-like stores gross contnbution @ +10 5% +106% +0 7%
Online revenue as a percentage of total Sports Retail revenue 171% 150% 116%
Underlying earsings per share ® 21p 26 9p 187p
Non-financial KPls
No of Sports Retas! stores ® 685 498 483
Employee turngver 192% 155% 170%
Cardboard recycling 9,230 tonnes 8,893 tonnes 6 622 tonnes

(1) The method for calculating underying EBITDA 15 set out in the Financial Review

12) The FY12 income statement has been restated to provide 3 52 week pro lorma set of results.

(3) Sparts Reta |like lor ike contribution 13 delined a2 the percentage change 1a gross contnbutien in 1he successwe |7 month perod adyusted to reimove (he impact of the 53 week year in 2412 A Niqe-for ke store s one that has been
trading for the full L2 months in bolh penods and has not been affecled by 3 significant change suth as 3 mapr relurbishment

(4) Excluges wholesale revenue and revenue in EAG and SIG Including revenue in EAG and SIG anline sales representad 15 1% of tumover

(3) The method for calculating underlying earings per share 1s set out in the Financial Review

(6] Ex¢luding associates
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING T0 THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

INTERHAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has a responsibility to govern the Group in the interest of the shareholders
Comments and suggestions of shareholders are 2lways considered by the Board Where
the Board considers that the risk has not been fully mitigated, follow-up meetings

will be arranged 0 assess the nsk and formulate mitigation strategies A specialist
management team of Directors and senior managers ughhght risks as and when

they become apparent The team then in turn assist the Board in dewising controls to
msmmise the Group s exposure

THE GROUP $ APPROACH TD RISK

The identification and managemant of nisk 1s a continuous process and the Group's
system of (nternal controls and the busingss continuity programmes are key elements of
that The Group maintains a system of controls to manage the business and to protect
its assets with the development of contingency plans and rapid respense to changing
circumstances and does much to mitrgate the nsks facing the Group The Group
continues to invest in people, systems and in [T to manage the Group’s operations and
its finances effectively and efficiently

1 THE RISKS ARE IDENTIFIED

2 THE RISKS ARE EVALUATED

3 ACTION IS TAKEN T MANAGE THE RISKS

4 THE PRACTECES ARE REVIEWED AND MONITORED TQ LIMIT THE RISK

The specialist management teams ate responsible for the dentification, analysis
evaluation and mitigation of the significant nsks applicable to their areas of business
The teams meet reguiarly to discuss the identrfied nsks and haw these should be
reviewed and monitored The Board ensures that the appropriate arrangements are

in place under whech employees can rarse concerns abowt possible financial or other
impropriety which are then appropriately investigated

The Buard 1s assisted by the Audit Commuttee in futfdling sts overview respansibilibies
reviewing the reporting of financial and non-financial iformation to shareholders and
the audit process, satisfying itself that appropnate systems of internal controel and nisk
management are 1n place and are serving to \dentity and manage nsk

The Group operates a Retail Suppart Umit which provides sirong operationa| internal
audit services n the Retail dvision and there are procedures i place in the Brands
division $o memitor and centrol hcensees

The external auditors are invited to attend all meetings of the Audit Committee, save
for those parts of any meeting when the Committee reviews the performance of the
auditors

With the exception of Heatons which 1s the Group s only matenal associate the Group's
system of internal control and nsk management and its effectiveness »s momtored and
reviewed by the Board, the Avdit Committee and management, and the Board believes
that the Group has maintained througheut the year and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and accounts an effective embedded system of internal control and
has complied with the Turnbult guidance

The systems of internal control and risk management are des:gned to manage, rather
than ehminate, the nisk of failing to achieve business objectives

RISK POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Business plans and budgets for each business include hnancial and strategic targets
against which performance 1s monstored Monitoring includes the examinatien of and
changes to rolling annual and quarterly forecasts manthly measurement of actual
achievement against key performance targets and plans, and weekly reviews of
performance

The Group has clear procedures for the approval and controt of expenditure Strategic
investment decisions involving bath capslatl aad revenue expenditure are subject to
formal detailed appraisal and seview according to approval levels set by the Board
Dperating expenditure 15 controlled within each business with approval levels for such
expenditure being determined by the indiwidual businesses

There 1s an approved employee whistle-blowing policy within the Group The policy
was established to be utilised by employees who wish 10 raise any 1ssues or concerns
relating fo the Group's activities and all matters are discussed on a canfidential basis

KEY RISKS

Control environment

The Group s operating procedures include a compiehensive system for reporting
information to the Board including

o assessment of three years of strategy plans for business development

» creation and assessment of legal policies, and

» review of the Group at each Board meeting, focusing en potential new nisks (such as
key changes in the market and succession planning)

Contro! procedures

Detailed operational procedures have been developed for each of the Group’s operating
businesses that embody key controls The implications of changes in law and
regulations are taken into account within these procedures

Financial reporting process

The Graup has i place internal contrel and risk managemeat systems in relation to
the Group s financiat reporting process and the Group's process for the preparation
of conselidated accounts These include clearly defined lines of accountatility and
delegation of authanty policies and procedures that cover financtal planaing and
reporting, prepanng consolidated accounts, capital expenditure, project governance
and information secunity

The Audit Commitiee ts responsible for overseeing and monitoring these processes
which are designed to ensure that the Group compiies with relevant regulatory reporting
and filing prowisians As at the end of the period covered by this Repart the Audit
Committes, with the participation of the Cheef Evacubive, evaluated the effectweness

of the design and operation of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed n financial reports 15 recarded processed,
summansed and reported within specthed time penods
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The Group has identified the following factors in the foltowing table as potential nsks to, and uncertainties conceming, the successful operation of its business The Group 1s,
however, exposed to a wider range of nisks than discussed below but these are the principal nisks that have recently been discussed by the Board and Audit Committee and are of

primary concern

AREA RISK

MITIGATION

Supply Chan

The Group ss subyect te the risks assocrated with
international trade and transport as welk as those
relating o exposure to different legal and other

The Group operates snternationally so 15
reliant en the successful distributan of
goods from when they are distnbufed by
the manufacturer to when they are sold
in the siores

and transport delays for products could all cause

The Group 1s rehant on manufacturers in substantial difficutties

developing countries as the maponty of
the Groups products are sourced from

outside the UK could bring negative media attenticr 1o the Group

standards Particular nisks including worker stnbes,
failure to meet mimmum code of conduct standards

Desasters in or around the factories of our suppliers

The Group requires all suppliers ta stgn up to the Group s Code of Ethics/Supply Policy
which enables the Growp to meniter and benchmark the performance of the suppher
1£ allows the Group to carry out mspections of premises to ensure comphiance with the
Group s cades for continunty and quality of supply The Policy extends throughout the
duratior: of the Group s contract with each supphier and altows the Group to conduct
inspections of suppher premises at random mtervals

Many nsks redating to the supply chai, reliance an non UK supphiers, and to the reputation
of the Group s brands are managed and mitigated by the implementation af these policies
Strong Service Level Agreements and maintaintng relationships with all parties involved tn
the supply chain also mitigate these risks

Key Suppliers

The Group 1s reliant an good
relatonsheps with its major
manufaciurers key brands or brand
supplers

have an adverse effect on the Group s business,

supply the required product

A failure to replace any of s major manufacturers
or supphers on commercially reasonable terms could

operating prafit or everall financial condibion I may
mean that customers shop elsewhere (f stores cannot

The Groug follows pokicies of forging long-term relatienships with suppliers and of utilising
two leading supply chain companes to procure much of the Group s own branded goods
This close retationship brings a better understanding of the suppler s resources enabling
the Graup to react quickly to changes n the international supply market

Lengthy contracts are often used by the Group to ensure that key manufacturers are aware
of aur commitment to them

Treasury and Fmancial Risk

The Group operates internztionally The
majority of forerign contracts relatiag to
the sourcing of Group branded goods
are denominated in US doltars and the
Euro, thus leaving exposure to fereign
exchange nsk

making goods more expensive

dengminated in a currency that (s nat the entity s
functional currency as exchange rates move This
could significantly reduce profitabiity

The Group has net borrowings which
are principally at floating interest rates
limked to bank base rates or LIBOR

The Group 15 expased to foreign exchange nisk ansing
frem various currency exposures and a strengihening
of the US dotlar or a weakemng of the sound sterling

Foreign exchange nisk 2rises when future cemmercial
transactions or recogmsed assets or liabilities are

The Group seeks to mitigate the FX fluctuations by hedging via forward fareign currency
contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges

The Group also holds assets overseas i local currency and these assets are revalued in
accordance with currency movements This currency nsk 1s not hedged

The Group 15 cash generative and 15 now targeting ots debt fevels to mitigate interest rate
nisk and currenty has debt levels of less than 1 x underlying EBITDA

Credit and Ligtndity Risk

The Group could have a credit rish i credit
evaluations were niot performed on alt customers
requinag credit over a certain amount

The Group pnmanily the Brands division
provides credit to some of its customers

Funding and liquidity for the Groups
operations aze provided through bank
loans overdrafts and shareholders

The Group's objective 1s to maintan sufficient
funding and hquichty for its requirements, but the

funds avalability of adequate cash resources from bank
facibties and achieving continuity of funding in the
current financial climate could be a risk to the Group

in future years

The purchase of acquisstions to strengthen and
comphiment the Group may be hindered

Retationshigs with suppliers could break down if we
are unable to pay them in line with our contractual

obligations

The Graup's key sipphiers also face credit nisk and as such the Group regulasly assesses
the viatnhity of s suppliers and ensures there are plans to source from atternative
businesses should key supphers fail

Rigerous precedures are in place to mitigate this credrt sk The Group has a credit policy
In place and the exposure to nsk 1s monitored on an an-going basis

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requering ¢redif over a certamn ampuat
and concentration of credit nsk 1s managed

Investment of cash surplus borrowings and denvative investments are made through
banks and companies which have credit ratings and investment criteria appraved by the
Board

The Group mitigates quidity risk by keeping debt levels low and the current finance facility
18 held wath a ctub of 13 banks thereby spreading the nsk

Succession Planning

Natural disaster illness, tmjury, or the sudden
resignation of key indwiduals could change the
direction of the Group

HKey indivsduals withen the Group have
knowledge of the Business and are
essential to drive the business forward

Qur departments work together to develop their understznding of each department and
of the Group Serior Managers work at ground level to help 10 assess the strengths of
thetr employees and to offer development oppartunities where appropriate This can be of
assistance when considenng the suitability of mternal candidates for vacancies

Promotion opportunities a newly developed competency framework 2nd regular
appraisals give employees a voice encourage a sense of zesponsibility and support career
progresston

Qur structered talent management programmes and specialist masterclasses encourage
internal progression within the Group

The Group has formed working refatianships with head henters and recruitment agents
who are awate of the qualities required in a tymeal candidate




12 SPORTSDIRECY.com

STRATEGIC REPORT

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

LD

AREA

RISK

MITIEATION

Market Forces

The Sports Retail industry 1s highty
competitive and the Group currently
competes at national and local levels
with a wide vanety of retalers of
varying sizes who may have competitive
advantages New competitors may enter
the market

The competition tontinues to place pressure on the
Group s pricing strategy marging and profitabildy

The Graug has a discount pricing palicy to help reduce the nsk of increased competition n
the industry

The Group has a strong praperty portfolia, and continues te strengthen this by opening and
closing stores to adapt to market condrons

A number of key brands are pwned by the Group, reducing pressure on margins

Operational

The Group 15 reltant on the Head Office
and National Distnibution Centre at
Shirebrook operating without disruption,
aleng with the uninterrupted runming of
the Group s fleet of vehicles

The majonty of the Group s ravenue 15
denved from the UK

Any disruptien to the Head Office, Natianal
Distribution Centre or the fleet of vehicles might
significantly impact the Group s ability to manage
Ils aperations distrebute products to its stores and
matntan s supply chain

Any long-term interruption of the Groupss (T systems
would have a significant impact on the Group §
operation particularly tn the Retail division

Terronist attacks armed cenflicts, gavernment
achions or adverse weather affecting the road
networks withun the UK could result in a significant
reduction in consumer confidence, which would in
turn have an adverse afiect on sales in stores

The Group has a strong business continuity plan that 1$ regufarly reviewed to address
operational nsks The last review and testing of this took place dunng the mest recent
fingncial year

The Board 15 confident that as far as it «s practical, the nisks and uncertainties that face
the Group are hetng monitored and managed and that, where required appropriate action
13 bemng taken

The Group constantly monitors the business environment and the nature of the business
model allows for the Group ta act swiftly under extraordinary circumstances

Realth & Satety

Health and Safety 1s key across all areas
of the Group Polictes are implemented,
in conjunction with legal standards 1o
protect our employees and customers

Potential injunes, ¢istress and fatalsties could
result from 2 faslure to establish and maintain safe
envimrments Lack of competence in Health and
Safety reporting could lead to legal claims which are
difficult to defend

We ensure that each Company within the Group 15 fully trained to the required standards
applicable im each requisite country

Traimng courses are regularly offered and employees are encouraged to leamn essential
Heaith and Safety technigues

The team at Head Office are always on hand to discuss Health and Safety 1ssues, assess
ncidents and refer reportable matters to RIDOR

The merdents within the Group are reported to the Board regularly as are the legal claims
that anse from these The Board consider ways to reduce the number of claims

Legal

The Group s trade marks, patents
designs and other intellectual praperty
nghts ave central to the value of the
Group s brands

The Group believes that ats licensees, suppliers
agents and distnbutors are in material cemphiance
with employment enwronmental and other [aws
The violation or allegatwns of a vilaton of such
laws or regutations by any of the Group's licensees,
suppliers agents or distnbutors could lead fo
adverse publicity and a dechne in pubhe demand for
the Group s products, or require the Group to incur
expenditure or make changes to its supply chain and
other husiness arrangements to ensure compliance

The Group may need to resort fo bitsgateon 1n the
future to enforce s intellectual property nghts and
any Istigation could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of resources

Third parties may try to challenge the ownership or
counterfert the Group s intellectual property

The Group has anin hause Legal team who have knowledge of a vanety of legal areas that
apply to the Group This (n-house expertise is vital in miligating such 1ssues

The Legal team work closely with external consultants to assist with matters outside therr
areas of expertise

The Group's Legal team actively morror trade mark applications by other companies, as
well a3 the stock of rival retailers to ensure that our nghts are not infringed and where
these arg infringed to take appropniate action

As a testament to the Legal team s hard work and commitment to protecting the Groups
trade marks, the trade mark team recently won Spart, Entertamment and Media Team of
the Year at the World Trademark Rewiew Awards 1 Dallas

Sales

The Group  retail businesses are
subject to seasonal peaks The mcidence
of ang particopation n majos sparting
events will have a particular ympact on
the Sparts Retail business

Prelonged unseasonal weather condibons or
temporary severe weather dunng peak trading
seasons could have a matenal adverse effect on the
Group's businesses The Group s dependent upon the
store portfolio and consuzmers’ spending habits

Although unahle to mitigate eavirenmental conditions the Group are able to influznce the
retail portfohio and therefore constantly menitor development of stores and the Groups aim
to Increase the square faotage through wiable new retail space By monitaring stock levels
through sales forecasting the Group can manage the peaks in demand and trading profiles
can be predicted
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

| am pleased to report a further year of strong revenue and profit grawth for Sports
Direct The results for the year are even more impressive given that the prior year
1acluded the UEFA European Champienships and the 2012 Landon Olympics, and have
been achieved 1n a retail environment that remains challenging The Group has grown
consistently and the resilience and fleability of our business madel continues to alfow
us to offer an unrvalled product range offering exceptional guality and unbeatable
value We will continue to be the Consumers’ Champion

Building on our strategy of broadeniag our customer base through expansion, during
the year we have opened € 300,000 net sq §t of 2dditional retail space acress the UK,
re-fitting a further ¢ 300 000 5q ft In Europe we have opened ¢ 200,000 net sq ft of
retail space i our existing business ang have acquired a further ¢ 1 9 million sq ft
with our acquisitions 1a Austna and the Baltics

The out-performance that we have achieved over recent years truly serves to
demonstrate how successful the Employee Bonus Share Scheme has been in motivating
pur employees to work towards a shared goal The 2009 scheme targets were achieved
and the shares vested in August 2012 and 2013 with aver 2,000 employees recerving
Iife-changing sums as reward for theiwr hard work and dedication to the business over
the last five years

Underlying EBITDA targets uader the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme for FYE2
FY13 and FY14 have been met With only one target left to achieve, the scheme 1s
also on course to vest in 2015 and 2017 | am also delighted that, following a General
Meeting on 2 July, shareholders have now given approval for a new 2015 Bonus Share
Scheme This will ensure the commitment of our employees for many more years to
come

GROUP

For the year we increased Group revenue by 23 8% to £2 706 Om This was pnimarily
due 1o the Retail division, where we grew revenues by 25 9% ncfuding a 24 1%
increase in Sports Retail revenue partly due io the acquisition of EAG in Austna and
S1G 1n the Baltec region Premium Lifestyle revenue also grew by 49 4% due fargely to
the acquisition of Republic n February 2013

Group gross margin in the vear increased by 180 basis pants from 40 9% to 42 7%
Sports Retarl dision gross margin increased by 260 basis ponts {0 42 9% (FY13
40 3%) while Brands division gross margin decreased to 43 1% (FYE3 44 9%)

Group operating costs increased 35 9% to £826 Lm (FY13 £607 9m) Sports Retail and
Brands division operating costs were £656 3m (FY13 €479 6m} ™ and £63 1m (FY13
£66 6m) respectively The increase (n Group cperating costs 1s mainly attnbutable

to our recent acquisitions in Austria and the Baltics Excluding the impact of these
acquisitions Group operating costs increased by 19 7% Operating costs increased
shightly as a percentage of sales from 27 8% 1 FY13 to 29 7% in FYE4, excluding the
impact of acquisitions due to prowision reversals in the prior year and the impact of a
full year of costs within Republic

Reflecting the success of our approach — balancing revenues and gross masgin while
matamung a tight focus on operating costs — we grew Group underlying EBITDA
{before scheme costs) for the year by 15 0% to £331 Lm (FY13 £287 9m) Within this
underiying EBITDA we increased the Retanl division EBITDA by 15 3% to £300 9m
(FY13 £260 %m) while the Brands division EBITDA increased by 11 9% to £30 2m
{FY13 £27 0m)

Excluded from undertying EBITDA 15 an £11 9m (FY13 £22 1m} charge in respect of
the 2009 and 2011 Employee Bonus Share Schemes and the Executive Bonus Share
Scheme This charge has been taken centrally and except i note 4 to the accounts (1S
not reflected in the divissonal (Retal and Brands) numbers in thes report

For the year, Group underlying profit before tax increased 19 8% to £249 3m, pnmanty
as a iesult of the £43 2m increase n EBITDA (pre-scheme costs) and a £10 2m
reduction in Employee Bonus Share Scheme charges offset by a £9 3m increase in
depreciation and amortisation Underlying EPS for the year increased by 19 3% to

32 1p (FYL3 26 Sp}

{13 FY13 comparative now excludes opefating costs in Republic now included within Premium Lifestyle

SPORTS OIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC ] 3
ANHUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

Net debt at 27 Apnl 2014 was £212 Om (28 Apnl 2013 £154 Om) which 1s 0 66 times
reported EBITDA (28 Aprit 2013 0 58 times) Reported EBITDA includes realised foreign
exchange gains/losses in selling and admivistration ¢osts and the Employee Bonus
Share Scheme charges

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
Retail Revenue

§2 weeks ended

21 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013

Em (£ m)

Sports Retail 22144 18333

Premium Lifestyle® 2141 1433

Total Retail revenue 24885 19766

Cost of sales (1,427 3} (11756)

Gross profit 10612 3010

Gross margin percentage 42 8% 40 5%

{1) FY13 Pramium Lifestyle revenue re-stated to include Regubhc { ty sacheded withun Wholesale and othet)
Brands Revenue

52 waeks anded

27 Aprik 2014 28 Aprl 2013

Em (Em)

Wholesale 1852 1783

Litensing 73 07

Total Brands revenug 075 2090

Cost of safes (123 8} {1152)

Gross margin 917 938

Gross margin percenage 131% 44 9%

SPORTS REFAIL

Sports Retail revenue growth has continued with the acquisition of two international
subsidianies in Austria and the Baltics as we'l as further enhancements (n ous retail
and logistics infrastructure

Sparts Retait sales grew 24 1% to £2,274 4m (FYE3 €1 833 3m) dnven by our recent
European acquisitions and strang growth in our existing bustness Sports Retait

gross margin for the year increased by 260 basis points to 42 9% (FY13 40 3%} This
increase 1s mainly attributable to on-going investment n our ‘better and best product
range and the turther development of Groug Brands

Sales in the second half of the year were up 25 5% to £1 138 3m (FY13 H2 £907 3m)
Gross margins for the second half of the year improved to 42 5% (FY13 H2 39 7%)

Sports Retail Tike-for-like gross contnbution which excludes online increased by
115% marking the fifth consecutive year of growth (n this KP against a tough
comparator last year which included the UEFA European Championships and the 2012
Leadon Olympes (FY13 +108% /FY12 +G 7% /FY1] +68% /FY10 +3 7%}
Sports Retail like-for-like contribution 15 defined as the percentage change in gross
contnbution i the successive 12-month period A ke-for-like store 1S one that has
been trading for the full 12 months tn both peniods and has not been affected by a
significant change, such as a major refurbishment The number of stores included in
this years KPl s 339 {FY13 340)

Sports Retaik operating costs increased by 36 8% to £656 3m ncluding acquisitions
{FY13 £479 6m} Excluding the impact of acquisitions, aperating costs increased by
16 3% to £557 6m - operating costs in H2 increased by 12 3% to £283 6m (FY13H2
£252 6m}
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Store wages were up 37 5% in the year to £211 4m {FY13 £153 7m) but as a
percentage of sales increased only shightly to 9 3% (FY13 8 4%) Sports Retail
premises costs increased by 33 1% to £192 7m (FY13 £144 8m), largely due to

a £14 6m reversal of our onerous lease provision n FY13 following the closure of

a significant number of unprofitable stores Excluding the impact of this reversal,
premises costs increased by 20 9% Other operating costs were up 32 8% to £246 bm
(FY13 £185 7m), increasing shightty as a percentage of sales to 10 8% (FY13 10 1%)

The currency impact due to the change o the Euro Sterling exchange rate was a cost of
£5 6m 1n the current year (FY13 a gain of £4 6m}

Undestying EBITDA for Sporis Retail was £321 3m {FY13 £233 9m), an wcrease of
23 6% for the year (20 2% excluding the impact of acquisitions) This increase was
driven by a £236 6m increase 1n grass profit (including acquisitions} due to the
growth n store contribubion and online sales offset by the £176 7m increase in
operating costs

The Group's retail busiesses performed strongly i a difficult economic environment
Our retail mode! offenng outstanding value te osr customers, remains resilient, both
in the UK and internationally Throughout the year, we continued to focus on offering
our customers the most comprehensive product range the best availability and value
while minimising operating costs as a percentage of gross sales

The Group has continued its planned expansion into Europe with the acquisition

of two key subsiciaries In June 2013, the Group acquired a 51% stake m the Sports
Eybl & Sports Experts Group AG (EAG) a leading sports retailer with stores in Austria
and Germany The remawning 49% of the business was subsequently acquired »n
March 2014 In August 2013 the Group acguired a 60% shareholding in Sportland
International Group {SIG) the market leader in the Baltic states of Estonia, Latvia
and Lithuanmia

We are currently in the final design stages for Phase three of the develapment of our
National Distribution Cestre in Shirebrook, the construction of an addiienal ¢ 600,000
sq ft warehouse and office facility Preparation of the site «s already In progress,
with the aim of commencing works in September 2014, and compledan of the peoject
anticipated for late 2015

ONLINE

AN

STRATEGIC REPORT

Employee traiming continues to be a majer area of investment Dunng the last year
over 50,000 hours were devated to traimng and developing our cotleagues Qur
National Traiming Facihty 1n Shirebrock 15 committed to maximising the individual
performances of our employees, and to heiping others to identify, work towards, and
achieve their own distinct career goals

The National Traiming Facility 1s supported by Nike and Puma who have their own
individual environments This unique training experience 15 the only centre of its type
giobally for both Nike and Puma

Dur store portfolio remains constantly under review with the performance of each
store and ways of maximising performance beng regularly examined Dunng the year
we opened 32 stares 10 the UK, closing 10 and have opened an additional 15 stores
in Eurape, closing fve Through acquisitions we alsa added a further 134 stores 1n
Austria and the Baltics

We increased our pened end square-footage to ¢ 4 5m sg ft @ (FY13 ¢ 4 Om} in the

UKand ¢ 3 0msq ft® (FY13 ¢ 1 1m sq ft ) across the rest of Eurape, including an
adeitional ¢ 1 9m sq ft as a result of acquisitions We atso re-fitted ¢ 300,000 sq ft
of our exssting retail store space in the UK

{1) Stare aumbers taken at date of acqu s ien

{2) Due to differing methodologies this implres  range between 4 25msq it 4 75msq &t
(3) Due fo ditfecing methodologies this implies a range detween 2 75msq ft 3 25m sq tt

During the year, the expansion of the Shirebrook Sports Direct store was also
completed The expanded store includes dedicated Nike and Puma areas as weli as
enhanced runaing, outdoer football and women s fitness areas Following the success
of the Shirebrook stere, our Oxford Sireet store relocated 1o the former HMV store 1
May 2014 The conbinued evolution of the whole estate and in particular, key eity centre
stores, 1s wital in building relationships with third-party brands and will continue with
the re-development of aur Glasgow store which 15 expected to finish in Autumn 2014

In FY15 we are targetng to re-fit ¢ 400 000 sq it of retail space across the UK

We have expenenced growth in onling revenue which has ingreased by 26 8% frem £264 6m to £335 4m n the year

This represented 17 1% of Sports Retail sales (FY13 15 0%}, excluding wholesale sales and sales in EAG and SIG (inciuding
EAG and SIG, online revenue represented 15 1% of Sports Retaul sales) Online sales to nan-UK customers now represent

46 5% of all online Sports Retail sales (FY13 35 1%} and 48 2% of enline contribution (FY13 33 8%}

Qur mult-channel offering remains a sirategic focus for the Group Order fulfilment and information technology solutions
are developed in-house with full back-up suppart from gur National Distribution Centre 1n Shirebrook, Derbyshire Specific
customer landing pages and ‘My Account’ pages have now been upgraded and provide an improved customer expenence
401 of the UK store fascia are now branded SPORTSDIRECT com, an increase of 25 from last year {FY13 376)

oprommately 25% of wists to SPORTSDIRECT com are now made wa mobile devices Given the rapid developments in this
area, we have updated our mobile site to support multiple language and currency optiens Customer satisfaction through
a mults-channel offening remains one of our key areas of fotus Ouring FY15 we aim to enhance the customes expenance by
upgrading our search facility to ensure that the results are as relevant as possible We are developing additional functionality
wcluding click & collect, which 15 expected to be rolled-out in UK Sports Direct stores during AutumnAWinter 2014 online gift
cards and the cpportunity to apen a credit facility
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UK STORE PORTFOLID INTERNATIONAL STORE PORTFOLID PRE-EXISTENG BUSINESS
27 hprd 2014 28 Apnt 2013 21 hprd 2014 28 Apnid 2013
Stores at Year End 418 39 Belgium 44 45
Slovenia {5 15
Opened 32 ¥ Portugal 15 15
Closed 1] 36 Poland 7 -
France [ 6
Freehold properties 59 52 Netherlands [ b
SPORTSDIRECT com fascias 401 376 Cyprus 5 3
Other 1 20 Hungary 4 2
Area(sg ft) c45m c40m Czech Republic 4 2
Slovakia 3 3
In the 52 weeks to 27 April 2014, reat reviews have been agreed on 30 stores The Luxembourg 2 2
average mcrease tn rent was 0 64% (0 13% annual equivalent) There are currently 41 Shan 1 i
rent reviews guistanding with a further 54 falling due in FY15 Qur lease expiry profile p
over all leasehold stores {excluding Lillywhites Piccadsliy} s now 5 | years, including Total 12 102
68 stores with contractual expmes or break dates within the next 12 months This
sigmificant amount of flexibility within gur portfolio allows us to continue to monmitor and  Note Excluding Republic of Ireland & Iceland
adapt our format te the rapidly changing multi-channel environment FY14 Acquisitions
In the current financial year, we are targeting to open between 30 and 40 stores, ¢ 30% 27 April 2014
of which are expected to be relocations In the first quarter we have already gpened
10 stores and have closed five of which four were due to relocations within the same Austria 5
town Estonia %
We continue ta benefit fram the acquisition of the properties purchased from Mtke Latvia 24
Ashley i 2012, which have resulted 1n a £9 4m increase to EBITDA when viewed Lithuania 20
against a proforma comparative
Germany K]
FY§4 Proforma FY14 jac Total 135
{£) acquired MA
Properties
)
" Al of the above stores are opesated by companies whally-owned by the Group except
Rental charge — 32 stares s i Portuga, where the Group owns 50 1% and Estonia, Latvia and Lithuama where the
Third-party rental income - 19 Group owns 60 0% As part of the accelerated growth programme in our European
EBITDA Contribution (32 stares) 165 759 subsidiary we now have an additional 10 stores in Eurape 2nd have entered two new

(1) Assumed rent based on 10% of store turnover

countries (Spain and Poland} Including our recent acquisitions in Austna and the
Balhic region, we are now active in 19 countries across Europe (includes associates in
the Republic of Ireland and Iceland)

The mtegration of EAG nitrally focused on the Sports Expert format buf has now been
extended o include the Eybl fascia Sports Direct point of sale systems are now in all
stores with all EAG stock now centrally managed While the strategic focus to date
has been the sell-through of legacy stock, we also intent to rebrand all EAG stores to
SPORTSDIRECT com

Qur strategy remains to identify partners in new terntories while continuing to expand
our operations in the counteies where we currently brace For FYLS in hne with our
accelerated Esropean expansion we are targeting 10-15 organic new stores In the first
quarter we have opened three stores closing two

The Group has a 50% shareholding in the Heatons cham which operates 15 Sports
Direct stores in Northern Ireland and 26 sports siores in the Republic of Ireland We also
own a 25% shareholding in the Sports Direct stose in Iceland

Local management continue ta work hard to ensure that all new and existing stores in
Europe are commitied to striving towards the operatienal efficiencies and standards
that exist across our UK sports stores
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PREMIUM LIFESTYLE

Premum Lifestyle sales grew 49 4% to £214 Lm (FY13 £143 3m), 1n large part due to
the inclusion of a full year's trading in Republic which was acguired in February 2013
Premiem Lifestyle gross margin for the year decreased by 350 basis ponts to 40 3%
(FY13 43 8%) due ta the clearance of old stock in the year

Premium Lifestyle operating costs including Republic increased by 72 9% to £106 7m
(FY13 £61 7m) Excluding Republic operating costs increased by 5 2% to £58 7m
(FY13 £55 8m)

Underlying EBITDA for fremium Lifestyle was a loss of £20 4m (FY13 £1 Om prefit)
This was largely due to significant re-structuring costs within Republic We are
targeting to see the benefit of this re-structuring, along with the impact of the closure
of a significant number of loss-making stores in the year in FY15

Integration of our Premium Lifestyle dwision has continued 1n the year including IT
systems in Flannels, Cruise and Republic and the relocation of the Flannels head
office to our site 1n Wigan The previous Republic warehouse and head office has been
relocated to the existing USC facilities, and 53 former Repubhic stores were converted
to the USC fascia Not withstanding this progress, supply from major third-party
brands remains very challenging

The FY13 results included nine months of trading for Flannels and two months for
Republic

Online revenue in the division tngreased by 57 6% in the year to £37 3m (FY13

£23 8m} Dunng the year the donsion s eCommerce platforms have been integrated
with the Group s IT systems These now consist of Flannels com, Cruisefashion co uk
and USC co uk

USC onhine sales wcreased by 116 5% to £23 6m (FY13 £10 9m}) due to improved
stock availability and wncreased brand awareness The launch of the USC and Flannels
mobile platiorms, in November 2013, has also contributed towards the increase in
onhne sales in the Premium Lifestyle divisicn

At the year end, the Premium Lifestyle dwvision traded from 126 stores under five main
fascias

27 April 2014 28 fpnl 2013
UsC 90 40
Republic - 104
Van Mildert 9 10
Crusse 10 8
Hannels 8 8
QOther 9 8

Total 126 178

STRATEGIC REPORT

BRANDS

The Group s brand portfolio ncludes a wide varety of world-fameus sport fashion and
Iifestyle brands The Group's Retatl division sells products under these Group brands
i its stores and the Brands dwision expleits the brands through ds wholesale and
liceasing activities The Brands diviston continues to sponsor a variety of prestigicus
events and retains a vanety of globally-recognised, high-profile sportsmen and women
as brand ambassadors

Brands division tatal revenue increased by 4 1% to £217 5m (FY13 £209 0m)
Wholesale revenues were up 3 9% to £185 2m (FY13 £178 3m), with continued growth
1n the key US market which now represents 33 4% of tota! wholesale revenue

Brands gross margin decreased by 180 basis points to 43 1% (FY13 44 9%)
Wholesale gross margins fell 220 basts ponts to 33 2% (FY13 35 4%) aegatively
impacted by the loss of Firetrap wholesale income and stock clearance in Gelert
acquired in July 2012 Following the acquisition of the Gelert brand and assets from
the admimstrator the business underwent a complete customer and operational review
resulting in significant cost sawings and a mare efficrent business gong forward

Licensing revenues in the year were up 5 2% to £32 3m (FY13 £30 7m) We

signed 84 new licence agreements, covenng multiple brands, product categones
and geographies, with minimum contracted values of $50 7m over the life of the
agreements At 27 Apnl 2014 the Group had 427 licence agreements worldwide,
across 273 licensees with contracted mimmums of $309m over the remaiming hife of
the agreements

Longer term we still cegard licensing as the key driver of Brands divrsion prohitabihity
and central to the overall growth of the Brands business The key growth areas are
expected to include Asia Pacific, the Middle East and Narth Afnca and the Amencas
which should compensate faor a more challenging licensing landscape in the UK and
Europe, as Sports Retail continues to expand in these terrdonies

Operating costs decreased by 5 3% to £63 1m (FY13 £66 6m) as we begin to beneft
fram the consohdation of our hack office functions, with bath Firetrap and Gelert now
fully integrated The full impact of the consolidation of back office functions actoss the
Brands division 15 expected to be felt in FY15 As a result of cost savings, underlying
EBITDA mcreased by 11 9% to £30 2m (FY13 £27 Om)

We continue to focus on developing world-class products that are endorsed by leading
athletes on the field of play and continue to invest in our key brands
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EMPLOYEES

The success of the Group has largely been
created by our ¢ 28,000 employees, whose
decication and commitment has been
sustained over many years Their enthusiasm
and “One Team' attitude has assisted the
Group to succeed where many other retailers
have failed The Board are extremely grateful
for the time that our employees have taken to
develop therr skills and expertise We promote
staff traiming whereves possible to enable our
employees to be the best that they can be

The 2009 and 2011 Employee Bonus Share
Schemes have been fundamental tools in the
motivation aad incentivisation of employees
Under the 2009 Employee Benus Share
Scheme ¢ 27 million shares vested with

our eligible employees Subject to achieving
the FY15 EBITDA target and satisfactory
personal performance a further ¢ 20 milhgn
shares are expacted to vest under the 2011
Employee Bonus Share Scheme

‘SPORTS DIRELT INTERNATIONAL PLC ] 7
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The 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme underfving EBITDA targets (hefore scheme costs), relate to performance between FY22 and FYLS The FY12 target of £215m, the F¥13
target of £250m and the FY14 target of £260m have ail been achieved The FY15 target 1s £300m (before scheme costs) and this final target combined with the individual
employee's satisfactory personal performance, must be achieved n order for the scheme to vest

Shares under the 201! Employee Bonus Share Scheme are due to vest in 2015 and 2017 Under the 2011 Emgloyee Bonus Share Scheme emplayees are eligible for awards on a
pro-rata basis depending on their length of service with the Group Awards under the 2011 scheme are granted at either 100%, 75%, 50% or 25% of the employees’ base pay
Subject to the performance cntenia being fulfilled, ¢ 5 millsan shares are due to vest in 2015 and ¢ 15 milhon shares are due to vestin 2017

An additional 3 million shares are due to vest with one of our Executive Ouectors and two members of senior management in 2017 under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme
subject to performance critema being fulfilled The Executve Banus Share Scheme performance targets mirror those to be applied to awards under the 2031 Employee Bonus

Share Scheme

As a result of the successes of previous schemes, the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme has been dewised to encourage further sutstanding employee performance The scheme will
provide for the grant of nil-cost options over up to 25 mitlien shares The vestings are dependant an particularly stretching performance entena spanning between FY16 and FY19
With targets of £480m for FY16, £570m for FY17 £650m for FY18 and £750m for FY19, the scheme has the potential to not only motivate employees but also te create a further

substantial increase in shareholder value

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL T0 THE BUSINESS OF THE SROUP

The Group has long-established relationships with Nike and adidas the major
suppliers of third-party branded sperting goods, and cansiders that continued supplies
{rom these compamies are entical to the busmess of the Group

EHVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Corporate Responsibiiity Report 15 on pages 20 to 23 and a review of the
assessmeni of the Group's impact on the envirgnment 18 inciuded 1n the Corporate
Respoasibility Repart on page 22

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Group s success depends on the strength of the Group brands and, to a lesser
extent the licensed-in brands

The Group s efforts to continually develop or obtan brands in a timely manner or at all
may be unsuccessful

QUTLOOK

Querall trading since the ygar end has been in ling with management s expectations
with some strenger weeks offset by England s disagpointing World Cup matches

The Group's performance continues te benefit from a number of factors including the
historic investment in gross margin investment in precuct range and availability
increased operating efficiencies and the continued gptimisation of the Group s in-store
and web product offer

Based on the performance to date, we are very confident of achieving the final EBITDA
target of £300m (before scheme costs) under the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme

Congistent with previous guidance we continue to target an underlying EBITDA
target of £360m (before the charge for the 2011 Employee & Executive Bonus
Share Schemes) The Group s success 1s underpnned by our core strategy oifenng
our customers & wide range of products which represent exceptional guality and
unbeatable value

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

17 July 2014
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The financial statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014 are presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the EU

SUMMARY OF RESULYS

52 waaks endsd
27 Agrd 2014 28 Apnl 2013
{tm} {im
Revenue 2,7060 21856
Underlying EBITDA 3311 2879
Underlying Profit Befare Tax 2433 2081
Reporied Profit Betore Taxation 2395 2072
Penca per share Pence per shate
Reported EPS 308 266
Underlying EPS 2 269

The Directors believe that undertying €BITDA enderlying pretit before tax and
underlying earnings per share provide mose useful information for sharehol ders on the
underlying performance of the business than the reported numbers and are consistent
with how business performance 15 measured internally They are not recogmised profit
measures under [FRS and may not be directly comparable with ‘adjusted’ profit
measures used by other companies

The realised exchange gamn of £1 8m (FY13 £2 3m gain) inciuded n admimstration
¢osts has ansen from

a accepting Dollars and Euros at the contracted rate, and

b the transiation of Dollars and Euro denominated assets and lsabilities at the period
end rate or date of realisation

The exchange loss of £11 2m (FY13 £2 Om loss) included in finance costs / income
substantially represents the reduction in the mark-to-market asset made (under

IFRS} for the Group's unhedged forward contracts as at 27 Aprd 2014 A number of

the forward contracts outstanding at 27 Apnd 2014 gualify for hedge accounting and
the fair value loss on these contracts of £21 6m has been debited to equity through
the Consohidated Statement of Comprehensive income The Group has sufficient USD/
GBP contracts to cover the majonity of purchases in UK Retal for FY15 and FY16 These
hedged contracts are at an average rate of USD / GBP 1 681

The Sterling exchange rate with the US dollar was $1 547 at 28 Apnil 2013 and $1 680
at 27 Apnl 2014

Given the potential impact of commod ity prices on raw matenal costs, the Group may
hedge certain input costs, including cetton crude ol and electricity going forward

EBITDA 15 earmings before investment income finance income and finance costs, tax FINAKCE COSTS
depreciation and amortisatsn and therefore includes the Group s share of prohit from
associated undertakings and joint ventures Underlying EBITDA 15 calculated as EBITDA 52 wooks enda
before the wmpact of foreign exchange, any exceptional or other non-trading stems and n """'&“I‘“‘] 23 A"”'é"f‘ﬂ’)
costs refating to the Employee Bonus Share Schemes ntorest on bank lans and overdrafts 75 66
EBITOA AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX Interest on other loans (06 06)
EBITOA{E m} PAT{E m} Interest on retirement benefit abigations (06) 05
Operating praofit 2491 - Fair value adjustment to forward foreign exchange 12 @20
Depreciation, amartisation and ymparrment 641 - contracts
Exceplional items 55 - {199) 87
Share of profit of associated undertakings 23 )
(excl FY adustments) The rise 10 Interest payable 15 a result of the increased use of the revolviag credit
Reported e 2395 facility and additional debt inhented from acquired companies The increase in the use
Bonus Share Scheme 119 - of the revolving credit facility 1$ attnbutable to the acquisitiens dunng the year and the
Impairment of fed asses N 03 investment 1n working capiel Geng forward, the Group nay lock to manage of hedge
its snterest exposures
Exceptional items - 55
Profit on disposal of investments - {54} The loss on the faie value of forward foreign exchange contracts anses under IFRS as
Realsed FX gain (18 {18} a result of marking te market at the perrod end those contracts that do not qualify for
1AS 39 FX fair value adjustment on forward ] 12 hedge accounting
currency contracts EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
l!nderlylng 21N 2493 52 weaks anded

Undertying 52 week FY14 profit before tax excludes

+ smpairments which decseased praht by FO 3m

1 exceptional items which decreased profit by £3 5m,

i profit ¢n dispesal of nvestments which increased profit by £5 4m,

ut realised forergn exchange gawns which increased profits by £1 &m, and

v 1ERS revaluation of foreign currency contracts which decreased profit by £11 2m
FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group manages the impact of currency movements through the use of forward

fived rate currency purchase and sales contracts The Groups policy is to hald or hedge
between zero and five years of anticipated purchases (n foreign cumrency

21 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013

(€ m (Em)

Profit on sale of intangible assets - 06
Impairment of assets {55) -
(5 3) 06

The impairment relates to assets 1n a newly acquired enlsty that were no longer
required post acquisition

TAXATION

The effective tax rate on profit before tax v Y14 was 25 0% (FY13 26 8%) This rate
reflects depreciztion on nan-gualifying assets and overseas earnings being taxed at a
higher rate
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EARNINGS
$2weeks ended
17 April 2014 28 A0l 2013 Change
{penca par share)  (pence per share) %}
Reported £EPS (Basic) 308 266 156
Undertying EPS 321 269 193
Waighted average number S85513.537 568971 942

of shares (actual)
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The movement in the fair value of the shares hefd has been recognised directly in
equity in accordance with IFRS Following the year end the Group

1 Entered into a derivatives agreement which gives the counter-party the nght to
acquire JO Sports shares from the Group at a premium to the current market price
angd

Acquired a further 1 965" JD Sports shares

{1)References to the numbe: of shares are based on the shares outstanding poor ta the recent J Sports shares

Basic earnings per share (EPS) ss calculated by dwiding the earmings attnbutable to
ordwnary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the actual financial period Shares held in Treasury and the Employee Benefit
Trust are excluded fram thus figure

The underlying £PS reflects the undertyng performance of the business compared with
the pricr year and ts calculated using the werghted average number of shares Itis
not a recogmised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with

In January the Group acquired a 4 6% stake in Debenhams Ple This stake was
subsequently sold at a profit and the Graup currently has a beneficial interest n a
£ 6% stake in Debenhams via a denvative agreement

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT
Net debt encreased by £58 Om from £154 Om at 28 Apnl 2013 to £212 Om at 27 Apnl
2014

The analysis of debt at 27 April 2014 was as follows

adjusted” profit measures used by other companies Al 2014 28 Apni 2013
(Em) {Em
The tems adjusted for arrving at the underdying profit after tax and mingnty interests
(s as follows Cash and cash equivalents 1510 147 4
57 wasks snded Borrowings (363 0) (3014)
27 Apri 7014 28 April 2013 et deht (2120 (154 0)
(Em) {tm)
Prof after tax 1802 1517 The Group continues to operate cemfortably within its bankang facilities and covenants
Post tax effect of 2djustment ttems The Group has recently signed a new £688m committed, unsecured revolving credit
Profit on disposal of histed investments 40 - facility which will remain i place untit September 2018
tmpairment of goodwill 03 22
Fair value adjustment to forward foreign B4 15 CASH FLOW
exchange contracts Total movement 1s as follows
Realised gain on forward foreign exchange (14) {19) 1 hprd ti“"n‘) 2“"”'(%“:'3,
contracts
Profit on sale of intangible assets {05) Undartying 52 week EBITDA 3311 279
g Realised profit on forward foreign exchange
Fair value adjustment within associated - {03) contracts 18 23
undertakings
tmpaurmenfof fixed assets 41 - Tases paid (53 7) a7
Underlying 52 week free cash flow 27112 245
Underlying profit after tax 1876 152 8 ying 3
Invested m -
DIVIDENDS Working capital and cther (1o {131 2}
The Board has decided not to propose a diwidend in relation to F¥14 The Board feels Purchase of own shares . @n
that it remains in the best interests of the Group ta preserve financial flexibility, Acquisitions (iacluding debt) (144 2) “ro
facihtating the pursuit of potential acquisition and other growth opportumties The Met of purchase of investments {45) 15
payment of dividends remams under rewiew i fulure years Net capital expenditure (691) {49 8)
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE Finance costs and other financing actwties 12 61
Increase in net debt (58 0) (88}

During the year camital expendsture amounted to £69 1m (FY13 £49 8m), which
in¢ludes expenditure on licences within istangible 2ssels

ACQUISITIONS
The Group made acquisitions during the year including the purchase of two European
subsidianies based in Austnia and the Baltic region

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

During the year the Group disposed of a small number of shases in ID Sperts and
Fashion plc bui at year end continued to hold an 11 81% stake in JD Sports The fai
value of the Group s holding at 27 April 2014 was £104 9m (28 Apnil 2013 £47 6m)
Duning the year 27 120 shares were sold resulting in 2 gain on dispesal of £0 3m

The increase in working capital 1s predominantly i inventory to support the growth of
Sports Retail and the online business

PENS{ONS

The Group operates a number of closed defined benefit schemes in the Dunlop
Slazenger companies The net deficit in these schemes decreased from £19 9m at 28
April 2013 to €15 4m at 27 Apnil 2014

Dave Forsey
Chief Exgcutive

17 luty 2014
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Corporate Responsibility 15 central to our vision to be an industry leader Qur established Corporate Responsibility framework focuses
on five key areas Employees, Health ang Safety, the Environment, Customers and the Community Sports Direct has developed Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) to ensure we deliver an our commitments These KPls are further discussed in this report and in the Chief
Executive’s Report and Business Review, and are based solely an our UK operations, unless expressly stated

EMPLOYEES

The loyalty and dedication of our employees has proven a key toal in the success
that we have enjoyed We wivest i our employees by developing them with ligh
standards of traming and structured career progression plans The Group requires
high calibre indwiduals who share the Group s ethos

Nurturing our employees and promoting them internally has been a tool which has
been used in the Group for over 30 years The success that can be achieved by this
method 15 evidenced by a number of our senior management team OQur graduate
witernship programmes, which offer paid internships, pesmanent roles and payment
of unversity fees, have helped te attract new talent

Yey Highlights
Total employees {total Group) 28,000
Hours mvested in training 50 000

*Exg|udes the recently acquired EAG & SIG

Attracting our Peaple

Our Emgloyee Bonus Share Schemes are utilised to attract, motivate and incentivise
employaes We have found that creating a shared goal has ymproved employee
satisfaction levels

We reward the hard work of our employees with Employee Bonus Share Schemes
Our Employee Bonus Share Schemes are dependant on the achievement of
pre-determined underlying EBITDA targets, as well as the satisfactory performance
of the individual emplayees The targets for the 2011 Emptoyee Bonus Share
Scheme are

2012 Underlying EBITDA of £215m - Achieved
2013 Underlysng EBITDA of £250m - Acheeved
2014 Underlying EBITDA of £260m - Achweved
2015 Underlying EBITDA of £300m

Three out of four of the 2011 Bonus Share Scheme targets have already been
achieved, and the fourth target 1s within reach C 27 million shares in total vested
under the 2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme, and a further ¢ 20 millon shares
are expected to vest under the 2011 Employee Bonus Share Scheme

We are committed to employmg the best possible people within the Group In an
effort to achieve this we offer a graduate internship programme The erght-week
programme offers graduates, covering key areas of the Group, the apportumty

to complete projects within the Growp and compete for prizes The pzes include
£10,000 1n cash, payment of final year University fees, and the opportunity to work
within the Group i a permanent role The scheme is paid with interns working on
projects simifar 1o those 1n a work eavirenment The programme ensures that we are

bringing 1n new talent and the Group 1$ constantly evolving with new ideas and ways

of thinking

Retaining our People

Employee satisfaction levels are constantly serutinised by the Group with employee
retention indicators being reported to the Board in every Board Pack The Group are
all too aware that retaining expenienced employees 15 truceal to s future success,
and we attach a significant amount of weight to this key performance indicator

During the year 19 2% of our UK employees have left the Group anincrease from
15 5% w1 FY13 The increase was expected 1o occur following the final vesting of
the 200G Employee Bonus Share Scheme However the figure remaing well below the
levels priof to the implementation of the scheme

SALARIED STAFF TURNOVER SINCE FY0$

FY03 FY1 1z FYL3 FYi4

The Group also has several policies and systems to 1w place to ensure employee
welfare 1s monrtored and maintamned These are lard cut in the diagram below

EQUAL GPFORTUMITY
& DIVERSITY POLICY

lan

TAILORED RIGHT TQ A
EMPLOYEE TRADE UNICN
HANDBODK

o L

STAFF FORUM

It vs smportant to Sports Direct that all employees are engaged, and that they convey
a consistent message to customers Delivering effective induction traimng 15 key

to this Inductions are pivotal to the Group, and without these there s a nisk that
employees will not understand comphance 1ssues and policies, resutting in poor
customer service and lost sales

Recently we have implemented a new, interactive induction programme for alk
employees, which ensures consistency and structure i foundation traiming The
traning takes place theough e-learming and compliments the exsting face to face
training that we offer This is the first in a planned suite of courses that will cover
all aspects of the Company s activities The respunsive framework (s aimed at
peing accessipie on the go, and thus enables llie Lourse 10 bie vinissd on tabiels,
smartphones and desktop computers
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Developing our People

The newly developed e-learning programme has also been tailored to re-energise our
existing employees in both the UK and Eurcpe The programme takes place through &
new open-source framewerk called Adapt 1t 15 one of the very first Adapt e-learning
courses, leading the way in this inngvative style of training

Throughout the year we have focused on defiming and delivering a competency
framework to drive a more holistic approach to measuring performante and
conducting our annual appraisals This has been supported by the creation of
Sports Direct 'Success Factors', which peowvide the bebaviours that lead to great
performance in individual job roles here at Sports Direct They include qualities and
skills that help people to be successful and dnve our corporate strategy More work
will be done n the coming year to embed the framework into all cur pecple practice,
from recruitment through to training

With the introductign of the new competency framework and appraisals, we have in
turn created a new mechanism of identifying and developing our talent across the
Group thus supporting our internal succession planning We have also worked on
developeng our recruitment website and processes to enhance our candidate journey
from application through to (nduction This uttimately improves our employer brand
and our capacity to attract the nght Jevel of skill, abihty and performance to the
Group 1o support our future growth plans

Home Grown 15 2 structured tatent management programme which provides
oppartunities for 1alented employees e pragress within the Group The programme
helps to retain talented employees and reduce external recrintment costs Following
the successful completion of the programme, exemplary employees will be offered
key possticns within the Group

Diversity

Diversity within the Group 1s an essential asset, and at all times we try tc ensure
that our employees meet the diversity cultures and values of cur vaned customer
base As the Group continues to expand into new countries and coatinents, we

find that the lacal knowledge of our employees 15 an important factor towards our
success We aim to develop the skilts of each of our employees in erder that they all
have oppartunities to pregress within the Group

Qur Board currently has a 14% female representation with further details being
shown on page 24 We are in the process of locking to recruit another female for
the Board although we consider that the necessary shills and experience are of

paramount importance with diversity being of lesser significance

29% of gur sen:or management team are female While we appreciate that work
could be dane to ensure that the figure 1s more balanced, we are satisfied that the
team possess the appropriate balance of skills and knowledge As positions become
available the necessary level of cons:deration will be given to ensuning diversity
within the team

48 1% of our overall UK employees are femate proving that discniminztion

for factors incleding gender will not be tolerated within the Group The law 13
paramount when we recruit employees and we aim to ensure that both male and
temale candidates are prowided with equal opportunities to apply for and work i all
positions across the Group

A breakdown of gender diversity within the Group

Male Female
Directors 6 1
Other senicr managers 32 13

Al UK employees 14,643 13577
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Nike Traiming

Sports Direct works exclusively with Nike to offer Nike training and the Nike Graduate
Scheme The robust traming programmes offered at our Shirebrook National Traiming
Facihity inform and train employees on product innovation and brand inihiatives

We remain a heavy user of Nike SKU (Sparts Knowtedge Underground) and continue
to be one of the worldwide front runners in terms of percentage completion for

a mutiple door retatler SKU provides another e-tearmng opportumity for the

Sports Direct team, which allows the employee to gasn some essential foundation
knowtedge on Nike products

The foundation knowledge gained by our employees 15 taken one step further on

the many Nike Training days hetd at the Shirebrogk National Training Facility The
days are hosted by the Nske Experts and extend the knowledge ganed from SKU to a
higher level via interactton and involvement The Nike Graduate scheme encourages
those whe attend the traiing day to transier their learning to the tn-store team

By doing so the Nike Graduates gain the recognmition of beceming 2 Nike Graduate
within their store

adidas and Puma Training

We continue to work closely with beth adidas and Puma to offer extensive training
programmes to support in-store initiatives and products The Puma training rooms
at our Shirebrook campus have been utihsed extensively since their opeming in FY13
The training programmes have continued to support in-store inimiatives and product
launches

Management induction Traimng

All new and existing store managers have attended a two-week residential induction
programme at our Shirebrook Head Office The tratning equips them with the
requisite skills for bfe in a Sports Direct store, and ensures that they have the
knowledge to perform in conjunction with our highest standards The programme
consists of a mixture of shop floor-based training and classroom centred activities
Typical areas covered focus on merchandssing, product training, admimstration,
delivery pracess, Health and Safety, shop opentng and closure processes, and retail
business skills

Management Development Training

Furthening the careers of our employees within the Group has been a key driver

in our success Our internal promotion programme 1s aimed at employees who
aspire to progress into opesational and managenial positions An important pan

of the trainang conststs of a five-day residential programme at our Sharebrook
campus, which consists of a combination of trainer-fad modutes The modules
focus on operational traimng and the style and behaviour measures that form part
of an employees role These cover areas such as communication leadershup, and
dec¢ision-making

Footwear Masterclass

Asmed at store managers respansible for the footwear department n their branch
the Footwear Masterclass 15 a three-day residentsal programme at our Shirebrook
campus Focusing on one of the key departments in a store typical subjects covered
in¢lude merchandising, staff efficiency, Health and Safety, best practice, and key
policies and procedures
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REALTH AND SAFETY

Sports Direct 15 commtted to appropnate standards of Health and Safety Qur Board
has ultimate responsibility for Health and Safety across the Group, and we regularly
review our procedures to ensure that safety management 1s robust The continued
emphasis on traiming in the busimess has improved awareness of reporting and
recording of incidents

Key Figures

« No environmental prosecutions or work-related fatalities, however one fire safety
prosecution

o InFY14,1419(2013 1,854) accidents were reported to Head Office, of which 85
(2013 67) were reportable to the Health and Safety Executive

« 80% of accidents occurred m store and 20% were ships, trips and falls

ENVIRDNMENT

We recogmse that we have a responsitlity to manage the impacl our business has on
the environment and we are committed to reducing this both now and in the future We
continue to comply with the Government s Carbon Reduction Commitment, and have
identidied key areas where we can make a difference 1n particular energy usage in our
stores, transport and waste management

Ve are continuously aiming 1o reduce our carbon foatprint The single most significant
glement 1s electnicity, which makes up 83% of the footprint The carbon footprint
spread across all UK sites is detarled in the chart below

Carben Footprint Anatysis 1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014

4

- Electnicity 83%

I oesel 10%
B omer 3%

While the growth of our Company has increased the number of our stores and therefore
the absolute GHG enusssons our chosen iatensity ratio of electneity-related emissions
per £m revenue of 0 9% has increased only stightly from our 2012 base, partly due to
the inclusion of a number of newly acquired companies

Greenhouse Gas (GHG)} Emissions Reporting

Reporting penod™ 1 Apnl 2013 - 31 March 2014

Basefine year Y12

Consolidation Operational control

approach

Boundary summary Al UK entities and faciities either owned or under
operational control were included Emissions from ar
condstioming and refrigeration umits are excluded due to the
cost of data collection These are expected to be a negligible
% ot scope | emissions

Caonsistency with Only UK companies have been included in this assessment

due to the ssgnificant changes and acquisitions 1n our
Eurapean operations, where the data 15 cusrently not readily

financial statements

availabla

Emission factor data  Defra (May 2013)

source

Assessment The Greenhouse Gas Protecal and IS0 14064-1 (2006}

methodology We have used the 2013 UK Government's GHG conversion
factors

Materiality threshold ~ Matenality was set at Graup level at 5% with all UK
facilities estemated 1o contnbute >0 5% of total emissions
ngluded '

intensity ratio Emissions per £m revenue

{11 The pmussions declared are for the perd 1 Apri 2013 - 31 March 2014 to be i line with the CRC Energy
Eihciency Scheme
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Scope 1 GHG emissions are calculated based on the purchased quantities of
commercial fuels using published emission factors Scope 2 GHG ennissiens are
primanly calculated from metered electeicity consumptian and pubhshed envssion
factors

C02 equivalent factors are used which ensures we have reported on all of the emission
sources required under the Companies Act 2006 Regulations

Year 2014

Scope 1 C02e emissions 11,206
Scope 2 C02e emissions 64 747
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 £02e emisstons {Tonnes) 75953

(02e Emissions {Tonnes/Em}* 368

{1) Nat including noo-UK revenus 1n hae with the G02s emissions reported

Thus 15 the first year of mandatory reporting of this data To provide analysis against
the prior year we have shown comparative data for etectricity-related emissions, which
accounts for 83% of our GHG erussions m the current year The table below details
Electricity vs Revenue and shows a pro rata increase of 5 5% across the year

Year 2013 2014
C02e Emissions from electricity (Tennes) 52,577 63,393
C02e Emissions from electricity (Tonngs/Em)™ 294 07
Electricity vs Sales Turnover Index {2012 100) 570 1015

(1) Nat including non-UK revence in [ne wilh the CO2e em:ssions reporied

Waste Reduction
We are actively reducing the amount of waste we send to landfill and segregate waste
to ensure that we recycle as much as possible

This year we recycled

7,099 umits of electrical equipment (2013 6 425 units)
78 tonnes of waste paper (2013 58 tonnes}

9,230 tonnes of cardboard (2013 8,893 tonnes)

147 tonnes of metal (2013 107 tonnes)

558 tonnes of plastic (2013 508 tonnes}

. & = » B

Al stores now use biodegradable carner bags and prowide the option of a “bag for
Iife’ This 1s actively promoted in-store through igh levels of employee engagement

Looking ahead, we will continue our commitment to mimmise waste and improve
energy efficiency across our stores

CUSTOMERS

Customer service 1s at the torefront of our business We aim %o prowde customers with
an enjoyable expenience both in-store and ontine and ensure all our products are safe
and fit for purpose

Monitoring customer satisfaction and responding to queries 1S a continuous process
Al written complaints are vecorded, including an analysis of the nature of the
complaint so that trands can be assessed and appropniate action taken

We have an online customer contact form that reduces the time it takes for our
custemers to contact us and ncreases the volume of contact Onliae communication
has reduced the amouat of time 1t takes for us to respond to cuenes thereby mcreasing
our service lavels, while reducng the peint and postage costs for both the Group and
c:ustgmers

We are continuously working {o improve customer service 2t ali Jevels withun the Group
from the retaik stores Head Office and through to our website
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In partnership with Mind Gym, a customer service programme has been developed and
rolled out fo all Sports Duect stores The concept of the programme s to engage, equip
and inspire our employees to serve well and sell well The programme has developed a
Sales Through Service concept which consists of five man principles {(STARS}

SMILE TALK ASK RECOMMEND  SALE

The programme has been cglled out to all store managers through a seminar and
supporting documents to further the learning experience $ince its inception we have
received positive feedback from those who have attended

COMMURITY

Supply Chamn

We are committed to responsible business practices in our own business and within
our supply chain We continue to procure merchandise from manufacturers who have
proved to uphold ethical employment and trading practices, and we have a strict Code
of Ethics that we require every supplier to adhere to The code provides for the fair
treatment of workers, ensurning a safe envirenment 1n accordance with the logal and
national laws where workers are treated with respect and paid fairly for what they de
The code also ensures there 1s no child labour and ne use of iltegal means or matenals
1n the production of gooeds

We have longstanding relabionships with our suppliers who have demonstirated that
therr work practices are consistent with Sports Direct's standards Approximately 40%
of our current suppliers have been working with the Company for L0 years or more

We have worked with two leading supply chain companies In Singapoze and South
Korea for 2 number of years Using their local knowledge and experience helps benefit
the business and the communities 1n which they operate Both businesses have the
mghest social and business ethics code which aligns with our own Code of Ethics, the
BSCI Cede of Conduct (which 1s based upon the United Nations Declaration of Human
Rights) and the Social Accountability 8000 {SAS000} Code

Sports Direct relies on those supply chain companies to inspect the premises of all
suppliers and manufacturers Frequent inspections are carned out randomly tc ensuse
that goods meet our quality stangards as well as assessing continued compliance with
SAB000 and our Cade of Ethics We cease immediately to work with suppliers who do
nat meet our cnter:a

We comply with an tnternationally recagnised hist of chemicals that are banned for
use in fabrics The supply chain companies conduct random tests on fabric which are
then taken to a recegmised laboratory for quality testing and to ensure that banned
chemicals are not being used

Chanty

Sport 15 our passion We believe that everyone should have a chance to participate in
sports and en)oy the health and lifestyle benefits it brings We provide a wide range of
equipment and clothing to promote sports participation amongst people of 2ll abilities
including those who would not normally have accaess to equipment and facilities

Slazenger ‘Chance to Shine

Slazenger 1s the exclusive cncket eguipment suppher to the country’s most recognised
grassroots cricket development programme, ‘Chance to Shine supported by Brit
Insurance Each project provides structured coaching and a competition programme
for 2 group of schools who would not have otherwise had the chante to participate

in the sport

By 2013 the programme had reached one third of all pnmary and secondary schoals
amounting to almost 7 000 schools and has supporied two million young people
almost half of whom ase girls Over £600 000 worth of cricke! equipment has been
supplied by Slazenger 1o enable the programme te run successfully
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Dunlop

Dunlop works together with its sponsared professional golfers Lee Westwood and
Dairen Clarke to supply clothing te thew ‘gol schools These are junior player
development schemes which provide qualiied cozching and mentaning to youngsters

QOver £40,000 werth of clothing has been provided through sponsarship to the schemes
so far

Lonsdale

Lonsdale is the Official Equipment and Fight Sports Apparel Supplier for all three
indivigual armed services in the UK consisting of the RAF the Army and the Royal Navy
Product to the value of £10 000 15 provided each year and used in competitions

At a grassroots level, Lonsdale 15 also 2 sponsor of the Amateur Boxing Association s
Junior and schoel boy finats and provides 100 pairs of golden gloves worth £2,500 to
the finalists

Everlast

Everlast supports a variety of orgamisations throughout the year, including both sparts-
onented and chantable programs A long-standing supporter of the mast prestigious
amateur boxing competition in the US, the New York Golden Gloves, Everlast 1s the
official fight glove and apparet spensor The organisation celebrated its 87th yearin
April and for the first time honoured 12 past greats with snduchion info the inaugural
Hall of Fame class

Everlast provides support to the D Theodore A Atlas Foundation, a non-prefit
nrganisation providing financeak assistance to indwiduals and programs in need with
a focus on youth In 2013 Everlast provided $3 000 to assist their youth programming

Since 2006, Everlast has also served as a proud supperter of The Breast Cancer
Research Foundation® (BCRF) Each year, Everlast donates a portion of the sale
pioceeds from selected pink products to help the foundation provide funding for
chimeal and genetic research Last year Everlast donated $116,342 to BCRF s research
efforts to find a cure

Antigua Group

Also 1n the US the Antigua Group has been a consistent supporter of 2 number of
chantable efforts, including The Salvation Army, Men Aganst Prostate Cancer and
The Phoenix Chilcren’s Hospital

The Antrgua Group alse provides significant suppert for lunsor Golf in Anzona Junier
piayer imtiatives include the Juntor Golf Association of Amenica ‘ Guls Golt through
the LPGA Foundation and The Antigua National High School Go'f tnwitational

The Strategic Report was approved by 2 duly authonised Committee of the Board of
Directors on 17 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive
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THE BOARD

DR KEITH HELLAWELLOPM @ @
Non-Execubtive Chairman, Chairman of Nommation Committee
Appomted 24 November 2009

Previous Roles Prior to soining the team at Sports Direct International ple, Or Hellaweld
spent over 40 years 1n public sector management being a former Chief Constable of
two British pofice farces While working direckly for the Prime Mimister between 1998
and 2002, he wrote and coordinated the United Kingdom national and international
anti-drugs policy

Present Roles Dr Hellaweil has been involved (n the private sector since 1998 when
he joined Evans of Leeds a fully isted property company Since then he has served

on the boards of both Dalkia plc and Sternence Limited, subsidianes of the Freach
company Veolia Env Dr Hellawell is currently a Non-Executive Director of Mortice plc, 2
Singapore-based facilities management company and a Durector of the Super-League
team Huddersheld Giants He was Non-Executie Chairman of Goldshweld Group plc, a
marketing-led pharmaceutical and consumer health company, from May 2006 to its
sale in December 2009 He has held a number of other Non-Executive Board positions
in private companies ncluding vehicle manufactuning and IT He alse runs s own
management and training consultancy company

Key Skills/Strengths Dr Hellawell has worked 10 both the public and private sector for
over 50 years Throughout this time he has built up a wealth of expenence which he
brings to the Group to ensure the successiul and effective operation of the Board

MIKE ASHLEY
Executve Deputy Chairman
Apponted 1982 (founder)

Previous Roles Mike established the business of the Group on leaving school in 1982
and was the sole owner untid the Group's listing i March 2007

Key Skills/Strengths Mike was the founder of the Group and has the necessary skills
tor formulating the visien and commercial strategy of the Group With over 30 years in
the sports retail business with Sparts Direct, he 15 mvaluable te the Group

DAVE FORSEY
Group Chief Executive
Appointed 1984

Key Skills/Strengths Dave has been with the business for over 30 years, duning
which time he has acquired sigificant knowledge and expenience of the sports retail
business [n comunchon with the Deputy Chairman, he agrees strategy appropriate
objectives and pohicies for each of the businesses Dave has overall responsibility for
the daily management of the Group

B0B MELLORS

Group Finance Director
Appointed 2004

Retired 31 Decamber 2013

Previous Roles A graduate in Economics, Bob qualied with PriceWatertouseCoupers
in London before joining Facokt Worrall where Sports Direct became a chient in 1982
He was Managiag Partner and Head of Cosporate Finance at Eacott Worralt before
jesning the Group

Key Skills/Strengths Bob qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
PriceWaterHouseCoopers and has extensive financial expenence Beb has extenswve
knowledge of Mergers and Acquisitions

GOVERNANCE

® fudit Committee @ Nomination Commitiee @ Remuneration Commitiee

SIMONBENTLEY w @ @
Semor Independent Non-Executive Director, Charman of Audit Committee
Appowmnted 02 March 2007

Previous Roles Simon qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1980 and in 1987 joined
Blacks Leisure Group Plc whese he was Charman and Chief Executive for 12 vears

Present Roles Simon chairs and 1s on the board of a range of compames and
organisations Among these, he 15 Chairman of the hasr brand Umberta Gianmini, is the
priacipal awner and Chairman of the leading mobile AT™ operator Cash an the Move,
and s Chairman of Yad Vashem — UK Foundation

Key Skills/Strengths He has lengthy experience of the sporting goods industry

DAVE SINGLETON e @ @
Non-Executive Director, Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Appointed 27 October 2007

Previows Roles Dave spent 25 years with Reebok International Limited He stepped
down (n Apnil 2007 having assisted with the successful integration of Reebok fallowing
its acquisttron by adidas Group 1n Janwary 2006 For eight years he was Vice President
of Northern Eurape Region & UK and then was Senior Vice President of Europe Middle
East & Afnca

Present Reles Dave 1s Chairman of Bolton Lads & Gurls Club Chairman of Bolton
Commumty Leisure Trust and a Trustee at Bolton Wanderers Community Trust

Key Skilis/Strengths Dave has an extensive Semor Management record and brings
vatuable expenence of international sports brand operatiens

CHARLESMCCREEVY m 0 @
Ron-Executive Director
Appoimnted 31 March 2011

Previous Roles Charles 1s a highly experienced po!itician who previously served as

EU Commussioner for internal Markets and Services between 2004-2010, and has held
pesitians in several Insh Government Miristenial Offces, including Mimister fer Finance
between 1997-2004, Mimister for Tounism & Trade between 1993-19%4 and Mimster for
Social Weltare from 1992-1993

Present Roles Charles currently holds Non-Executive Director pesitions at Ryanair
Holdings pic, Sentental Limited, Celsius Funds plc, Grove Limited and Barchester
Holdco (Jersey) Limited

Key Skils/Strengths Charles has extensive ali-iound business knowledge with
particular relevance to the European Union

CLAIRE JENKINS » @
Non-Executive Director
Appointed 25 May 2011

Previous Roles Claire s most recent Executive role was as Group Director Corporate
Affairs and a member of the Executive Leadershup Team, responsible for the company s
sustainability and communications activities, at Rexam plc, a leading global beverage
can maker Prior tothat she was a member of the Management Committee of
\nternational tobacce company Gallaher Group plc (acquired by Japan Tobaceo in 2007)
where she was responsible for investor relations and Group planming Claire has also
gained corpurate experience i1 various consulting reles and at Laing & Crnickshank,
and as a Non-Executsve Director of Retro Classics Fund

Present Rotes Claire 1s Chairman of Amicus, and a Non-Executive Directar of Media
For Development

Key Skills/Strengths Ciawe has excellent all-round business experience and, i
addibion, has particular corporate governance and communication skills
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The Directors of Sports Direct International ple present thewr Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 27 Apn! 2004

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Cheef Executive’s Report on pages 13 to 17 provides a detarled review of the Group's
current activities and patential future developments together with factors likely to aftect
future develepment performance and conditions There 15 also a table of the principal
risks and uncertainties likely to affect the Group The financial posstion of the Group,

its cash flow, hquidity position and borsowing facehities are described in the Financial
Review on pages 18 to 13 The Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 20 to 23
reports on environmental matters ncluding the impaci of the Growp s busimesses on the
environment the Group's employees and on social and community 1ssues

The principal activities of the Group duning the year remained unchanged and were

* retailing of sports and leisure clothing footwear and equipment,

o wholesale distribution and sale of sports and leisure clothing footwear and
equipment under Group-owned or licensed brands, and

= licensing of Group brands

Further tnformation of the Group’s principal activities 1s set out in the front of this
document and in the Chiet Executive's Repert on pages 13to 17

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014 was £2,706 Om and praftt before tax was
£239 5m compared with £2,185 6m and £207 2m in the prior year The trading results
for the year and the Group 5 financial position as at the end of the year are shown in the
attached Financial Statements, and discussed further i the Chief Executive s Report
and Business Review and in the Financial Review on pages 13 to 17 and 1810 19
respectively

The Board has determined not to recommend a dividend this year

SHARE CARITAL AKD CONTROL
The authonsed share capital of the Company s £100 000 000 dwided inta 993 500 010
ordinary shares of 10p each and 499,990 redeemable preference shares of 10p each

Further information regarding the Group s issted share capital can be found on page §3
of the financial statements

Datails of Execttive and employee share schemes are also set out on page 63 No votes
are cast in respect of the shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust and diidends would
be waived

There are 640 602 359 ordinary shares of 10p 10 (ssue and futly pa:d of which
42 137 508 are currently held in Treasury

There are no specific resirictions on the transfer of shares, which are governed bath by
the general provisions of the Articles of Assocration and prevaliag legistation

The Directors are not aware of any agreements hetween holders of the Company’s shares
that may result in restnictions on the transter of secunsties or on vating nights

The Directors were authonsed to allot shares in the capital of the Group vp to an
aggregate nominal amount of £19,948,829 {being approximately one third of the then
1ssued share capital) for the penod expining at 10 September 2014, the date of the next
2014 Annua! General Meeting

in line with gurdance from the Asscciation of British Insurers the Company was also
granted authonity 10 1ssue a further third of the issued share capital to a nominal
amount of £39,897,658 (being approximately 35% of the 1ssued share capital) n
connection with a nghts issue

A further authority $o allot shares up to 2 maxsmum nominal value of £2,592 324 (being
approximately 5% of the then 1ssued share capital) as if statutory pre-emption rights
did not apply was also approved

The authorities expire at the close of the next Anaual General Meeting of the Company
but a contract to 2!lot shares under these authorities may be made pror to the expiry of
the authonity and concluded 1n whole ar part after the Anaual Generat Meeting and at
that meeting other autherities will be sought fram shareholders

The Group was authonsed to make market purchases of ordinary shares of 10p eachin
the Company of up tc a maximum aggregate number 59,846,486 representing 10% of
the Gompany s 1ssued ordinary share capital at the 2013 Annual General Meeting The
above authority expires at the ¢lose of the next Anaual General Meeting of the Company

SHAREHOLDERS
No sharetiolder enjoys any special control nghts and except as set out below there are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of voting nghts

Mike Ashley has entered into a Relatienship Agreement with the Company Under the
terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley underiook that for so tong as he s entitled to
exercise or to control the exercise of 15% or more of the nights to vote at general
meetings of the Company he will

= conduct all transactions and relationships with any member of the Groupon arm s
length terms and on a normal commercial basts and with the approval of the Non
Executive Directors,

exercise his voting reghts or other rights in support of the Company being managed
in accerdance with the Listing Rules and the principles of good governance set out in
the UK Corperate Governance Code and not exercise any of his voting or other nights
and pawers {o procure any amendment {o the Articles of Association of the Company
other than through h:s mterest in the Company not have any mterest in any business
which sells sports apparel and equipment subject to certain rights, after notification
to the Company, to acquire any such 1nterest of less than 20% of the business
concerned and certain other hmited exceptions without recerving the sniar approval
of the Non-Executive Directors, and not solicit for emplayment or employ any semor
employee of the Company

The Company has been advised that the following parties had a significant girect or
indirect shareholding in the shares of the Cocmpany

Percentage of s3ued
ordinary thare capital

Number of sharss hold with voting rights hatd Nature of hatding
mslt*e:?.',‘""“ 345 400 000 5771% Direct
Ddey_ Ass_ei .

Management ¥ 47939325 801% Indirect
Black Rock 31,092,347 5 20% Indirect

(1) MASH Holdings Linited 13 wholly owned by Mike Rthley These figures are as at 17 July 2014

{2} Odey Assel Management tndirectly held 4 171 529 shares 15 a contract for differencs actoont These figures are
a1 a1 28 Ja~uary 2014 being the last dale on wiuch the Cempany was notibied of 2 change cf t“e pertentage of
shares held by Odey

(3) Black Rock indirectly held 4 556 303 shares in 2 contracl far différence aceount These figures are as al 02 June
2034 being the last date on which the Cosnpany was nct ied o a change of the percentage of shares held by Blagh
Rock

SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance ot maintaining good relationships with suppliers
and t 1s Group policy {o agree appropriate terms and condrtions for 1ts transactions with
supphiers (ranging frem standard written terms to indimidually negohiated contracts)
and for payment to be made in accordance with these terms, provided the supplier has
complied with its obligations

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

The Chief Executive s Report on pages 13 to 17 details information about persons with
whom the Group has contractual o7 other arangements and are deemed essentizl or
matenal to the business of the Group

TAKEOVERS

The Direciors do not believe that these are any sigmificant contracts that may change

in the event of a successful takeover of the Company Details ot the impact of any
successful takeover of the Group on the Directors bonus and share schemes are set out
1 the Director s Remuneration Report en pages 33 to 40

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

Details of the Executive Bonus Share Schemes are set out 1n the Directors Remuneration
Report on page 34 and details of the Employee Bonus Share Schemes on page 20 of the
Corporate Social Responsibihty Report




76 SPORTSDIRECT com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

R NRI

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group currently employees ¢ 28 000 emplayees in our stores offices and
warehouses The contributions that employees have made to the Groups
accomplishments have played a wital role, and the overwheiming dedication shown
has been the deciding factor in encouraging the Group to propose a third Bonus Share
Scheme

The 2009 Employee Bonus Share Scheme vested in August 2012 and 2013 The 2011
Employee Bonus Share Scheme 1s currently underway and three of the requisite
underlying EBITDA targets have been achieved with one target remaining

The 2015 Bonus Share Scheme has recently been approved by shareholders at a
General Meeting which took place on 2 July 2014 The EBITDA {argets for the Scheme
are extremely stretching and span from FY16 to FY19 Unlike previous schemes
participation for the Scheme 15 more wide-reaching being open fer both employees and
£xecutive Directors to take part

Employees are nobified of announcements and major changes in the business via
Campany news emails noticeboard announcements and infarmation transmitted
through line managers Emgloyee training programmes and our annual conference
allows employees an opportunity to increase their knowledge of the Group, fearn about
the Groups objectives for the future, understand the brands and engage with one
another

Further information on relationships with employeas can be found (a the Corporate
Social Responsib:lity Report en pages 20 to 21

EAUAL OPPORTUNITEES

The Groups palicy for employees and all apphicants for employment 1s to match the
capabilities and talents of each individual to the appropriate job Factars such as
gender, race religion of belief sexual orientation age, disability or ethmic angin
should be 1grored and any deciston which 1s made with regard to candidates should
be irrespective of these Discnimination 10 any form will not be tolerated under any
cirgumstances within the Group

Applications far employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration
for all vacancies, and are assessed m accordance with their partscular skills and
abilities The Group does all that 1s practicable to meet its responsibiiities towards
the traiming and employment of disabled people and to ensure that traming, career
development and promation opportunities are avallable to all empioyees

The Group makes every effort to provide continuity of employment where current
employees become disabled Attemots are made in every circumstance 1o provide
employment whether this involves adapting the current job rofe and remauning 1n the
same job or moving to a mere apprepriate ob role Job retraming and job adaptation
are just two examples of how the Group works in the interests of employees o promote
equal opportunitres in order that the employee s employment within the Group may
continue The Group values the knowledge and expertise that employees have gained
throughout therr employment with us and therefore does not wish to lose vaiued
employees

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Group designs clothing and some footwear for sale in stores and has arrangements
with supphers for the research and development of goods for the Brands division

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL BONATIONS

Dunng the year the Group made chantable donatiens of £146,562 {2013 £25,132)

in the UK No poittical denatigns were made (2013 nil) There have been 2 nymper of
further donations of sporting equspment made to worthy causes and these are set aut
on page 23

DIRECTORS
Details of current Directors, dates of appointment, their roles, responsibilities and
signihicant external commutments are set out on page 24

Although the Company s Articles of Associatin requie retirement by rotation of one
taird of Directars each year, the Graup has chosen to comply with the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code and at each Annual General Meeting all of the Birectors will retire ang
stand for reappointment

INTOIMATION 0N SEMVICE Conliatls diu ttdis ul e letesls ur the Diieuturs aitu thén
families in the shara capital of the Company at 27 Apnil 2014 and at the date of this
Report 1 shown in the Directors Remuneration Report on page 3%

GOVERNANCE

Capies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appomtment latters of
the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company s
registered office duning normal busmess hours and at the Anaual General Meeting

No Director has a directorship iIn comman or ether sigmificant finks with any other
Director {except in the case of the Executive Directors holding directorships of subsidiary
companies of the Group)

DIRECTORS' COKFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board has formal procedures ta deal with Directors’ conflicts of interest During the
year the Board reviewed and, where appropriate, approved certain situational conflacts
of interest that were reported to it by Directors and a register of those situational
conflicts 1s maintaned and reviewed The Board noted any transactianal conflicts of
interest concerming Directors that arose and were declared No Director took part in

the discussion or determinaticn of any matter 1n respect of which he had disclosed a
transactional conflict of interest

DIRECTORS INDEMKITIES

The Group have gianted the Directors with Qualitying Third-Party lademmity provisions
within the meaning given $o the term by Sections 234 and 235 of the 2006 Act Tisis
in respect of liabiities to which they may become liable in their capacity as Director
of the Company and of any Company within the Group Such indemmities were «n force
throughout the financial year and wilf remain in force

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2014 Annzal General Meeting will be held on 10 September 2014 at Unit D, Brook
Park East, Shirebrook NG20 8RY The Meeting will commence at 3 00pm The Board
encourages shareholders to attend and partictpate in the meeting

BOING CONCERX

The Company’s business actwities, together with the factors hikely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set out in the Busmess Review on pages 13
to b7

The tinancial position of the Company, its cash flows, hquidsty position and borrowing
facilities are described in the Financsal Review on pages 18 te 19 In addition the
financial statements mclude the Company s objectves policies and processes for
managing its capital its finangial nsk management abjectives details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit nsk and hquidity nsk

The Group 15 profitable highly cash genesative and has considerable financial
resources The Group 15 able ta aperate camfortably within its banking facilities aad
covenants, which run until September 2018, and 1s well placed to take advantage of
strategic opporiumties as they anse

As a consequence the Duectors behieve that the Group 15 well piaced to manage its
usiness risks successfully despite the continued uncertain ecoromic outloak

The Group's forecast and projections, taking account of reasonable possible changes in
trading performance show that the Groug should be able to operate within the level of
the current facility

The Directors have thoroughly reviewed the Group’s performance and position and the
Durectors are therefore confident that the Group will continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future On this 8asis, the Directors continue to adopt the going concera
basis for the preparatian of the Annual Report and financial statements

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statement by the Audite, can be feund on page 42 detaihag themreperting
responsibilities The Dicectars fulfi their responsibilities and these are set out in the
responsibility statement on page 41

ATITOR

Grant Thornton UK LLP have expressed a willingness to continue i office In accordance
with Section 489 (4) of the Companies Act 2006 resalutions to determine remuneration
are to be agreed at the Annual General Meeting

By Ouder of the Board

Cameron Disen
Company Secretary

17 July 2014
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The Group 1s committed to high standards of Corporate Governance The following section will detail how the UK Corporate Governance

Code has been applied dunng the year

CHAIRMAN S INTRDDUCTION

| am pleased to intreduce the Corporate Governance Statement, which contains
details of the activities of the Board and its Committees and how the Group
complied with the UK Cerporate Governance Cede 2012 for the year ended 27 Aprl
2014

During the year the Board undertook an external evaluation by an independent
consuftant to facilitale an accurate assessment The external evaluation was

atso aimed at assisting i the adoption of best practices wherever possible and
ensures that the Board have complied with the framework provided en the Corporate
Governance Code Aspects assessed during the evaluation in¢luded decision
making sirategic debate and risk management

I have found thal the culture and vatues of the Board are imperative for the
purposes of goed corporate governance The Board were more than willing to assist
the evaluator and the results of his evaluation were positive Further information on
the external evaluation can be found on page 29

Throughout FY14 we have spent a great deal of time considering how to achieve Lord
Dawies’ target of 25% of board members being female by 2015 The culture of the
Group s to promote mternal traiming and progression and ideally we woutd like to
sea our female members of management promoted up {o Executive Board levels as
and when vacancies anse Our Board is extremely diverse and the members' mutual
trust and understanding has been vital to the difficult decisions that they have
reached It 15 essential that any new member of the Board possesses the necessary
quahties in order to constructively challenge opinions and fit in with the Board's
attitude

The Group s strategy includes further international expansion, both in-store and
online We are aware that ontine 1s an impertant growth epportunity and we continue
1o invest n infrastructure and people to protect our online business As online
oenetration grows, the vulnerability of transactional websites 18 an sssue for all
onhine retailers Expertise in such a rapidly evolving area ts also recognised and
valued by the Board

The Board work together and individually to follow the Group s strategy and further
the interests of our shareholders The cleas leadership by the Board and sentor
management team has had a positive impact on the performance of the Greup and
the corresponding Share value

Key topics of discussion througheut the year have inciuded benus share schemes,
legal matters, appointments of key individuals and corparate governance matters
Additional details of the Group's strategy can be found on page 8

Ways i which the Board have furthered the interests of shareholders during the
year n¢lude meeting with major investors to discuss our corporate governance
procedures and discussing the quahties required for the Company Secretanal and
Finance Director positiens The appointment of our Head of Legal in the Company
Secretariat role has ensured that there is a clear flow ¢f information between the
two departments, and that the Board are fully informed of matenal legal matters
within the Group as they anse An external search consultancy was not used for the
appontment as it was concluded that the Head of Legal already had the requisite
knowledge of the Group in order to be best suited to the appointment An external
search consultancy has been engaged for the recriitment of the Finance Director
role The consultancy that have been engaged do not have any interest or formal
connection with the Group

As weli as holding full Board and Committee meetings, Non-Executive meetings
have also taken place threughout the year The Non-Executive meetings allow the
Nan-Executive Directors to discuss 2 range of issues without the influgnce of the
Executve Directors The Semior Independent Non-Executive Director, Simon Bentley,
also facilitates the independence of the Board Amongst his powers he s able

t0 add items to meeting agendas and he 1s vocal in ensuning a balance in the

powers of the Board During the year one meeting has been held solety for the Non-
Executives 1n the absence of the Chairman This has enabled the Non Executives to
discuss a range of matters with the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

As 2 major employer 1n the UK we are canstantly locking for new talent to join the
Group During the year we have attracted new employees, with fresh (deas by
offenng an employee internshup schems The scheme 1s paid and offers interns the
cpportunity to work {owards cash rewards and permanent roles The scheme has
already commenced for FY15, extending its remit and now offenng internstups for up
to 90 people i three key areas of the Group Further details an the scheme can be
found on page 20

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The overall responsibihity for the Groups nsk management and internal controls
systems sits with the Board Thes 15 an on-going process which relates to the
identification, evaluation, management and monitoring of sigmficant nsks This
complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Beard 1s subject to the fatest Corporate Governance Code which was issued in
September 2012 The mair principles of the Code are

Leadership

Etfectiveness
Accountability
Remunerations

Relations with Shareholders

The Board has reviewed the Company s corporate governance processes and policies
and has concluded that during the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014 (the year) the
Cempany complied with the prowvisions of the Code

THE BOARD

The Board consists of a Non-Executive Chairman, Keith Hellawell the Executive
Deputy Chawrman Mike Ashtey, one other Executive Directer and four further Non-
Executive Diecters The rames shkills and shorl Biographies of each member of the
Board are set out on page 24

The size aed composition of the Board are regutarly reviewed by the Board to ensure
that there 1s the apprapniate batance of skills and experience

Role of the Board

The role of the Board 15 to ansure the overall long-term success of the Group This s
achieved through the review, development and implementation of the Group s strategy
The Board alsc maintains responsibility for corporate responsebibity accountability and
to ensure effective leadership 15 delegated to management for the day to day runming
of the Group and ensures an appropnate strategy 1s in place for succession planning

The Board has 2 programme in place to enable it to discharge its responsibility of
providing effective and entrepreneunal leadership to the Group within a framework of
prudent and effective controls

The Board plans to meet on a formal bas:s six times during the year with up to four
additional stratepy meetings at convement times throughout the year when broader
issues concerming the strategie future of the Group will be discussed The Baard will
meet on ather accasions as and when the business demands Duning the year the
Board met on 10 occasions

A detailed agenda 1s established for each meeting and appropriate documentation 1s |
provided to Directors in advance of the meeting Regular Board meetings provide an
agenda that will include reports from the Chief Executive, reports on the performance
of the business and current trading reports on meetings with investors, reports from
Gommittees of the Board and specific praposals where the approval ef the Board

1s sought The Board wili monitor and question monthly performance and review
anticipated results




78 SPORTSDIRECT com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ToATINUTD

Presentations are also given on business or strategic 1ssues where appropnate, and
the Board w1l consider at least annually the strategy for the Group Mnutes of the
meetings of Commuttees of the Board are circulated to ail members of the Board
unless a conflict af interest anses, to enable all Directors to have oversight of those
matters detegated to Commuttees, and copies of analysts’ reports and brokers’ notes
are provided to Directors

I an effart to secure the long-term future of the Group, the Board have ceeated a high
performance culture within the Group by dewising Employee Bonus Share Schemes as
well as a share scheme for senior members of management

It 15 the respensibility of the Directors to ensure that the accounts are prepared and
submitted Having assessed the current Annual Report along with the accounts the
Directors confirm that, taken as a whole they are fair, balanced and understandable
The Directors authonse that these decuments provide the necessary information

in order for shareholders ta assess the Group's performance, business medel and
strategy

Key Activities

* Epsuning the long-term success of the Group

* Considening the obligations 1o shareholders and other stakeholders

« Considening the effect the Group’s activities have on the environment and
community in which 1§ operates

* Maintaining a high business reputation

« Maintaiming relationships with suppliers customers and the wider commumity

There 1s a formal schedule of matters that requice Beard approval they are matters
that could have significant strategic financial or reputational effects on the Group as
a whole

Matters Reserved for the Board

Sets budgets

Monitors and reviews strategy and business performance

Approves acquisitions expansions into other regions / countries

Appointments and removal of Board members

Succession planning

Overall responsibility for internal controt and nsk management as described on
pages 29 to 30

The Chairman and Executive Directors

The division of responsibilities between the Non-Executive Chairman the Executive
Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive 1s i writing and has been agreed by the
Board However they work closely together to ensure effective decision making and the
sugcessful delivery of the Group s strategy

The Chairman 1s respensible for leadershap of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness
and that all Directors are able to play a full part n the activities of the Company He
ensures that the Directors recewve accurate timely and clear information

The Chaman officiates effective communication with shareholders and ensures that
the Board understands the views of maor investors and 1s avatlable to provide advice
and support to members of the Executive team

The Executve Deputy Chairman 1s an ambassador for the Company He takes the lead
in the strategic development of the Company, formulating the vision and strategy
which he does 1n conjunction with the Chief Executive

The Company has entered mto a Relatwnship Agreement with Mike Ashiey, the
Executive Deputy Chairman whose wholly-owned company, MASH Holdings Limited,
currentiy holds appraximately 57 7% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company
{excluding treasury shares} This agreement 15 described in the Directors’ Repart on
page 25

The Chief Executive 1s respansible for the running of the Group's business for the
delvery of the strategy, leading the management team and implementing spectic
decisions made by the Board to help meet sharghoider expectations The Chief
Executive reposts to each Board meeting on all matenal matters affecting the Group's
gerformance No one individual has unfettered power of decision

GOVERNANGE

Given the structure of the Board the fact that the Chairman and Chief Executive roles
are fulfilled by two separate individuats and the terms of the Relationship Agreement
with Mike Ashley, the Board believes that no indwidual or small group of individuzls
¢an dominate the Board § decsion making

The Non-Executive Directors

The Board censists of four Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman The role of the
Non-Executive Directors 1s to understand the Group 10 it entirety and constructively
challenge strategy and management performance set Executive remuneration levels
and ensure an appropriate succession plarning strategy s 1n place They must also
ensure they are satishied with the accuracy of financial information and that thorough
nsk management processes are In place

The Non-Executive Directors have excellent expenence from a wide range of sectors
The Non-Executive Directors assist the Board with 1ssues such as governance, wnternal
cantrol, remuneration and nsk management

Simon Bentley 1s the Semior Independent Non-Executwe Director He supports the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors and 1s available to sharehalders if they have
CONCErns

The Non-Executive Directors — Externat Appointments

Non-Executive Directors are required to disclose prior appointments and oiher
significant commitments to the Board and are required to (nform the Board of any
changes to or addibonal commitments Details of the Non-Executives Directors
external appointments can be found on page 24

Before accepting rew appointments Non-Executive Directors are required to obtain
approval from the Chairman, and the Charman requires the appraval of the whole
Board It s essential that no appomtment causes a conflict of interest or jeopardises
the Non-Executive Director's commitment and time spent with the Group n ther
existing appaintment

The Non-Executive Directors — Independence
The Group considers the Non-Executive Directors to be independent v accordance with
the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code

Each year the Board evaluations consider the independence of each Board member
The most secent evaluations did not highhght any Directors who lacked independence
Although the Board have remained constant for some time the longest-serving
member of the Board has been with the Board for seven years this bewng less than the
nine year pened after which independence 15 questioned

Executive and Non-Executive hirectors - Conflicts of Interest

The Board has set procedures to deal with Directors conflicts of interest that anse
During the year the Board reviewed and, where appropnate, approved cerlain
situational conflicts of nterest that were reparted to t by Oirectors, and a register
of thase situational conflicts +s maintained and reviewed The Board noted any
transactional conflicts of nterest concermng Directors that arose and were declared
Mo Director took part 1n the discussion or determination of any matter in respect of
whuch he ha¢ disclosed a transactional conflict of nterest

Executive and Non-Executive Directars - Re-election
The Group complies with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code and all Directors
offer themselves for re-election every year

The Board have determined that all Directors must put themselves forward for election
ar re plaction at the 2014 Annyal Canaral Meeting to comply with the UK Gorporate
Governance Code Retinng Directors may seek reappowntment if willing and eligible to
do 50 and if so recommended by the Nomunation Committee A1l Directors appmnted by
the Board are appointed after consideration of the recommendations of the Romination
Committee, and those so appointed must stand for reappointment at the following
2014 Annual General Meeting

Hon-Executive Disectos Charles McCreevy has iaformed the Board that he will nod
stand for re-election at the 2014 Annual General Meeting His retirement will therefore
become effective at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting

Detadls of Executive Directors’ service contracts and of the Chairman’s and the Non-
Execute Dirertnrs annoiniment Ietlers are given on pages 36 to 37 Copies of service
contracts and of appeintment letters are available for inspection at the Company's
registered office dunng normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting
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Executive and Non-Executive - Traiming and Development

All newly appointed urectors are provided with a tarored induclion programme based
on their exsting skifls and expenience The Board 15 also informed of any matena!
changes to laws and regulations affecting the Group s business

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and
each Director and each Board Committee may take independent professional advice
at the Company s expense subject to pnot notrfication to the other Non-Execulive
Directors and the Company Secretary Fhe Company maintains appropriate Directors
and Otficers Insurance

Executive and Non Executive Directors Performance Evaluation

There 15 a formal process in place for the performance evaluation of the Board its
Commitiees and sadsnidual Direciors Each Director 15 piven the oppartumity to express
their views on the argamisation and operation of the Board and s Commidtess ther
eflectiveness and contribution 1o the business and gn any other matter they conseder
relevant

The evaluator that was selected by the Board was NJMD Corporaie Services Limited
which 15 a speciatist consultancy led by Migel Davies

BRARD COMMITTEES

To assisl the Board with thewr duties there are three principal Board Committees being
the Audit Cammitiee the Remuneration Commiltee and the Nommation Committeg

The Commutiges are governed by terms of reference which provide detadl of matiers
delegated to each Committee and the authonty they have 1o make decisions Full terms
of reference are available an request and on the Companys websile

Attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings during the year and the
lotal number of meetings that they could have attended are set out in the table below
Al Directors attended all meetings of the Board and of Committees of the Board of
which they were members unless prevented from doing so by prior commitments The
Boarid 15 sabisfied that currently no one Director exercises a disproportionate influence

@

fadt Remumeration Nomsnation
Board Commitiee Committee Carsmites
Meetings Mesetings Meetings Meetings
Keith Hellawel! 10710 330 41 111
Mike Ashiey A0 - -
Simon Bentley 10410 33 A4 /1
Dave Farsey 10710 3 44! i
Dave Singleton 10110 33 40 i1
Claie Jenkins 8/10 343 Af4 1w
Charles McCreavy /10 373 N 171
Bob Mellors” 10 130 24
(1) A nunber of Aydi| G #t Codmtter and N tion Commiter meetings were aftended by

Board membns wis we 2 nat wembers of (ba Comm itees T~z Board membars concesned atiended trese meetings
atthe - labon et the Co—m thee membe ¢

(21 Meetings atlended by Bob Mellors up art | hes rekerement on 31 December 2013

Duning the year the addHional Board meetings were also held in order {0 attend to
urgent matters which 2rose between scheduled meetings Following unscheduled
meetings all absent members of the requisste Committees subseguently reviewed and
endorsed the decsions made This ensured that all members could have their thoughts
recorded even though they weren t available duning Lhe meeting stsal}

Theie were a number of meetings throughout the year which were salely far Non-
Executives Meetings alsa took place which were atiended by Non-Execulives allhough
the Non-Executive Chairman was not able to atiend These meetings enabled the

Hon Executives fo discuss matters which they perhaps could not discuss with the
Executives andfor the Non Executwe Chairman present

RUHLAL REPOR] &R0 ACCNUNTY 20 ¢

AUBIT COMMITTEE
Dear Sharehokler

| am pieased to present the Audit Commitee Report for 1he 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl
2014

The Audit Commttee kas an important role to play in effective reporting to our
stakeholders and ensuning high standards of quality and effectiveness in the external
audn process and this year has seen the introduction of many changes to corporate
reporting

This ceport provides an overvigw of

= what the Commttee has doae during the year and whal s plarned for 2015

« how I has assessed the effectiveness of the external 2uditars tnclrding ensuring
thew independence and

o {ha Commitiee s opinion on the Annual Report when viewed as a whale

Membership

The Audit Committee campnises me as Chairman and all of {he independent Non-
Executive Directors Biographical detatls of each member are shown w the Baard of
Diwectors profilos on page 24 All of the members of the Sommittee aie considered
independent

Mestings

The Commitiee met three times dunng the year and attendance at thase meetings Is
shawn on page 29 withsn the Corporate Governance Report At the invitation of the
Commitlee members the Group Chasrman Cheef Executive ant Finance Director attend
Committee meetings 3s do the external audtors After each of its meetings we met
with the external auditors i each case without the presence of Executive Directors ar
management [n addition | meet with the audrlors as and when 1t 1s needed

The main responsibelibies of the Audst Committee include

= Assisting the Board with the discharge of iis responsibiities in relation {0 ntermal
and external audits and controls

Agseemng the scope of the annual audit and the annual audst plan and monmitering
the same

Reviewing and monrtoning the independance of 1he exiernal audslors and
relatianshups with them and in particular agreeing 2nd manrtoring the extent af the
ron-audit work that may be undertaken

Womitering, making judgemenls and recommendations on the inancial reporbing
process ang the wtegrity and clanty of the Group s fimancial statements
Reviewing and manttareng the effectiveness of the internal control and iesh
managemerl, pelicies and systems 1n place

Momitenng the audit of the annual and consolidated accqunts

Reporting to the Board an how it has discharged its responsibilities

»

What has the Commuttee done during the year?

* Monitored the effectiveness of internal controls and 4lso considered the current
economic ¢himate and ifs ltkely tmpact on the Group

* Considered the reappointment of the auditors

= Reviewed accounting polivies presentainns and the financial statements

Iniernal Gontrals
As one of the fastest-growing retailers with a rapudly expanding overseas and iteinet
operalions we have mapy complex operational risks lo manage

The internal audil reviews led by the long established Retail Suppart Unit have led the
way through their audits across the relail aperations each year i providing comfor
over the efficiency af controls over che operational Jrecedures and systems which help
10 generate and repart the numbers within the finantial statements and will continue
10 do s0

We are however conscious of the rate of growth and complexits Lahing place and have
therefore recently appeinted BDO as mternal audit advisers BDO have specizhsts
experienced in auditing the strategies and plans put in place to miligate nsks to
further strengthen the control enviranment

BOO will conduct & review of our key risks and develep a strategic audit plarn te pravide
assurance to the Audit Committee regarding the management of these key nisks over
the next three to five years This plan wili be presented tu the Audn Commetee for
approval and agreement of a detaited annual programme

TT®
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The Committee has delegated responsibility from the Board for considesing operational,
financial and compliange nisks on a regufar basis Informatian on the Group's approach
to internal control and nisk management 1 set out 1n the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 27 to 32

External auditors

On an annual basis, the Cammittee considers the reappointment of the asditors

and thewr remuneration and makes recommendations to the Board The auduors are
appomted each year at the Annval General Meeting The Commuttee consider the level
of service provided by the aeditors and their independence

The Commuittee has recommended the reappointment of Grant Thornton UK LLP
for FY15 The Committee took a number of factors into account in ds assessment
including but not imited to

» the quahty and scope of the planming of the audd 1n assessing nsks and haw the
external auditors planned to evolve the audit to respond to changes in the business,

= the quality and timeliness of reports provided to the Committee and the Beard,

the level of understanding demonstrated of the Group s busmesses and the retall

sector

= the objectivity of the external auditors' views on the controls around the Group and
the rabustness of chaltenge and findings on areas which required management
Judgement

The Commuitee’s view following this assessment was positie in relation to ther
evaluation of the work of the exdernal auditors and they felt that high standards had
been maintained

After takiag into account all of the above factors the Committee concluded that the
external auditors were effective

The Committee believes their independence, the objectivity of the externat audit
and the effectiveness of the audit pracess is safeguarded and remains strang This
15 displayed through their robust internal processes, their continuing chailenge,
thew focused teporting and their discussions with bath management and the Audit
Commuittee

To maintain the objectrvity of the audit process, the external auditors are required to
rotate audit partners for the Group audit every five years and the current lead pariner
has been in place for one year Under the Corporate Governance Code 2012, audit
services must be put to tender at least every ten years or else we must explain why we
have not done so Our current auditors, namely Grant Thornton UK LLP have beer in
place since the hsting s February 2007

The Committee has approved a policy on the engagement of the externa auditors
for non-audit work, in order to ensure that the objectivity of the auditors’ apinion on
the Group's financial statements is not or may nat be seen ta be impared, and has
established a process to monitor compliance

The policy wentified three categories of potential wark

Auditor Autharity

Work the auditor may not provide
as completing the task could
create a threat to independence

Type of Work

The work includes the preparation of accountmg
entries of financial statements, 17 systems design
and implementation management of projects

and tax planning where the outcome would have

a maieral impact on the hnancial statemens or
where e puicome IS dependent upon accounting
treatment

Corporate finance services acquisition gue dihigence
management consultancy and secondment of staff
ather than for the preparation of accounting entries
or financial statements

Work the auditor may undertake
with the consent of the Chairman
of the Audit Committee

There are services that the auditors may provide
as the work 1s clearly audit-retated and there I1s

n potential threat to independence, sncluding
regulatery reporling and acting as reporting
accountants The Company 1s satisfied that its
nohiey falls wathin the requirements of the Auditing
Practices Board

Work the auditor may undertake

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed accounting policies, presentations and the financial statements
Foliewing the revision to the UK Corporate Governance Code, which applies to financial
years commencing on or after 1 October 2012, the Board asked the Committee to
advise on whether the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole

were fair, balanced and understandable and proviced the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's business model, strategy and performance The
Committee reviewed the process for prepanng the annual report and accounting
statements This process included the following key elements

» Review of new reguiations and reporting requirements with external adwisers to

identify additional snfarmation and disclosures that may be appropnate

Preparation of a detailed timetable and allocation of drafting responsibility to

relevant internal teams with review by an appropriate senior manager

Provision of an explanation of the requirements of “fair, balanced and

understandabte tothose with drafting responsibidy

Monitoring of the integnity of the financial statements and other mfermation

provided to shareholders to ensure they represented a clear and accurate

assessment ef the Group s financial performance and positien

Review of signticant financial reporting 15sues and judgements contaned in the

financial statements

Review of all sections of the report by relevant external advisers

« Review by senior manager working group responsible for the annual report process

Interim progress review of process and report content with the Audit Commigtee

* Review of a paper presented to the Committee which set out to review the contents
of the annual report and substantiate why it provided a fair, balanced and
understandable view of the year under review

The Commuttee reviewed the Annual Report and has confirmed it 1s faw, balanced and
understandable

Financial reporting
The Committee’s review of the intenim and full year financial statements focused on the
tollowing areas of significance

o Acquisiion accounting - the Comnuttee provided a robust challenge to
management over the judgments formed tn respect of the accounbing for the
acquisition of EAG and SIG during the year including the assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired The Committee 15 satisfied that
the selated disclesures appropriately reflect these assessments, as well as the
underlying strategic rationale

« Intangibles mparment assessment - the Committee considered the key

judgements iacluding the discount rate long-term growth iate and the projecied

future cash flows of each cash-generating umt to which goedwill 15 allocated, based
upon financral pians approved by the Board The Commuttee 15 salished with the
methodology and assumptions used, and the conclusion that the Group s mfangible
assets are not impaired

Carrying value of imventory - the Commuttee has reviewed management s paper

setting out the basts on which the inveatory provision 15 catculated and 1s satisfied

with the reasonableness and consistency of model apphed and that stock 1s held at
the lower of cost and net realisable value

The Audit Committee are satishied with the level of nger applied by the external
auditors 1n addressing these areas as part of the audit pracedures

Looking ahead to FY1S with the further assistance that can be expected following the
appomtment of 800 as internal auditors the Audit Committee will ensure appropnate
internal contrc! pracedures are i place as the Group continues to graw

Simon Bentley
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Semor Independent Non-Executive Director

17 July 2014
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Directors who served on the Committee during the year were

Dave Swingleton {Chawman)
Simon Bentley

Keith Hellawell

Charles McCreevy

Claire Jenkins

The Remuneraticn Committee assists the Board to ensure appropriate levels of pay
and benefits are i place for Executive and Non-Executive Directors A key priority 15

10 ensure that remuneration policy 1s ahgned with strategy te achieve the long-term
success of the Group The Committee ensures that it complies with the requirements of
regulatory and governance bodies including the UK Corporate Governance Code whilst
meeting shareholder and employee expectations All members of the Committee are
Non-Executive Directors and are coasidered independent

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include

* Determining the Company s policy on Executive remuneration including
the design of bonus schemes and targets and payments made thereunder

» Determining the levels of remuneration for the Chairman and each of the Executive
Directors

» Montoring the remuneraticr of Senior Management and making recommendations
In respect thereof

= fgreeing any compensation for loss of office of any Executive Derector

The Remuneration Committee meets at least three times a year and met on three
occasions during the year

A report on the remuneration of Directors appears on pages 33 to 40
What has the Committee done during the year?

* Reviewed Executive remuneration to include salanes and bonuses
* Reviewed and approved the Directors Remuneration Report contamed
on pages 33 o 40

Full details ¢f Directors remuneration can be found in the Remuneration Report on
page 38

Dave Smgleton
Chairmar of the Remuneration Committee

17 July 2014
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HOMINATION COMMITTEE

As Chawrman of the Nomsnation Committee, | lead the process for the appointment of

new Board members with the overall decision being that of the Board We have seen a

change n the Board over the course of the year following the resignation of Bob Mellors |
due to ill health Bob had been with the Group fer almost 10 years when he resigned !
and the knowledge that he had amassed duning that time was invaluable The loss

of Bob by the Graup has left a knowledge gap in the Board which will be difficult to

replace

There are a number of factors that must be taken into account when considering
Board appointments, including age, ethnicity and nationality Afthough the targets
for diversity of the Davies Report must de awarced apprepriate recegrition, so must
the requirements of the Group The Group s expansion into new markets with differing
customer bases must be awarded appropriate consideration upen appointing new
Board members with any new appointee requinng knowledge of the challenges
invelved in breaking into new markets and an awareness of the changing business
landscape

There 1s a strategy within the Group for improving the gender imbalance of the Board
and rt1s our overall arm fo aurture gur i house tatent However we are open to
recruiting external Board members where specific knowledge cannot be found (n-house
We aim to attract the most number of recruits by utilising a number of different
reciuitment methods including head hunters word of mouth and advertising

Members of the Nomination Commttee during the year were

Keith Hellawell {Charwrman}
Simon Bentley

Dave Singleton

Gharles McCreevy

The Noeminaticn Committee will meet at least once a year and w:ll also meet when
appropriate The Commttee met on one gecasion during the vear although met
informally on a number of further occaswons in order to discuss the agpointment of
a replacement Finance Director All of the Nomination Committee members are Non-
Executive Directors and considered independent

The responsiilities of the Hommation Camrmttee include

* Review the Board s structure

+ Review the composition and make up of the Board, including evaluating the balance
of skills, knowlecge and expenence of the members of the Board

s Give consideration to succession planmng for Directors

Prepare a description of the rele and capzbilities requived for any Board

appointment

Make recommendations to the Board concerning the standing for reappointment of

Directors

Identify potential candidates te be appointed as Birectors, and make

recommendations to the Beard as the need may anse

The Board has established a Nomination Committee to ensure a formal, rigorous

and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board The
composition of that Committee and a description of its terms of reference are set out on
the Sports Direct international plc website

The Nem:nation Committee also determines successton plans for the Chairman and
the Chief Executive who are not present at meetings when the matter 15 discussed
Succession plans are reviewed by the Nomination Committee at least once a year

Dave Forsey, the Chief Executive will usually attend meetings of the Nomination
Commitiee, unless the Nominatien Committee (s dealing with matters ralating to him or
with the appointment of his successor

The Bozrd believes that the Board and its Committees as currently constituted are
working well

Dr Kesth Hellawell QPM
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Chairman of the Board

17 july 2014
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UK BRIBERY ACT

The Group has an approved palicy 1n place which was created fetlowing the
introduction of the UK Bribery Act As a result of the Act, all policies and procedures
have been reviewed to ensure that they comply with the Act and measures are in place
to prevent employees accepting bribes

BUSINESS MGDEL

Our business model, which sets out the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves value over the longer term, and the strategy for delivening the objectives of
the Company can be found at pages 7 and 8

WHISTLE-BLOWIRG
There 15 a formal whistle-blowing policy 1n place for employees who wish to raise
1ssues or concerns relating to the Group's activities on a confidential basis

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognise the importance of communicating with shareholders This 1s done
through the Annual Report and financial statements, intenm statements and trading
updates All Directors are available at the Annual General Meeting when shareholders
have the opportunity to ask questions

The Chairman and the Chief Executive regularly meet with the Company s institutional
shareholders to discuss the Group's strategy and financial performance within the
constraints of information already available to the public The Semior Independent Non-
Executive Director 1s also avartable to meet with shareholders

The Company's website is an important method of communication and holds all
matenal mformation reported to the Landon Stock Exchange together with copies of
financial reports, intenm management statements and trading updates

During the year members of the Board and semior management have met with
shareholders in ¢rder to discuss their questions and concerns The meetings have
been considered an opportunity not only to recognise the views of shareho!ders but
also for sharcholders to fully understand the premise of the business The shareholder
meetings that have taken piace throughout the year include face to face Non-Executive
Director Meetings, telephone discussions, regional visits and overseas visits

REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Commttee 1s responsible for determining and reviewing
remuneration policy and setting remuneration fevels See Remuneration Report on
pages 33 to )
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SHARE DEALING COBE
The Group has adopted the Model Code as published n the UK Listing Rules

Anyone deemed to have 'insider (nformation must seek consent before dealing in the
Group's shares

The Executive Directors requre the consent of the Chairman or the Semior Independent
Director and the Chairman requires consent from the Chief Executive and the Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director Any other employees with insider information
must gain the consent of the Chief Executrve or Company Secretary before dealing in
the Group’s shares

Details cencerning the share capital structure of the Company can 9e found in the
Director s Report on pages 25to 26

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key features of the Group s system of irternal contral and nsk management
systems In relation to the financial reporting process and the preparation of the Group
accounts are set out below or cross-referred to other parts of the Annual Report where
relevant

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for determining the nature and extent
of the significant nisks 1t 15 willing to take in achieving its strategic objectrves and for
maintaining sound nsk management and internal control systems, and for reviewing
therr effectiveness The risk management process and systems of internal control are
designed to manage rather than ehiminate the nsk of failures o achieve the Company s
objectives |t shou'd be recogmised that such systems can only provide reasenable but
not abselute assurance against matenial misstatement or loss

ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS RISK

A system to identify, assess, and evaluate business nisk 15 embedded within the
management processes throughout the Group Strategic risks are regularty reviewed by
the Board Risks relating to the key actwities within the subsidiary operating units are
assessed continuously

Further details of the nsks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s business and how
the Group seeks to mitigate these, can be found on pages 10 to 12

By Order of the Board

Camergn Oisen
Company Secretary

17 July 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITIEE
Dear Shareholder,

On behali of the Board, | am pleased to present our report on the remuneration strategy and pelicy of the Company at the end of yet another very successful year We firmly believe
that this continued success 1s strengly connected with the introduction of our Emplovee and Executive Bonus Share Schemes tn 2009 and 2011 The schemes are designed to
recognise and reward outstanding performance and have clearly driven shareholder value

New regulations have come into effect which impact the presentation and disclosure of Directors remuneration, and the lay-out of this report refiects those new regulations This
report 1s therefore presented in two sections the Annual Report on Remuneration and the Directors Remuneration Policy

The Annuat Report on Remuneration provices details on the amounts earned n respect of the vear ended 27 April 2014 and will be subject to an adwisory vote at the AGM The
Directors’ Remuneration Policy sets out the forward-looking remunerat:on policy that wili be subject to a binding vote at the AGM and shall take binding effect from the end of the
Company s 2014/15 financial year

The Remuneration Policy of the Company 1s ahigned to its commercial strategy for long-term, conssstent and profitable growth The remuneration package for Serior Executives 1s
highly weighted towards performance-related remuneration paid mostly 1a shares and s design s consistent with the reward philosophy for the wider employee population This
strategy 15 reftective of an extremely strong Executive and employee performance culture and a reward ethos of “One Team*

The Company philasophy 5 that Executive remuneration should be simple, transparent and directly support the delivery of the business strategy and sharehalder return The
Executive Directors’ basic salanes have been detiberately set at a level well below the lower quartile of 2 busmess of the size and complextty of the Group Indeed these salanes
have remained the same since 2002 and agatn will not increase in 2014715 Alse, the Semor Executives currently enjoy no additional benefits from the Company

The Executive Directors do not receive an annual bonus Rather, te drive sustained long-tarm business performance instead of granting smaller awards on an annual basis,
larger upfront awards are granted which anly vest if significant and consistent growth 1s delivered year on year Annual performance targets which must be hit ensure a focus 1s
maintained on a consistent and long-term prohtable growih strategy The extended time harizon for vesting of awards for the 2011 Executive Bonus Share Schame 1s six yaars fin
2017)

Clear pubhshed and stretching annual perfermance targets must be fully satishied before any of the share awards vest Aligned to the Campany s high performance culture the
Employee and Executive Bonus Share Schemes are designed on the basis that awards should vest in full for achieving stretchiag targets (e with an all or nothing vesting
schedule) rather than prowiding for a lower level of vesting for meeting a threshold target nsing to full vesting for achieving the stretch targets (1 e a scaled vesting schedule)
Because the Executive Directors remuneration opportumty 15 tughly weighted towards performance-related remuneration which will not vest if stretching performance targets
aligned with the business strategy are not met, they share nsk with the shareholders The size of these performance-only awards should be considered it this context

The Remuneration Committee firmly believes that this simple and very transparent share incentive framework 1s totally aligned with both the Company strategy for growth and its
performance cuiture We also believe that this strategy has directly driven the histonic and centinued out-performance of stretch targets oniginally set by the Committee by further
aligning Executive and employee remuneration potential to increased and en-going shareholder value This increased share value mcentive has also led to a further ‘liiting of the
perfarmance bar for furture awards

There 15 no doubt that since the inception of the current remuneration strategy in 2009, it has ¢learly led to strong shareholder value increases during a difficult economic peried,
and has provided a strong platform for the on-gong and long-term success of the Company

Specifically taifored t¢ Company culture and growth strategy we continue to review the rabustness of the scheme Duning 2013/14 the Remuneration Commattee re-assessed the
shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors and determined that the Executive Directors must now hold a minimum shareholding of 50 000 while they remain employed by the
Company As noted on page 39 Dave Forsey s shareholding on 27 Apnl 2014 meant that he satisfied the gu:deline and held shares with a value equal tc approximately 260% of his
salary

On 2 July 2014 we were pleased to anneunce that the sesolution to approve the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme was passed, with a majoriy of shareholders eligible to vote on the
resolution veting rm favour (the Executive Directors elected not to vote)

Under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme all eligible employees {including Executive Directors) who meet the qualfying conditrons and perfermance cntenia as determined and agreed
by the Remuneration Committee and the Board will be able to participate The terms of the 2615 Bonus Share Scheme provide for the grant of mil-cost options over up to 23
milhon ordinary shares in the Company {(amounting to approximately 4 2% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company) The vesting of any options would be conditional upon the
achievement by the Company of all the following EBITDA targets (before scheme costs) {)) FY16 of €480 mdhon (n) FY17 of £570 milion () FY18 of £650 millen and {w} FY19
of £750 million If these performance targets are all met, 25% of any award would vest following the announcement of the Company s audited results for F¥19 in July 2019 and
75% of the award would vest following ihe announcement of the Company's audited results for FY21 in July 2021

To date Mike Ashley has not received any remuaeration from the Company since before the public offenng in February 2007 nar has he participated in the Executive Share
Bonus Scheme Desite being elizible to participate i the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme, following discussions with the Committee Mike Ashley has sformed the Company and the
Committee that he does not wish to participate in the scheme nor does he expect any share based incentive scheme to be proposed to shareholders in relation to his role as an
Executive Direcior while the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme 15 in place He remains fully committed to achigving the stretching targets of the scheme

The Board considers the leadership of Mike Ashley to be essential to the Company and we are gratefu! that shareholders have now recognised the huge impact of our proven and
innovative share scheme on the success of the Company, its Executives anc employees It has always been our intention to continue with the existing highly performance-geared
remuneration policy for our Executives, 1 & low salary, no annual bonus or additional benefits, and the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme allows us ta continue on this path

We are committed to further buslding an open and iransparent engagement with our tnvestors and employees We believe that a key objective of the Directors Remuneration Report
15 1o communicate clearly how much cur Executive Directors are earning, how this 15 very clearly linked to the performance of the Company and 15 of benefit to our shargholders

Dave Singfeton
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

15 July 2014
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OIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

This part of the report sets out the Company’s Dwectors Remuneration Policy, which subject to shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM, shall take bindiag efiect from the end of the
Companys 2014/15 financial year The Policy 15 determined by the Committee

Future policy table

The tatle below describes each of the elements of the remunesation package for the Executive Directors

OPERATION

MAXINUM

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Base s2'anes are normally reviewed annually and have rot been
wcreased singe 2002

Muke Ashley does not currently recemve a salary for his rate

Although salanes for ensting Executive Directors {other
than Mike Ashley wha does not curtently recerve a salary}
have been set at £150 000 siace 2002 the Company
retamns drscretaon toset salaries at a fevel commensurate
with other companies of a similar size and complexity as
the Company

Salanes for mew Executive Duectors witl be set in
accordance with the Committes s approach to recruiiment
1emuneration as descubed on page 36

Mot zpplicable

Tha current Cxecutive Dircetars do not receive any additionz] benehts
There 15 cusrently no intention to change this whilst the Executive
Bonus Share Scheme and 2015 Bonus Share Scheme remain in place

Benetits inay be prov ded 1n hne with market praclice to recruil a néw
Executive Directos takung inte account individual circumstances Such
benelits may in¢lude relocation expenses

Whilst the Remuneration Committes has not set an
absolute maximum level of benefiis Executive Directors
may receve the Cempany retains discretion to set benehils
at a level which the Remuneratron Committee considers
appropriate against the market and {o support the on
going stralegy of the Company

Nt applicable

The Executive Directors are entitled to parteipate in a stakehalder
pension scheme on the same basis as other employees The current
Executive Directors have opted out of this arrangement

The current maxmum employer contnbution to the
stakeholder pension scheme 15 1%

The Company retains the discretion to set retirement
benefils {:ncliding prnsion contributions andAt a salary
supplzment In hew of 3 peasson contribution} for any
Executive Directors in accardance with the Committees

proach ta recristment wn as described on
page 36

Nat apphcable

The Committee has determined that no annual bonus schieme will be
operated for Executive Duetors while the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme
1510 place

No annual bonus ogportumty for an Executive Director who
participates in the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme for so long
as that scheme 15 1n place It that scheme 1s not m place
tfor example f one of the Adjusted Underlying EBITDA
targets 1s not met so that awards under that scheme lapse)
the Cammittee may award an anaual bonus oppertunity of
up to 200% of base salary The Committee will not award
such 4 bonus opporturity and grant an award under the
Executive Bonus Share Scheme as referred to below

The anrual bonus oppartumity for any newly secruited
Executive Oirector will be set m accordance with the
Commuttee s approach o recrutment remunetation a5
described on page 36

Not applicable for soiong as Executive Directors
da not participate 1 an annual bohus scheme

I an Executive Director does participate in an
annual bonus scheme performance will be
assessed against one or more metncs determined
hy the Committee and linked to the Companys
strategy with the weighting between the metnics
determined by the Commuttee Bonuses will

be determined between 9% and 130% ot the
manmum apportumity based on the Committee s
assessment of the applicable metncs

ELEMENT OF PURPOSE / LINK TO
REMUNERATION  STRATEGY
BASE Freed element of the
remuneration pachage
SALARY where the talance of [oed
and vanabte remuneralion
15 aligned to the commercial
strategy af fong term
prefitable growth and reflects
the Company remunesation
phtlpsaphy of geanng
seward to performance with
a sharing of nisk between
Executive Directors and
sharehalders
BEREFITS Not applicable for current
Executive Directors
RETIREMENT  Provide post employment
benchys b+ recrut and relam
BENEFITS individuals of the calibre
sequiced for the business
ANNUAL Not applicable as Executive
Durectors do not participate
BORUS n an annual bonus scheme
LONG-TERM  Torecogmse and reward
putstandging gerformance of
INCENTIVE the Executives and to drive
PAY (2015 underlying Group EBITDA
BONUS ling with Group strategy and
align Executive Directors
SHARE interests with the interests
SCHEME ot shareholders in bringing
AND consistent long term
profilable growth v the
EXECUTIVE Comsany
BONUS
SHARE
SCHEME)

2015 Banus Shars Scheme

The 2015 Bonus Share Scheme was appoved by shareholders at a
Gengral Meeting of the Company in July 2014 Awards may be granied
undes the scheme to Executive Directars ¢n an annual {or more
trequent) basis Hawever in accordance with the Company s policy

af granling larger upfront awardy which nly vest il sigmificant and
consistent growth 1s delivered year on year one award may be granted
under the scheme to any Executive Diector dunng the penod for which
1413 prapased this Diectors Pemuneralion Palicy shall apply with
vesting subjact o the satisfaction of the EBTTCA targets sat out It the
7015 Bonus Share Scheme measured over a period of four financial
years 75% of an award 1s subject to a further detesral period such that
st will vest in 2021 (with 25% vesting in 2019

Following drscussions with the Commiztee Mike Astiey has agvised
hot ha does B3t + (8110 pars pu @ 7148 2075 Ben,, Sha o Schoma
ard accordingly the Committee kas decided 1o make ao award toMike
Ashley under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme.

Unvested Awards are subject 1o malus provisions such that the
Commitiee hat the discretion to seduce cance! o impase further
conditions on the Awards 1n the event of a matenal misstatement of
the Companys tesults matenal {adure of nish management or senieus
reputational damage

Executive Bonus Share Scheme

The Executive Banus Share Scheme was approved by shareholders

at the Annual General Magting in September 2010 The Commuttee
may grant turther awards under this scheme if the 2015 Bonus Share
Scheme 15 not in place {far example 1 ane of the Adjusted Underlying
EBITDR targets 15 not met sa that awards under the 201 5 Bonus Share
Qehama lancal M ¥n A<hlev s nat alipible 10 be pranted awards undes
the Executive Banus Share Scheme

Any award granted under the Executve Banus Share Scheme wauld be
sihject 1o malus provisions o6 & comparable basss te those that will
apply to awards granted under the 2015 Benus Share Scheme

2015 Bonus Share Schame
Awards aver no mare than 25 million shares may be
granted urder the 2015 Boaus Share Scheme

o more than 1 millisn shares {subject ta such adpsinient
as Lhe COmM T ee determines to rellecl any vaniatin in the
Companys Share capital) may be awarded to any Executive
Director (vther than Mike Ashley who has advised the
Committes that he does not wish to participate i the 2016
Banus Share Scheme)

Executve Bonus Share Schems

Any award granted to an Executive Director under the
Executive Bonus Share Scheme duning the period for
which i 18 proposed this Directors Remuneration Pohicy
shall appty would be over a maxmum of 1 milbon shases
1subject tu such efjustivent s the Cammtiee determines
to reflect #ny changen he Cumpanys share capilal}

Slretching perlormance targets are sel reflecling
the business priorities that undespin Group
stiategy

2015 Banus Share Scheme

Awards under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme are
subject to satisfactory personal perfarmance and
will only vest if the followng Adjusted Underlying
EBITDA targets (before scheme costs) are met

FYL6 £480 million
FY17 €570 mihan
FY18 €650 milhen
FY19 £750 mithgn

For these purpeses “Adjusted Underiving EBITDA™
means Undertyag EBITDA a5 reported in the
Company s published ACCOUIS 10! (ke retevant
year atter such adjustments as the Commites
consders appnprate

Execetive Banus Share Scheme

Any award granted under the Executive Bonus
Share Scheme would be subject to stretching
perlomance targets determined by the
Committee based on Adjusted Underlying EBITDA
which would be diselosed in the Directors
Remuneration Report tollowing the grant ot any
such award
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The 1able below sets out an overview of the approach to remureration for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Purpese / link to strategy Approach of the Company

Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees The Committee’s Remuneration Policy in respect of the Non-Executive Cirectors 1s to pay annuat fees which reflect
the responsibilities and duties placed upon them, while also having regard to market practice

Provide an zppropriate reward {o attract and retain
Dicectors of the calibre required for the business Non-Executive Drrectars receive a fixed annuaf fee

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any bonus or share schemes

Non-Executive Directors may be ehgible for benefits such as the use of secretanal support travel costs or other
benefits that may be appropriate

INFORMATION SUPPORTING THE POLIEY TABLE
Prior to the introduction of the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme, awards were granted to Executve Directors under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme One award held by 2n Executive
Director remains outstanding under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme as referred to on page 39

Other than where the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme 1s not tn place (for example (f one of the Adjusted Underlyrng EBFTDA targets 1s not met so that awards under the 2015 Bonus
Share Scheme lapse) or where an award 15 to be granted in connection with the recruitment of an Executive Director as referved te en page 36, no further awards will be granted to
Executive Directors of the Company under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme during the period for whigh this policy applies

The Cemmittee may amend the terms of the Executive Bonus Share Scheme the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme or any awards granted undes them within the scepe defined tn the rules
of those schemes (including in the event of a vaniation of the Company s share capital or a demerger or special dividend which may in the Committee s opimon  affect the cumrent
or future value of shares} and may elect to setile awards under those schemes in cash

EXPLANATICN OF PERFORMANGCE MEASURES CHOSEN

For the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme undertyrng Group EBITDA 15 chosen because it 1s a measure that prowides a simple and transparent basis on which to measure the Company s
performance aver the longer term and to provide alignment with the Campany’s business strategy In additon the Committee considers it to be a robust measurement of sustained
earnings growth for shareholders This measurement has been censistently and publicly used by the Company as a performance measure singe the itoatation in 2007

In respect of each relevant year, the Committee will adjust reported underlying Group EBITDA as it considers appropriate Underlying Group EBITDA 15 calculated prior to any
charges relating to any Bonus Share Scheme(s) sutstanding at the relevant time

EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES IN REMUNERATION POLICY FOR OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company has a large number of employees with diffesent respansibilities and diffening levets of samenty Reward policies for employees other than Executive Directors are
determined by reference to grade, role perfermance and other relevant factors The Committee does not censult with the wider employee population about the remuneration policy
for Directors However the Committee has reviewed the salaries, other remuneration and other employment conditions of senior and middle managers throughout the Group and
has taken them into account 1n considening Directors’ salanes and the creation of new incentive schemes in order to create a sense of common purpose and sharing of success
Indeed n order to reflect the Company's One Team ethos, the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme applies to both Executives and eligible employees wha meet the quahfying conditions as
determined and agreed by the Committee on the same basis (including the performance conditions}

HLLUSTRATIGHS OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The charis below set out an 1lfustration of the policy for 2014/15 1n hne with the future poficy table above The charts provide an illustration of the total remuneration opportunity
that could anse under three different levels of performance No chart 1s included for Mike Ashley who does nat receive any remuneration from the Company and does not participate
In any share stheme

2506 - Dave Forsey For the purposes of the adjacent chart the following assumptions have been made
= o] 19113 Fixed Pay 2015 Bonus Share Scheme
g Minimum remuneration Base salary of £150,000 No vesting
£ ] Performance i hine with No employer pension No vesting because rewards
= 1500
H expectations contnbution {as current under the Executrve Bones
= Executive Directors have Share Scheme vest on an ‘all
= opted out of the Company s or aothiag” basis for achieving
1 stzkeholder pension scheme)  the upper end of stretch
500 targets
150 150 Maximum remuneration Na benefits (as no benefits See note below*
0 were provided to the current
Mimmam Performance  Pedormanca w hne  Manmum Perfarmance Executive Directors in
with expectabons 20 13”4}
I Base salary benefiis & penswon 0 2015 Boous Share Schere

*Far the purpeses of this chart 1l has been assumed that Dave Forsey 15 granted an award aver | million shares and that na awasd 15 granted 10 Mike Ashiey as refersed to in the policy table on page 34 The vatue of the award 1s then
calcula’ed based on a share price of £7 045 (being the pace at the close of business on 15 July 2014 when this report was apgeoved by the Committze) and one quarier of 1his value 1s then shown representing the itention 1o grant one
award unt'er the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme Lhe vesting of whech will be subject to E311DA performance 1argels measured tver a period of fow Ainznctal years (FY16 £¥1/ FY18 ard Y19} The westing of any awards 15 condibanal uzan lhe
achievement by the Company ot all four EBITDA targets under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme
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APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION
When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of a new Executive Director, the Committee will apply the follewing principles

s gwen that the high geanng of reward for performance over 3 long period and 2 low basic salary mayresult ma cash flw’ 1ssue for any new Executive Director the intention 15
to move the Director appropriately and in 2 timely manner onte an equal footing with other Executive Directors

o ihe package will be sufficient to attract the cahibre of Director requured to delwer the Company s strategy,

o the Committee will seek to ensuze that no more 1s paid than 1s necessary, and

« 1n the next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the rationale for the arangements implemented

The Commitiee will ordinanily seek to implement the remuneration package in accoedance with the elements referred to in the policy table on pages 34 and 35 The Committee
tetains discretion to make appropr:ate remuneration decisions outside that policy including the ability to grant awards under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme to meet the
indwidual circumstances of the recruitment subject to the limits and parameters of this receuitment remuneration section of the Directors Remuneration Report

ELEMENT APPROACH

Base salary and benefits  Angned with the policy set out in the policy table on page 34 1f the new Executive Duector participates in the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme at the same
level as existing Executive Directors (cther than Mike Ashtey)

Retirement benefits Aligned with the policy set out in the policy table on page 34 if the new Executive Dirgctor particspates in the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme Otherwise
up to 20% of satary paid o a pension arrangement or paid as a supplement ta base salary in higu of a pension arrangement untit the new Executive
Director joins that scheme

2015 Bonus Share The Remuneration Commitiee s intention 15 for @ newly-appointed Executive Directar Lo participate n the 2015 Benus Share Scheme with an awarg
Scheme of up to t million shares (subject to such adjustment as the Cammitiee determines to reflect any vanation in the Company s share capiial e upto
the maximum level referred 1o n the policy table, but reduced to reflect the new Executive Director s shostened penod of service)

Variatle remuneration  In recognition of the fact that a newly appointed Executive Director’s award under the 2015 Banus Share Scheme would not vest until 2019 the
Comm:tiee may award a newly appointed Executive Director an award over up to 1 million shares (subject te such adjustment as the Committes
determines to reflect any change m the Company’s share capstal) under the Executve Bonus Share Scheme or a similar scheme, the vesting of which
wauld be subject to the same performance conditions as apply to existing awards uncer the Executive Bonus Share Scheme of other stretching
performance congitions determined by the Committee

In addition until such time as the newly appointed Executive Directar participates in the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme, he or she may be awarded an
annual of longer-term incentive oppartumity of up to 200% of salary per anpum

Maximum vanable The maximum tevel of vanable remuneration that may be awarded to a new Executive Director s

remuneration

a an award over up te 1 milhon shares (subject 1o such adjustment as the Committee determines to reflect any change m the Company s share
capital) under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme (but reduced to reflect any vanable remuneration awarded as referred o 1n {c) below),

b an award over up to 1 million shares (subject to such adjustment as the Committee determmnes to reftect any change in the Company s share
capital) uader the Executive Bonus Share Scheme or a similar scheme, and

¢ until such time as he or she participates i the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme, an annual ar longer-term inceative opportumty of up to 200% of salary
per annum

tn each case the value of any buy-out arangements {described below) does not count towards the makmum

Compensateon for The Committee may make awards on hiring an externak casdidate to buy-out the remuneratron arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous
torferted arrangements  employer In doing so, the Committee will have regard to relevant factors including any performance conditions attached to such arrangements {and
whether such condrtions were achieved}, the form of those acrangements (e g cash or shares) and the timeframe of such arrangements

Wiile such awards are excluded from the maximum level of vanable remuneration referred to below, Lhe Committee s intention 15 that the value
awarded would be no hgher than the expected value of the forfeited arrangements Buy-out awards will be subject 1o forferture or clawback on
early departure with 100% being subject to forfeiture if the Executive departs within 12 manths of jsiming, and a shding scale down to 50% +f the
departure occurs within 12 and 24 months of joimng, at the Committee's discretion

Relocation costs If necessary the Company will pay appropriate relocation costs The Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than is necessary

Any share awards referred ta in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Company's existing share schemes |f necessary and subject where relevaat to the
nmits referred to above awards mav be granted outside exsting share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which allow for the grant of awards to facilitate 1n unusual

circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive Director
Where a possion 13 filled mternally any on-going remuneration obligations or gutstanding vaniable pay elements shall be allowed to continue according ta theur subsisting terms

The remuneration package for a newly 2ppainted Non-Executive Director would normally be in Ling with the policy set out (n the future policy table above for Non-Executive Directors
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SERVICE CONTRACTS AND POLICY ON PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
The Company’s pelicy 1s for Executive Directors 1o be employed on the terms of service contracts which may be terminated by either the Company or the Executive Director an the
giving of not less than 12 months notice

Executive Directors
Details of each current service contract are set out belpw

Contract date Unexpired term / notice period Proper law
Mike Ashley 11/02/2007 12 Months England & Wales
Dave Forsey 11/02/2007 12 Months England & Wales

The principles an which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are summansed below

The Company may terminate an Executive Director’s employment with immediate effect by making a payment in lieu of notice consisting of

basic salary for the notice penod

1f the Executive Director participates in an annual bonus scheme a pro-rated amouni reflecting completed months of service in the year of terminatton
asstming on target performance,

» either the cost of prewviding other benefis (other than pension and bonus) that the Executive Director would have been entitled to duning the notice penod
or an ameunt equal to 10% of base salary (or alternatively the Company may continue to provide benefits for the remainder of the notice period that
would have appliec}

Paymentin Lieu
of nohice

Hawever, in accordance with the current polrcy as set out in the policy table en page 34, ne annual bonus scheme or benefits are currently offerec to
Executive Directors

In accordance with the current pelicy 2s set out in the policy table on page 34, no annual bonus scheme 15 offered to existing Executive Directors Were an
Executive Director to pariicipate in an annual bonus arrangement whether to award a bonus in full o in part in the event of a termination of employment

Annuat bonus would be at the discretion of the Commattee on an individual basis and depencent on @ nember of factors including the circumstances of the Executive
Director s departure and his contribution to the business duning the bonus penod in question Typically benus amounts would be pro-rated for time in service
to termination

2015 Benus If a participant a the 2015 Boaus Share Scheme or Executive Bonus Share Scheme ¢eases employment before the performance conditions attaching to an
$hare Scheme award under that scheme are satrsfied the award will lapse If the participant ceases employment after the performance conditions are satished but before
and Executive the vesting dates as a result of his death or any other reason determined at the discretion of the Committee, the award will vast n the case of a reason
Bonus Share other than death, the extent of vesting will be determined by the Committee at its absolute discretion taking into account the time that has elapsed between
Scheme grant and cessation

The Remuneration Committee reserves the right ta make additbional eut payments where such payments are made in good faith ir discharge of an easting

legal ob¥gatian {or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation) or by way of settlement or compromise of any ¢laim ansing 1 connection with the
Other payments  termination of a Director’s office or employment In apprepriate circumstances payments may alse be made in respect of legal fees Were the Company

to make an award on receuitment of an Executive Director to buy out remuneration arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer thea the leaver

provisions for that award would be determined at the time of grant

In the event of a change of control of the Company or other relevant corporate event, unvested awards under the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme and the Executive Bonus Share Scheme
will [apse unless the performance conditions are satisfied and the event accurs between satisfaction of the conditions and the vesting date, in which case the award shall vest In
the case of the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme the extent of vesting shall be determined by the Commuttee taking into account the peniod of time that has elapsed between the grant
date and the date of the relevant event and wm the case of the Executive Bonus Share Scheme the awards shall vest in full unless the Committee determmnes othermse

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years, other than the Chairman whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance
with its terms The appaintments of the Non-Execulive Directors may be terminated by either parly on one month s wretten notice and 1n aceordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company Termination would be immedate i certain circumstances (including the bankiupicy of the Non-Executive Directar)

Non-Executive Directors do not and are not entitled to participate 1n any bonus or share scheme

Non-Executive Directors are subject to confidentiality undertakings without imitation in tume: Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receve any compensatian on the
tesmenation of thewr appointment

Details of the letters of appointment are set out below

Position Date of tetter of appointment
Keith Hellawell Non-Executive Chairman Febsuary 2016
Simon Bentley Ron-Executive Director 15 July 2014
Dave Singletan Non-Executive Director 15 July 2014
Charles McCreevy Non-Executive Director 31 March 2011

Claire Jenkins Non-Executive Director 15 July 2014
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PAYMENTS QUTSIDE THE POLICY IN THIS REPORT ~
The Committee retams discretian to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office outside the policy in this report

« where the terms of the payment were agreed before the palicy came mto efiect,

o where the terms of the payment were agreed at a ime when the relevant ndividual was not a Director of the Company and, in the opimion 6f the Commttee, the payment was
not 1n constderation of the individual becoming a Director of the Company, or

« to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements

For these purposes, payments includes the satisfacton of awards of vanable remuneratien and, 1n relation to an award over shares the terms of the payment are agreed ai
the tume the award 15 granted

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS
The Committee consults major sharehaiders and representative Groups where apprepriate concerming remuneration matters

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
This part of the Directors Remuneration Report sets out the actual payments made by the Company to its Directors with respect to the penod ending 27 Apnl 2014 and how our
Divectors’ Remuneration Policy will be apphied in the year commencing 28 Apni 2014

SINGLE FIGURE TABLE (AUDITED)
The aggregate remuneration provided to individuals who have served as Directors in the period ended 27 Apnl 2014 15 set out below along with the aggregate remuneration
pravided to indwiduals wha have served as Directors during the prior financial year

Director Salanes and foes Other benefits Bonus Long-term (ncontives Pension Total
2013/14 2012413 2013/14 2012113 2013/14 201213 2013/14 2012/13 201312 2012113 2013714 2012/13
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Execulive
Mike Ashley - - - - - -
Dave Forsey 150 150 - - - - - - 150 150
Bob Mellors™ 1125 150 - - - - - - - 1125 150
Non-Executive
Keith Hellaweil 155 155 - - -- - - - 155 155
Simon Bentley 50 50 - - - - - - 50 50
Dave Singleton 50 50 - - - - - - 50 50
Charles McCreevy 50 50 - - - - 50 50
Claire Jenkins 50 50 - - - - - . 50 50

(13 Bot Mellors restgred from the Board on 31 December 2013

NOTES TO THE SINGLE FIEURE TABLE AND IMPLEMENTATICN OF PCLICY IN THE YEAR ENDING 26 APRIL 2015

Base salary and fees

Base salaries are normally reviewed annually In the seview 1n 2013/14 the Committee decided not 1o alter Executive Directors salanes The Committee has decided not to increase
Executive Directors salanies n 2014715 Executive Directors’ salaries have been at the same level since 2002 which1s set at a level well below the lower quartile for a business of
the size and complexity of the Group Mike Ashley does not recerve a salary for his role

Fees for Non-Executive Directors are normally reviewed anpually In the review in 2013/14 fees were not increased Fees for Non-Executive Directors will not be increased for
2014/15

Annual boaus scheme
The Commuttee has determined that no annual honus scheme will be operated for Executive Directors while the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme 15 in place

Executive Bonus Share Scheme
No awards were granted under the Executive Bonus Share Scheme in 2013/14 Awards which were subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition based on EBITDA 1n the

2010/11 financial vear vested i August 2013

Following the approval of the 2015 Benus Share Scheme i July 2014, the Committee proposes 1o grant each Executive Director {other than Mihe Ashley) an award under the scheme
wn 2014715 over 1 million shares (subject to such adjustment as the Commttee determines to reflect any variatien n the Campany s share capital) The performance conditions for
the awards wilt be as se$ out in the policy table on page 34

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No payments have been made to past Directors during the penod ended 27 Apni 2014

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF GFFICE DURING THE FINAKCIAL YEAR
No payments were made for loss of office duning the penod ended 27 Apnil 2014
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SHAREHDLOING GUIDELINES AND TOTAL SHAREHOLDIXGS OF DIRECTORS

The Board beheves it 1s important that Executive Directors have a significant halding 10 the capital of the Company In order to participate in the Executive Bonus Share Scheme
there were internal guidehnes that the Executive Directors would be required to maintain a minimum level of shareholding 1n the Company equivalent to one year's salary while
they remain employed by the Company However, these guidelines can be wavec with the permission of the Board The Committee has raised the required shareholding value of
Executive Directors to 50,000 shares while employed by the Company in 2014

Dave Forsey s beneficial shareholding on 27 Aprid 2014 was 50,000 shares and, based ¢a a share price of £7 79 (being the price at the close of business on 25 April 2014 the last
trading day before Sunday 27 April 2014) the value of that halding was £389,500

The beneficial interests of the Directors in office on 27 Apeik 2014 and of thew families i both cases at the beginming of the financial year, or at the date of appointment if later,
and at the end of the financial year in the share ¢capital of the Cempany are shown below

Ordinary Shares 29 April 2013 Ordinary Shares 27 Apnl 2014

Mike Ashley 385 400 060 345400000
Simon Bentley 50,000 10,000

Dave Forsey - 50 000

Keith Hellawell 130 000 50 000
Claire Jenkins 20,000 19 500
Charles McCreevy - 1500

Dave Singleton 133,621 52000

There have been no changes in the Directors' holdings in the share capiial of the Company, as set out in the table above between 27 Apnl 2014 and 15 July 2014

The only award held by a Director under a share scheme as at 27 Apni 2014 1s as folfows

Director Scheme Grant date Number of shares Status
Dave Forsey Executive Bonus Share Scheme 22 August 2011 1,000,000 Unvested

The award was granied subject to the satisfaction of the following EBITDA targets (of which three have been met)

Underlying EBITDA of £215 million n FY12
Undertying EBITDA of £250 million in FY13
Underlying EBITDA of £260 multion in FY14
Underiying EBITDA of £300 miltion in FY15

Subject to the satisfaction of the remaiming EBITDA target the award will vest in 2017

PERFORMANCE GRAPE AND TABLE

The following graph shows the Company s performance measured by the Total Shareholder Return compared with the performance of the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 index (excluding
investment trusts}

The Committee considered this an appropriate 1ndex aganst which to compare the Company s performance as it 1s widely accepted as a national measure anc includes the
compantes that investors are Iikely to consider alternative investments

w— FTSE 250 ex Investment Trusts s FTSE 100 e Spoets Dwract
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The table below shows dedails of the tatal remuneration and performance-related pay for Dave Forsey over the last five financial years

Tatal remungratan Exncetres Bonas Share Scheme a3 a % of manimum appartunsty
2003/14 £150 000 NA
200213 £150 000 NfA
2011412 £150 000 N/A
2010/1! £6 620 000* 100%
200910 £150 000 WA

Fut these purposes Uhe total reinuneralion i 2010411 irludes the value o an award over 1 000 000 shares that vested on 15 fwgust 7017 subject ta the satistaction of a performanee condition based o4 ERITOA i 2010/11 fnaneial year
Fot these purposes 1he value of 3 share 1s £6 47 being the closing price of @ share on that date

CEO PAY INCREASE IN RELATION TO ALL EMPLOYEES

The table below sets out in retation to salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus the percentage increase in pay for Dave Forsey compared to the average increase between the
same periods for the Group's UK Head Office employees which the Comimittee believes 15 the most appropnate comparator group The percentages shown relate to the amounts for
2013/14 financial year as compared to the amounts for the 2012/13 tinancial year

Element ¢l remuneralion Dave Forsey / % change UK Head Offics Empioyee avarage / % changs
Salary 0% 23%

Taxable benefits 0% (no taxable benefits were provided to Dave Forsey in either year) -32%

Annual bonus 0% {no anaual bonus arsangement was operated for Dave Forsey in either year) 13 2%

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEKD DN PAY

The table below sets out the Group's distrbutions to shareholders by way of dividends and share buybacks, total Group-wide expendituse on pay for all employees as reported in
the audited financial statements for 2013/14 and 2012713, and the Company's share price, calculated as at the close of business on the last ¢ay of the FY14 financsal year and the
FY13 financial year

FY14 Fr13 Percentage change
Distsbutions to shareholders by way of dividend and share buyback  £0 £391 554 -100%
Investment™ £323 475,000 £227,998,000 41 8%
Group-wide expenditure on pay for all employees £307,948 000*** £221 103,000 393%
Share price {pence) 779 5% 467 2% 66 85%

“Comprises of Increases 1n working capital acquisitions and capital expenddure the year as the 8uard believes these to be the most relevant measures of the Group s investment n foture growth
*+$or these purposes the share price for FY14 and the share price for FY13 are calculated as the close of business on 27 Apn| 2014 and 28 Aprit 2013 respectrvely
*~*This increase is reflective of the Group s and retail expansion in Europe

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Membershig

The Committee consists of Simen Bentley Dave Singleton, Claire Jenkins and Charles McCreevy who are independent Non Executive Directors, and Keith Hellawell who 1s the Nan-
Executive Chawrman

The role and main responsibiiities of the Commttee are detailed 1n the Corporate Governance Report on page 31
Atteadance at the meetings held duriag the year 1s detailed on page 29

The members of the Commiites have no personal financial mterest, other than as shareholders, in the matters fo be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of inferest ansing from
other directarships and no day-to-day operational responsibility within the Company

Adwisers to the Committee
Dave Forsey, the Chief Executive Bab Mellors the former Group Finance Director and Mike Ashiey, the Executive Deputy Chawman have advised or matenally assisted the
Committee when reouested No Executive Director 15 present or takes part in discussions in respect of matters relating directly fo thewr own remuneration

SHAREHOLDER YOTING
The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the resolution to approve the Directors Remuneration Report for the year ended 28 April 2033 and in respect of the resolution
to approve the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme

Yotes for %tor Votes zgainst % agalnst Total votes cast Votas withheld
Oirectars' Remuneration Repost for the year ended 28 Apnl 2013 523,524 503 97 7% 12,086 759 23% 535611 262 59,875
Approval of the 2015 Bonus Share Scheme 111 926,611 60 4% 73 372,592 386% 185 298,203 213882

Dave Singleton
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

15 July 2014
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILHIES
The Directars are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report the Remuneration Repart and the Company and Group financial statements in accerdance with applicable faw
and regulations

Commpany law requires the Directors to prepare financtal statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements
in accordance with International Finznciaf Reporting Standards (BFRSs) as adoptec by the European Union

The Directors have elected to prepare the Company financial statements n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (UK GAAP)

Under company Jaw the Directors must not apprave the Financial Statements unless they are sabisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affaws and profit or loss
of the Cornpany and Group for that period In prepaning the tinancial statements the Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« for the Group financial statements state whether the applicable IFRSs have been followed subject to any material depastures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements

¢ for the Company financial stalements, state whether the applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material denartures disclosed and explained
n the finaaeial statements and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company and Group will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Remuneration Repart camply with the Companies Act 2606 and
Article & of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other irragulanties

The Directors confiem that

» sofar as each Director 1 aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditers 15 unaware and
* the Direclors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themseives aware of any relevant audit wformatren and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information

The Directors are respansible for the masntenance and integrity of the corporate and financial mformation included on the Company s website Legisiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation n other jensdictions

To the best of our knowledge

{a) the Annual Report including the strategsc report prepared w accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabihities
financial pasitan and profit of the Campany and of the undertakings included n the consohdation taken as a whale

and

(b) the management regort includes a fair review of the developmeat and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included i the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nisks 2nd uncertainties that they face

On behalf of the Board

Dave Forsey
Chigf Executive

17 July 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Uk LI sEPSGE SECRTS DR L TINTERNATIONAL PIC

We have audited the financial statements of Sporis Drrect Internationat ple for the 52
week peniod ended 27 April 2014 which comprise the consohdated balance sheet, the
consolidated income statement the consohdated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the cansolidated statement of cash
flows and the refated notes 1 ta 37 The financaal reporting framework that has been
applied w their preparation 1s applicable law and Interaational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Evropean Union

This report 15 made solely to the Companys members as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are required to
state to them 10 an avditor s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsitiity to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as 2 body for our audit work for this report, or
for the opimions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibities Statement set out on page 41
the Directars are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and fer
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
Jnternational Standards an Audsting (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE DF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on ihe
Financial Reporting Council s website at www fr¢ org uk/apb/scope/private cim

AUDITOR COMMENTARY

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit scope included a full audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sports
Direct Internatwonal plc We evaluated contrels over key financial systems identified

as part of our sk assessment This included a review of the general IT controls, the
accounts production process and the contsols addressing cntical accounting matters
\dentrfied 1n our risk assessment We undertook substantive testing an signidicant
transachons balances and disclosures the extent of which was based on vanous
factors such as our overall assessment of the control environment the effectiveness of
controls over indvidual systems and the management of specific risks

As set out on page 53 the Group has three operating segments, Sports Retail, Premum
Lifestyle and Brands The Group financia; statements are a consolidation of the
reporting umits comprising the operating businesses within these segments

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit we determimed the type of wark
that needed o be performed on the reporting umits by us as the Group engagement
team or component audHors operating under our instructien Where the work was
performed by component auditors we determined the level of involvement we needed
to have 1n the audit work at those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opirion on
the Graup financial statements as a whole

The reporting units vary significantly in size and we identriied two reporting umits that
in our view, required an audit of their complete financial information, due to their size
ar nisk charactenstics, providing 65% coverage of the Group s revenues and 83% of
the Group adjusted EBITDA

Specific audit procedures on cerioin balances and transactions were performed at

a furkher 8 reporting umits due to their size providing a further 25% coverage of the
Group's revenues and 2% of the Group adjusted EBITDA, with the remaining reporting
umits subject 1o analytical procedures

(UR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We apply the concept of matenality in planmng and performing our audit, in evaluating
the effect of any identriied misstatements and n forming our epinon For the purpose
of determining whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement
we defing mateniality as the magnitude of a misstatermnent or an omission from the
financial statements or related disclosures that would make 1t probable that the
Juggement of a reasonable persen relying on the information would have been changed
or intluenced by the misstatement of 0MIS$IGN

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Group audit, we established materiality for the consohidated financiat
statements as a whole 10 be €11 2m, which 1s 3 5% of adjusted Earnings befoce
Interest Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation {EBITDA) We use ad;usted EBITDA
because In our view, this 15 the metne aganst which the financial performance of the
Group 1s measured both internally and externally

Far the financsal information of the individual subsidiary undertakings we set our
matenality based on a propartion of Group mateniality agpropriate to the relative
scales of each of the businesses We determined the threshold at wiuch we will
commumicate misstatements to the Audit Committee to be £560 000 [n additien
we will communicate misstatements below that threshold that in our view warrant
reporting on qualitative grounds

DUR ASSESSMENT OF RISK

Without modifying our opinion, we hughlight the following matters that are 1n eur
judgement likely to be mos? important to users” understanding of our audit Qur
audit procedures refating 1o these matters were designed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated finan¢ial statements as a whole, and aot te express an opizon gn
indwvidual transactions account balances or disclosures

RISK OF FRABD IN REVENUE RECOGNITION

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland)} there s a presumed nisk of fraud in revenue recogmibion
because of the pressure and incentives management may feel to achieve planned
levels of sates We therefore identified revenue recognition as a significant nisk
requining special audit conssderation

Our audit work included, but was not restncted to, testing manual journals posted

to revenue for indication of fraudulent transactions assessing the retail coatrol
environment surrounding revenue recogmition and its completeness and performing
substantive procedures in respect of non-retarl safes to ensure the related revenue was
accounted for correctly and in the comect periad

The Group s accounbing policy in respect of revenue recogmtion 15 included in note 1

CARRYING VALUE OF INVENTORIES

The carrying value of inventonies 15 stated net of provisions for ebsolete or slow moving
stock Judgement s applied by management in assessing the amount of provision
required 1o record inventory at the fower of cost and net realisable value

Our audit work included, but was not limited to, venfying the models used for
mathematica!l accuracy, considenng the appropnateness and consistency of the
underlying assumptions within the model and performing a review of iventery sold
post year end

The Group s accounting policy on inventosies and details of the judgements apohied by
the directors sn establishing the provision 1s ingluded 1n note 1

ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING

As {urther disclosed in note 29 the Group made two significant acquisitions during
the year The accounting for these acquisiians required management 1n accerdance
with IFRS3 Business Combinatiens to make a number of judgements including
the identification and valuation of separately identifiable mtangible assets, farr
value adjustments 1o assets and hiabihbies acquired and the accounting for option
agreements in refation to minonty tterests We theretore identified the related
atquisition accounting as a significant sk

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to understanding the terms of

the respective acguisitions and option agreaments 2ng graloating whether *he
Group has obtained control 1n ezch case, agreeing the fair value of the assets and
Wiablities acquired to supparting documentation and evatuating the apprepnateness
of judgements applied by the Directors considening the exisience of any separately
wdentifiable intangibles assets, ensuning the costs of the respective acquisitions have
been expensed to the Income Statement and reviewing the respective disclosures
within the financial statements

Disclosure of the acquisitions 1n the penod analysis of the fair values of assets
including separately identifiable mtangeble assets and liabihibies acqured and
judgements formed in respect of the option agreements to acquire minonty interests 15
set out 1n note 29

The Group's accounting policy 1n respect of accounting for acquisitions is inciuded in
note |
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INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

As more fully explained in note 13, the Directors are required to make an annual
assessment to determine whether the value of goodwill of £153 5m and brands of

£73 3m 1s impawred The process for measuning and recogmising impairment under IAS
36 1s complex and highly judgemental We theeetfore ident:hed impairment reviews as a
significant risk requinng special audit consideration

Qur audit work included, but was not restricted to an evaluation of the methodology
and assumptions used by the Directors In particular those key assumptions relating
to the cash flow projectians, the appropnateness of the discount rates and perpetuity
rates and we also focused on the adequacy of the disclosures on the sensitivity of the
ey assumptions used in the impairment assessment and the related disclosures

The Group s accounting pohicy on impairment (s included 1n the Group's principal
accounting policies and details of the judgements and estimates made by the Directors
are included 1n nete |

MANAGEMENT BVERRIDE OF FINANCIAL CONTROL

Under 1SAs (UK & Iretand) for all of our audits we are required to cons:der the nisk of
management overnde of financial contrals Due to the unpredictable nature of this nsk
we are required to assess it as a significant nsk requinng special audit conssderation

Qur audit work ingluded but was not restricted to specific procedures refating to
this nsk that are required by ISA 240 ' The Auditors Respansibtlities relating to Fraud
in an Audit of Financial Statements’ This included tests of manual journal entaies,
the evaluation of judgements and assumptions tn the Director’s estimates and tests
of signficant transactions outside the normal course of busiess This ncluded a
detailed review of related party transacticas

In particutas, our work on judgements applied by the Directars when establishing the
inventory provision the acquisitions made in the year and the itangible impa:rment
assessment addressed key aspects of ISA 240

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our apanion the consolidated financia! statements

s gwe a true and fair view of the state of the Group s affaws as at 27 Apnl 2014 and
of its profit for the 52 week period then ended

= have been properly prepared tn accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and

» have heen prepared in accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act 2006
and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITEES
Opiion on other matters presgribed by the Companies Act 2006

 the infermation given in the Strategic Report and the Director’s Reports for the
financiak year for which the group financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the group hnancial statements and

e the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 27
to 32 with respect to internal control and risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and abgut share capital structures is consistent with
the Financial Statements

SPORTS OIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLE 43
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED 10 REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the ISAs {UK and treland} we are required to report to you if 1n our opimion
informatien in the Annual Report 1s

+ materially Inconsistent with the information in the audited financeal statements or

* apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with our
knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audit or

s |5 gtherwise misleading

In particular we are required to cansider whether we have 1dentified any
inconsistencies between our knowladge acquired dunng the audit and the Directors
Statement that they consider the Annual Report 15 fair balanced and understandable
and whether the Annual Report appropriately discloses those matters that were
communicated to the Audit Commiitee which we consider should have been disclosed

Under the Cempamies Act 2006 we are required o report to you «f n our opinion

o cartamn disclosuzes of directers’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not received a!l the informabion and explanations we require for our audit
or

» a Corporate Governance Staterment has not been prepared by the Company

Under the Listing Rules are required to review

» the Directors’ Statement, set out on page 26 10 relation to gong concern and

« the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Companys
compliance with the mine provisions ot the UK Corporate Governance Code specified
for our review

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately an the parent company financial statements of Sports
Direct Internationat plc for the 52 week period ended 27 Apnl 2014 and on the
information in the Birectors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been
audited

Philip Westerman

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Grant Thosnton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accuntants
Londan

17 July 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

O WY T WHTKSENDED 77 wPRI 201

FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS

52 weeks ended

28 Apni 2013
27 Apnl 2014 {restatedy
Note (£ 080 {£ 000}
Revenue 14 2,705,958 2,185,580
Cost of sales (1,551,836) {1290,822)
Gross profit 1,154,922 894,758
Selling, distribution and administrative expenses (908,843} (689 578}
Other operating income 5 8,583 7,199
Exceptional items 6 (5,531) 625
Operating profit 4,1 249,133 213,004
Other investment income 9 7017 1,473
Finance income 10 891 1117
Finance costs 11 (19,853) (9,688)
Share of profit of associated underiakings and joint ventures 16 2,266 1,320
Praofit hefore taxation 239452 207 226
Taxation 12 (59,839} {55 569)
Profit for the period 4 179,613 151 657
Attnibutable te
Equity holders of the Group 180,245 151 596
Non-controlling interests (632} 61
Proht for the perind 4 179,613 151 657
Earnings per share attributable to the equity shareholders
Pence per share Pence per share
Basic earmings per share 13 e 266
Diluted easmings per share 13 292 44
Underlying basic earnings per share 13 321 269

The consolidated income statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing

The accompanying accounting poiicies and notes form part of these financial statements

| Restatement retates to the adoption of 1S 19 Employee Benefits (see note 1)
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T “he IDDT APRM R])
-~
52 weeks ended
28 Apnl 2013
7 Aprit 2004 (restated)!
Nate {£ €80) (£ 000)
Profit for the perod 4 178,613 151,857
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be rectassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuanial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 24 3,860 (2818}
Taxation on items recogmised in other comprehensive income (698}
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign aperations (33,118) 12 436
Exchange differences on hedged contracts - recognised in the peripd 27 {3,137} 15408
Exchange differences on hedged cantracts - reclassified and reported i net profit 27 {17,909} 196
Fair value agjustment n zespect of avaltable-for-sale financial assets 17 31313 1011
Taxation on items recogmsed in other comprehensive income {4,170} 4636
Other comprehensive income for the penod, net of tax 1,601 30 869
Total comprehensive income for the period 181,214 182526
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the Group 181,846 182 465
Non-controlling interest (532) 6!
181,214 182 526

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements

! Restatement relates to the adoption of 1AS 19 Employee Benehits’ (see note 1)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET

ApLou

27 April 2014 28 Apnit 2013
Note {'oom) (£1000)
ASSETS - Non-current
Property plant and equipment 14 412,361 332,036
Intangibie assets 18 235,109 240420
Investments in associated underakings and joint ventures 16 41,763 »Iy
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 116,504 47 645
Deferred tax assets 25 31,130 47952
856,967 700,170
ASSETS - Current
Inventories 18 565,479 446,962
Trade and cther recevables 19 123,014 96,111
Dervative financial assets ¥4) 4,355 17 965
Cash and cash equivalents 20 151,024 147 375
843,812 708,413
TOTAL ASSETS 1,700,739 1408 583
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 21 64,060 64 060
Share premium 874,309 874 300
Treasury shares reserve (36,234) {56 234)
Permanent caniribution {o capital 5 50
Capital redemplion reserve 8,005 3005
Foreign currency translation reserve 5.280 38,398
Reverse combination reserve (987,312 {987,312
Own share reserve (13,251} (64,375)
Hedging reserve {5,625) 16 021
Retained earnings 931,819 752,018
821,002 644 931
Non-controlling interests (3.538) {254)
Total equity 817,554 644 677
LIABILITIES - Non-current
Sorrowings 23 6,764 245 627
Retirement benefit chligations 24 15,350 19 940
Deferred tax liabshties 25 24,046 24,978
Provisions 26 37,780 41 072
81,940 331617
LIABILITIES - Current
Derwvative financial habilities 27 18,663 -
Trade and other payables 28 392,019 320 261
Borrowings 23 356,226 55,753
Current tax habilies 32335 56 275
759,245 432 28%
Total liabiltties 883,185 763 506
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,700,739 1 408.583

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements The financial statements were approved by the Soard an 17 July 2014 and were signed on
its behalt by

Dave Forsey
Director
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52 weeks ended
7 Agril 2014 78 Apnl 2013
Note (£ 000 {5 000)
Cash inflow from aperating activities 30 222,185 153094
Income taxes paid {55,730} {44,673)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 167,055 114 421
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plaat and equipment - 79
Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets - 525
Proceeds on dispesal of isted investments 49,394 -
Purchase of associate net of cash acquired {8,000} {96}
Purchase of subsidianies, net of cash acquired 29 {15407) {46,941)
Puschase of intangible assets {1,827} (2,282)
Purchase of property plant and equipment 14 {67,304) {48 247)
Puschase of listed investments {595,467) -
Investment income receved 1,604 1473
Finance income received 891 1117
Net cash outflow from investing actvities {95,116} (94272
Cash flow from financing actrvities
Finance costs paid 8ny (7,196)
Borowings drawn down 300,910 404,970
Borrowings repaid (340,452) {323 842)
Exercise of aphion over non-controlling interests {11.678) -
Purchase of own shares - (21742)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from finan¢ing actwties {67,331) 52 090
Net increase m cash and cash equrvalents including overdrafts 3,608 72239
Cash and cash equivalents including overdrafts at heginming of period 141,674 69 435
Cash and cash equivalents including overdrafts at the penod end 20 145,282 141,674

The accompanying accounting pohicies and notes form part of these financial statements




48 SPORYSDIRECT.com

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Moo s tiBly T Re 2610

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Treasury Foresgn currency Own share Retained Kon-contrafling
shares translation Tessrve earmings  (ther reserves Sub-tota] Interests Tetal
(£ 000) (E£.000) (£ 000 (£ 600} (£ 60%) (£ 000) 1£ 000 (£ 000)

At 29 April 2012 {95,839) 25,962 (57,684) 600,431 (40,480) 472,390 {505} 471,885
Credi to equity for share-based payment - - 4012 4,012 - 4012
Vesting of share-based payment - - 14,656 {16 728) (2,072) - 2072
Current tax on share schemes - 1581 3581 - 3,581
Deferred tax on share schemes - - 6,297 6,297 - 6,297
Cost of shares acquired {395) - - - - (395) - {395}
Purchase of own shares - - (21,347) - (21 347} - {21 347)
Non-controlling interests - acquisitions - - - - - 190 190
Transactions with owners (395) - (6,691) (2,838) - (9,924) 190 (9,734)
Profit for the financial period - - - 151 595 - 151,596 61 151,697
Other comprehensive income
Cash flaw hedges

- recogmised n the penod - - - - 15,408 15,408 - 15408

- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - - 196 196 - 196
Actuanal losses on defined beneht pension schemes - - - {2,818) - (2,818) - (2.818)
Fair value adjustment 1n respect of available-for-sale
financial asseis - 1011 1,011 - 1,011
Taxation - 4,636 4,636 4 636
Translation differences - Group 11,135 - 11,135 - 11,135
Translation differences - associates 1361 - - 1,301 - 1,301
Total comprehensive income tor the period 12,436 - 154,425 15,604 182,463 61 182,526
At 28 Apnl 2013 (56,234} 18,398 (64,315) 752,018 (24,878) 544,931 (254) 644,677
Vesting of share-hased payments - - 51 124 (51,124) - - - -
Current tax on share schemes - - 25500 - 25,500 25,500
Deferred tax on share schemes - - (k1 215) - (11,215 - {11215)
Non-controlling interests - acquisitions - - - - - {10,513} (10 513)
Exercise of option aver non-controlling interest - - - (19,970) - (19970) 7,861 (£2,109)
Transactions with owners - - 51,124 (96,809) - {5,685) (2,652) (8,337}
Profit for the financial penod - - 180245 - 180 245 {632) 179613
Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges

- recagrused in the period - - - - (3,731) (3,737 - (313N

- reclassified and reported 1n net profit - - - (17,309) (17 909) (17 909
Actvanal gain on defined benefit pension schemes - - 3860 - 3,860 3860
Fait value adjustment in respect of avaitable-for-sale
financial assets - 57,3713 - 57 373 - 57 373
Taxation - - {4 868) - (4 868) {4 868)
Translatien differences - Group (32,498} - - - (32,498} (32,498}
Translation differences - associates - {620) - - - {620) - {620}
Total comprehensive income for the penod (33,118) - 236,610 {21,646} 181,846 (632) 181,214
AL27 Apnil 2014 (56,234} 5,280 {13,251} 911,819 (46,922) §21,092 (3,538) §17,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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i ACCOUNTING POLIEIES

The consolidated finaneial statements of Sports Direct International plc {the
“Company ) and its subsidianes {together the “Graup™) have been prepared in
accordance with International Fanancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Eusopeaa Union (' IFRS )

Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted for use in the European Union {including International Accounting Standards
{“IaS"} and International Financial Reparting Standards Interpretations Commitiee
{(“IFRSIC ") and with thase parts of the Campanies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS as adopted for use i the Evrapean Uman The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as
modified 1o enclude fair valuation of centain financial assets and derwvative financial
nstruments

The following IFRS [FRSIC interpretations ang amendments are effective far the first
time in thss financial year

18519 (revised} Employee Benefits has been adopted in the financial vear The

ievised standard replaces the expected return on pfan assets and the itesest cost on
hatitities with a net interest expense calculated by applying the discount rate to the
et defined benefit asset or llabiliy tn addition, admunistration costs on pension funds
are now recognised in the profit or loss when administration services are performed
The revised standard has retrospective 2pplication The adoption of the rewised
standard has resulted i the following changes

Income statement

« Pension interest income decreased by £1 9m
» Expected return on plan assets decreased by £1 9m

Balance sheet No Impact
Statement of Comprehensive Income No impact

Consolidation

The consohdated financial statements consolidate the revenues costs, assets,
liabilities and cash flows of the Company and its subsidianies, being those entities n
relation towhich the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally achieved by a share of more than 50% of the voting nghts

On acquistion the assets and habiities and contingent hiabilbies of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair vatues at the date of acquisition Any excess of fa:r value of the
consideration transierred over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acguired 1s
recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of fair vatue of consideratron transferred below
the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s ¢redited to the consolidated
income statement in the period of acquisition The non-controlling interest 1s stated at
the non-controlling :nterest s propartion of the fair values of the assets Labilities and
contingent habilhies recogrused Costs incurred relating to acquisitions are expensed
to the sncome statement

The results of subsidianies acquired or dssposed of during the year are incfuded (n
the consolidated acome statement from the effective date of acquisttion or up to the
effective date of disposal as appropriate

Intercompany transactions balances and unreahsed gans and losses on transactions
between Group compantes are eliminated

Associates and juint vantures
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but nat control
generatly accompanied by a share of between 20% and 50% of the veling nghts

A joint venture is an entity 1n which the Group holds an interest on a long-term basis
and which is jointly controlleg by the Group and ene or mare other ventirers under a
contractual agreement

The Group s share of the results of assoviates and joint ventures 1S included n the
Group s consolidated ncome statement using the equity methed of accounting
Investments in associates and joint ventures are carned n the Group's consolidated
balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition ¢hanges in the Group s share of the net
assets of the associates and joint ventures less any impairment in value The carying
values of investments in associates ang jeint ventures include acquired goodwill
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If the Group's share of losses in an assotiate or joint venture equals or exceeds its
tnvestment (n the associate of jornt venture the Group does not recogmise further
losses unless it has incurred obligations to do so or made payments en behalf of the
assaCiaie or joint ventore

tnreahised gamns ansing from transachions with associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the enhity

Investments

Avaitable-for-sale investments are imtially recognised at fair value Where fair value
15 different to cost, this 15 recognised n the income statement on nitial recogmtion
Subsequent gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value are recognised in
the statement of other comprehensive income When the secunty s disposed of
de-recognised or 15 determined to be impaired the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised n other comprehensive income 1s rectassiiad from equity to the income
statement as a reclassification adjustment within ather comprehensive income

Acquisibions

For business combinations achieved in stages, the Group re-measures its previously
held equity interest n the acquiree atits acquisition-date fair value and recognises
the resulting gam or loss 1if any, 1n the income statement as appropriate

Goodwill

Goodwil! anising on consolidation 1s recogmised as an assel and reviewed for
impairment at least annually or when a change in Ciicumstances or situation mdicates
that the goodwill has suffered an impatrment loss The need for impairment 1s tested
by comparing the market value of the cash-generating umit {CGU) to the carrying value
Any mpatrment 15 recogmsed immediately in the income statement Impairment losses
on goodwil are not reversed Gans and fosses on the disposal of a business imclude
the amount of goedwill retating to that business

When the non-controlfing nterest of an existing subsidiary 1s acquired the carrying
value of the non-controtiing interests i the balance sheet 1s ehminated Any difference
between the amount by which the non controlling interest 15 adjusted and the fair
value of the consigeration paid 1s recogmsed directly in equity

Other intangible assets

Brands trade marks and licences that are internally generated are nat recorded on
the balznce sheet Acquired brands, trade marks and licences are initially carrigd on
the balance sheet at cost The fair value of brands trade marks and licences that are
acquired by virtue of a business combination 15 determined at the date of acquisition
and Is subsequently assessed as be:ng the deemed cost tc the Group

Expenditure on advertising and promotional activities 15 recognised as an expense as
n¢urred

No amortisation 1s charged on those brands trade marks or perpetual/renewable
licences with an indefinite ife as the Group beleves that the value of these

brands and trade marks can be maintained indefinitely The Growp carmes out an
impairment review of indefinite Iife intangebles at least anaually or when a change
n circumstances of situation indicates that those mtangibles have suffered an
impairment loss Impairment 15 measured by compareng the carrying amount of

the mtangible asset as part of the cash-generating umt {CGU) with the recoverable
amount of the CGU that s the hygher of its fair value tess costs to sell and its value
muse Value in use is calculated by using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Amortisation (s provided on other brands, trade marks and licences with a defimite
life on a straight line basis over their useful economic bves of 10 to 15 years and 15
accounted for within the selling distnbution 2nd admimstrative expenses category
within the income statement

Property, plant and equiprent

Property, ptant and equipment are stated at histonical cost less depreciation less any
recogmised imparrment losses Cost includes expenditure that is disectly attnbutable
to the acquisition or construction of these items Subsequent costs are included n
the asset s carrying amount anly when rt1s probable that future economic benefits
associated with the tem will flaw to the Group and the casts ¢an be measured reliably
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All other costs mncluding repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement in the period 10 which they are incurred

Depreciation 15 provided on all property, plant and equipment other than freehold land
and 15 calculated on a reducing balance basis or straight-tine basis, whichever is
deemed by the Dicectors to be more appropriate, to allocate cost less assessed residual
value othes than assets i the course of construction over the estimated useful Ives,
as follows

Freehold buildings - between 2% and 7% per annum - straight hine
Leasehald impravements - over the terms of the lease - straight line
Plant and equipment - between 5% and 33% per annum - reducing balance

The assets useful lives and residual values are reviewed and (f appropriate, adjusted
at each balance sheet date

The gain or loss ansing on disposal or scrapping of an asset 15 determined as the
diffesence between the sates proceeds, net of selling costs, and the carying amount of
the asset and 1s recogmised 1n the income statement

impairment of assets other than goodwill and intangibje assets with an

ndefinite Iife

At each balance sheet date the Directers review the carmying amounts of the Group s
tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill and intangible assets with an
indefinite e, to determine whether there 15 any indication that those assets have
suffered an impasrment loss H any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
the asset 15 eslimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss sf any
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating umit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs With respect to property plant and equipment, each store
15 considered to be a CGU and where onerous leases are noted the assets of each
individual store are indwidually assessed for imparment

Recoverable amount 1 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value m use In
assessing value i use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nisks speciic 1o the asset for which the estimates of
future ¢ash flows have not been adjusted

I£ the recoverable amouat of an asset (or CGU} 1s estimated to be less than s carrying
amount the carrying amount of the asset (CGUY) 1s reduced 1o its recoverable amount
An impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately, unless the refevant asset
s carmied at a re-valued amount 11 which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a
revaluation decrease

Impatrment losses recogmised for CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
credited imtially to the carrying amount of goodwill Any remaining impairment loss 13
¢charged pro rata to the other assets wn the CGU

Where 2n impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
{CGU) 15 mncreased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the
ncreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amaunt that would have
been determsned had no (mpaiement loss been recagnised for the asset (CGU)
prior penods A reversal of an impairment l0ss I recogmised in the income stalement
immediately

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts recervable for goods supplied stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes

In the case of goods sold through retarl stores, revenue 1 recogmised at the pewnt of
sale of a product to the customer less provision for returns Accumulated expenence 1S
used 10 estimate and provide for such returns at the time of the sale Retail sales are
usually 1n cash by debit card or by credit card

In the case of goods sold on the internet revenue 1s recogmsed at the point that the
1isks and rewards of the 1nventory have passed to the customer, which 1s the point
of delivery 1o The customer Transacluns are selbidu Oy cradd card or poymert savd
Provisions are made for internet credit notes based on the expected level of returns,

which 1n tusn s based upon the wistoncal rate of returas

FIRANCEAL STATEMENTS

In the case of income generated from trade marks and licences revenue 1s recognised
on an accruals basis in accordance with the relevant agreements cr on a transactional
basis when revenue 15 inked ¢ sale or purchase volumes

Exceptional tems ’

The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the income statement those
significant items of income and expense which, because of their size natuse and
infrequency of the events gwing nise to them, ment separate presentation to allow
shareholders to understand better the elements of financial performance in the year, so
3s to facilitate companson with pnor periods to assess trends 1a financial performance
maore readily

Interest income
Interest income 1s reported on an accrual besis using the effective interest method

Government grants and similar 1ncome

Income from government grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset s
recognised 1n the balance sheet as a deduction i armving at the carmying amount of
the retated asset This 15 considered to reflect the true cost of the asset to the Group
The amount s recogmised 1n the consolidated income statement over the life of the
depreiable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge To date the Group has nat
received government grants in compensation for expenses charged in the consalidated
income statement

Foreign currencies

The presentational currency of the Group 1s Sterling The functional currency of the
Company 1s also Stering Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sterling
using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions Exchange
differences of the Company ansing on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary stems, are included (n the income statement for the penod

Exchange differences anising on the retransiation of non-monetary items carried at
far value are included 1n the income statement for the penod except for differences
ansing on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised 1n other comprehensive income For such non-monetary items
any exchange component of that gain ar loss 15 alsa recogmised directly in aiher
comprehensive income Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

0On consolidation, the assets and liabilsties of foreign operations which have a
functional currency other than Sterhing are translated into Sterling at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of these subsidiary
undertakings are franstated at average rates applicable in the penod All resuliing
exchange diiferences are recogmised in ather comprehensive income 2nd documented
\n a separate component of equity

When a foreign operation 1s sold the cumulative exchange differences that have
been recognised as a separate component of equity are reclassihed from equity ta the
ingome statement when disposal 15 recognised

In order to mitigate its exposure to certain foreign exchange nsks the Group enters info
farward tontracts (See Chief Executve s Report and the cash flow hedging accounting
policy on page 52}

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes the
purchase price of the manufactured products, matenals, diect fabour, transport
costs ang a propornan of appicaoe overheads Costis caiculated using the waightad
average cost method Net reaisable value is based on the estimated selling price less
all estimated selling costs

The Company recewes trade discounts and rebates from suppliers based upon

the volume of crders placed 11 a given Lme window and as a contnibution towards
marketing costs Where there 15 sufficient certainty that a discount or rebate will be
receved in the future that relates to historc purchases this is reflected i the cost of
mventories
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Loans and receivablas

Loans and receivables are recogmsed inshally at fair value plus transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised ¢ost under the effective interest method
less provision for impairment Provision for impairment is established when there s
objective ewidence that the Group will not be able to coffect amounts due according to
the ariginal terms of the receivable The amount of the impairment 15 the difference
between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effectve interest rate

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held on call, together
with other short term highly hquid investments that are readily converbible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in value

Trade and other payables
Trade and ¢ther payables are initiatly measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1S recogmised in the in¢ome
statement except to the extent it relates to items secogmsed i the income statement,
except to the extent 1t relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity

Deferred taxation 15 calculated using the hability method on temporary differences
ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and thew caryng amounts

in the consolidated financral statements However (f the deferred tax anses from

the inihal recognition of goodwiil or imitial recogmition of an asset or lizbihty in a
transaction other than a business combination {hat at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or boss, it 15 not accounted for Deferred
tax om temporary differences associated with shares in subsidianes and joint ventures
1s not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Group
and it 15 probable that reversal will net occur in the foreseeable future In addition tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits to the Group
are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assels Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates and faws that have been enacted {or substantively enacted) by the balance
sheat date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or
the deferred tax hiability 1s settled

Deferred tax habthties are provided in full

Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
prehits will be avalable against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Changes n current and deferred tax assets or habilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income statement except where they relate to items
that are recorded tn other comprehensive income or charged or credited directly 1o
equity in which ¢ase the related deferred tax s aiso charged to other comprehensive
income ¢r credited directly 1o equity

Pensigns
The Group operates pension plans for the benefit of certain employees, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans

In refation to its defired contsibution plans the Group makes contributions to
independently administered plans, the contributions being recognised as an expense
when they fall due The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to make any
further payments to the plans other than the contetbutions due

In relation to its defined benefit schemes, the Group recognises in its balance sheet
the present value of its defined benefit obligations less the farr value of plan assets
The current service cost 1s charged against operating profit Interest an the schemes
habihties 18 ncluded 1 finance costs

The defined benefit obhgation 15 calculated at each penad end by independent
actuaries using the projected unit ¢redit method The present value of the obligation
15 determned by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in

which the benefits will be paid and which have terms to matunity appraximating

the terms of the related pension liabhities Actuanal gams and losses ansing from
expenence adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptians are reflected in other
comprehensive income 10 the period 1n which they anse
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Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recogmsed initially at fair value net of transaction costs incured
and subsequently at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value i1s recognised m the income statement
over the peniod of the borrowangs using the effective interest method

Borrowngs are classified as current labihties unless the Group has an unconditional
nght to defer settlement of the ability for at least 12 months from the balance sheet
date

Barrowing costs being interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
servicing of borrawings, are recogmised as an expense when incurred

Provisions

A provision 15 recognesed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as avesult of a past event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to setile the obligation and a reltable esumate can be made of the amount of the
obhigation

The Group provides for its legal responsibility for dilapidatian costs following adwice
from chartered surveyors and previous experience of ext costs The estimated cost

of fulfilling the leasehald dilagidations obligations 15 discounted to present vatue

and analysed between non-capital and ¢capital components The capital element (s
recogmised as a decommissioning cost and depreciated over the tife of the asset The
nan-capital element 1s taken to the income statement in the first year of the lease
where the cost it represents 1$ of no lasting benefit ta the Group or its tandlord Wear
and fear costs are expensed to the income statement Provisions for onecous lease
contracts are recognised when the Group beheves the unavaidable costs of meeting the
lease ebhgations exceed the economic benefits expected to be receved under the lease

Leases

Leases of property plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the
nisks and rewards of ownership are ¢lassified as finance leases Finance ieases

are capitalised at the lease's inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment 15
allocated between the liab:lity and finance charpes so as to achieve a constant rate an
the finance balance gutstanding The asset subject to the finance lease 1s depreciated
over the shorter of its useful ife and the lease term The corresponding rental
oblrgations net of finance charges, are included as a hability

Leases of property, pfant and equipment where the Group does not have substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Payments
made under operating leases are charged to the income statement ¢n a straight-lme
basis over the lease term Incentives provided by the lessor are credited to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term

Contingent rental payments above standard payments are conditional on the Group s
operating performance denved from the lease item (e g turnover levels) These are
expensed 1n the period en which they are incurred

Rental income from operating leases where the Group acts as a lessor 1s recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The most significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations relates to purchases
made in foreign currencies prncigally the US dotlar The Group s policy 1s to reduce
substantially the nsk associated with purchases denominated in foreign currencies by
using forward fxed rate currency purchase contracts taking into account any forergn
currency cash flows

Dervate financiat instruments are measured at fair value Where derivatives do not
qualify for hedge accounting any gains or losses on re-measurement are immediately
recogmsed in the income statement Where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting
recogmtion of any resultant gain or foss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship and the item being hedged

In arder to qualify for hedge accounting the Group 1s required to document from
inceptron the relationstup between the item berng hedged and the hedging instrument
Yhe Group 15 also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, which shows that
the hedge will be highly effective on an on-going basis This effectiveness testing 1s
performed at each penod end %o ensure that the hedge remains highly effective
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Cash flow hedging Materafity

Dervative financial instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge
the Group’s exposure ta vaniability in cash flows that are either attnbutable to a
particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or liahility or a fughly probabte
forecast transaction

The effective element of any gain or loss from re-measunng the denvative instrument
15 recognised directly in other comprehensive income

The associated cumulative gain of loss 1s reclassified from other comprehensive
income in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects
the profit or foss The reciassification of the effective portion when recogrised in the
ineome statement 1s the same as the classification of the hedged transaction Any
clement of the re-measurement of the dervative instrument which daes not mest the
criteria for an effective hedge 1s recognised immediately in the incame statement
within finance inceme or costs Hedge accaunting 15 discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or 15 sold termmated or exercised or no longer qualihes for
hedge accounting At that pont in time any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity 1s retained (n equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs 1 2 hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain
or loss recognised 1n other comprehensive tncome 1s reclasstfied from equity to the
inceme statement as a reclassification adjustment

Treasury shares

The purchase price of the Group's own shares that it acquires 15 recognised as
“Treasury shares within equity When shares are transferred out of Treasury the
difference between the market value and the average purchase price of shares sold out
of Treasury 1s transferred to tetained earnings

Employee Benefit Trust
The cost of shares acquired by the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust s recognised
within ‘Own share-reserve n equity

Share-based payments

The Group 15sues equily-settled share-based payments to certain Directors and
employees These are measured at fair value at the date of grant, which 1 expensed
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-hne basis over the vesting period,
with the correspanding credst going to equity

Non market vesting conditions are not 1aken into account in determiming grant date
fair value Instead, they are taken inte account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments {o vest

Faur value (s based on the market share price on the grant date The expected

staff numbers used in the model has been adjusted, based on management s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behawoural
considerations

A share-based payment charge of £11 927,000 was recogmsed in selling, distnbution
and admimistrative expenses for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnil 2014 The key details 1n
cespect of the share scheme charges are set out in note 21

The credit for the share based payment charge does not equal the charge per the
income statement as it excludes amounts recogmsed i the balance sheet in refation
to the expected national insurance contributions for the shares and a transfer of
accrued nabonal insurance contributions in respect of previous years’ charges which
had previously been recognised i eguity The amount transferred 1s nat matenal to the
financial statements

Eguity instruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its habilities Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group
are recorded at the proceeds receved net of any direct 1ssue costs

Dvidends

Diidends are recognised as a hability in the Group s financial statements and as a
deduction from equity in the peniod in which the dividends are declared Where such
dividends are proposed subject to the approval of sharehclders, the dividends are
regarded as declared ance shareholder approval has been obtained

In prepanng the financaal statements, the Board considers both quantitative and
qualitative Tactors i forming its judgements, and related disclosures, and are mindful
of the need to best serve the interests of its stakeholders and to avond unnacessary
clutter borne of the disclosure of iImmatenal items

In making this assessment the Boasd considers the nature of each item as well as its
size in assessing whether any disclosure ormissions or misstatements could influence
the decisions of users of the financial statements

International Financia! Reporting Standards {“Standards”} in 1ssue but

not yet effective

At the date of authonsation of these cansohdated financial statements, the
International Accounting Standards Beard {*IASB ) and Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards Committee (' IFRSC") have issued the following standards and
(nterpretations which are effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after
the stated effective date These standards and interpretations are not effective for and
have not been applied in the preparation of the consohdated financial statements

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2015)

'FRS 10 Consehidated Finangial Statements (etfective 1 January 2014)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective [ January 2014)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests tn Other Entities {effective | Janvary 2014}

IAS 27 {Revised) Separate Financial Statements (effective | fanuary 2014)

IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January
2014}

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in
future penceds will have no materral impact on the financial statements of the Group

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESFIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The critical accounting estimates and jud gements made by the Graup regarding the
future or other key sousces of estimaton, uncertainty and judgement that may have a
significant nsk of ging ise te a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets
and habilities within the next financial year ave

Impatrment of goodwll

The calculation for cansudenag the impairment of the camying amount of goodwill
requires a companison of the gresent value of the CGUs to which the goodwill has
been allocated to the value of goodwill and associated assets i the balance sheet
The calculation of present values requires an estimation of the future cash flows
expected 10 anse from the CGUs and the selection of a suitable discount rate The key
assumptions made in relation te the impairment review of goodwill are set out e note
15

Impairment of other intangible assets

The calcutation for considening the impairment of the carrying amouont of other
intangible assets with an indehmite life, specifically brands trade marks and licences
tequires a cempanison of the present value of the related cash flows to the value of the
other intangible assets in the balance sheet The calculation of present value requires
an estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise from the other ntangible
assels and the selection of a suitabte discount rate The key assumptions made in
setation to the smparment review of other inlangible assets are set out in note 15

Useful economic lite of intangible assets

For mtangible assets which have a fimte life, the Directars rewisit their estimate of
pseful econerwig Wiz at each penod end and revise acenedingly Lirenees And teade
marks typically have a ife of between 10 and 15 years

Identification and valuation of acquired intangible assets

On acguisition each matenal separable intangible asset 1s identified and valued by
the Direclors with assistance fom a professional third party Any such calculation 1s
jedgemental in nature as 1t 15 based on a valuation methadology

Brand valuations are typscally valued using the relief from royalty valuation
methodology

The nature and careying amounts of these assets are set out in note 15
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Impairment
The Directors review the carrying amounts of the Group s tangible assets to determine
whether there 15 any indication that those assets have suffered 2n impairment loss

Provision for obsolete, stow moving or defectve inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and experience of the retail mdustry in
determining the leve! and rates of provisioming required in calculating the appropriate
nventory carrying values

Financial pesttion of retirement benefit plans

The net defined benefit pension plan assets er habilities are recogmised m the Group's
balance sheet The determination of the finangial position requires assumptions to

be made regarding inter alia future salary sncreases, mortality, discount rates and
wnflation The key assumptions made in relation to the pension plan are set out in note
24

Prowision for dilapidations and enerous lease contracts

The basis of the estimation of the provisicring for dilapidations and onerous lease
contracts is detailed n the provisions accountiag policy and note 26 Estimates and
judgements are continually evalvated and are based on histerical expenence, external
advice and ather factors, (ncluding expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances Where an onerous lease has been identified,
the assets dedicated to that contract are impaired

Calculation of bonus share scheme charge

A share-based payment charge 1s recogmsed in respect of share awards based on
the Directors best estmate of the number of shares that will vest The charge 1s
calculated based on the fair value on the grant date which 1s deemed to be the date
on which the entity and counterparly reached a shared understanding of the scheme
The key details 1a respect of the share scheme charges are set out in note 21

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEKT

The Group s current activities result in the dallowing financiaf risks and set out below
are management s responses to those nisks in order to minimise any resufting adverse
effects on the Group s financiat performance

Foreign exchange fisk
The Group 15 exposed to foresgn exchange nisk pringipaily via

2 Transactional exposure frem the cost of future purchases of goods for resale, wherse
those purghases are denominated in a cusrency other than the funetional currency

of the purchasimg cempany Transactional exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged These exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated as cash tlow hedges The notional and fair
value of these contracts 1§ shown in note 27

b Net investment exposure frem the fair value of net snvestments outside the UK
The Group hedges its international investments via foreign currency transactions and
boreowings 1n matching currencies

¢ Loans to non UK subsidiaries These are hedged via foreign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies, which are not formally designated as hedges,
as gans and losses an hedges and hedged foans wikl naturally offset

Interest rate risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are princrpally at floating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR The Group does not use interest rate financial instruments
to hedge its exposure to iaterest rate movements The Group regularly momitors and
reacts accordingly to any exposure to fluctuations «n interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and habilities
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Credit nisk

The Directors have a credi pohicy in place and the exposure to credit risk 1s monitored
on an on-gorng basis Credit evatuations are performed on 2l customers requinng
credit over a certain amount The Group does not require coflateral in respect of
finangial assets

At each balance sheet date there were ne significant concentrations of credit nisk
The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1$ representad by the carrying amount of eath
financial asset in the balance sheet

Investments of cash surpiuses borrowings and denvative instruments are made
through banks and companies which must fulfil credit rating and investment crteria
approved by the Board

Liquidhty risk

The availabihity of adequate cash resources 1s managed by the Group through
utilisation of 1ts revodving bank and other facities together with equity and retaned
profits thereby achieving continuity of funding and shart-term flexibrlity

Gapital management
A descriptian of the Group's objectives policies and processes for managing capital
are mcluded 1 note 27

4 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments’ requires the Group s segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the Chiet Operating Decision Maker to assess performance and allocate resources
across each operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as the Executive Directors and
the operating segments are 1dentified as the store fascia or brand 1n line with the
internal reporting to the Executive Directors

Sales and gross profit for each operating segment as well as underlying EBITDA are
the main measures used by the Executive Directors to assess performance

In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8 the Group s operating segments have been
aggregated into the following reportable segments

= Sports Retail — includes the results of the UK and International retail network of
sports stores aleng with related websites

« Premium Lifestyle — includes the results of the premiunt retail businesses such as
Republic Cruise and USC and

* Brands — includes the results of the Group's portfolio of internationally recogmsed
brands such as Everlast, Lonsdale and Dunlop

The basis of the reportable segments has changed duning the vear reflecting
changes that have been made to internal reports used to assess perfermance and
allocate resources across each operating segment UK Sports Retail and international
Sperts Retail were previously reported 2s separate segments These have now been
aggregated 1o form the reportable segment Sports Retail The prior year disclosures
have been restated to reflect this change

Information regarding the Group s reportable segments for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl
2014, as well as a reconcihation of reported profit for the penod 10 underlying EBITDA
15 presented on pages 54 to 56




R4 SPORTSDIRECT.com FINANGIAL STATEMEHTS
NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
v HD DD SN T T e 2T
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014
Retail Brands Ebminatiens Tetal
{£000) (E 000} (€ 00m) (£.000)
Sports Retail Premwm Lfestyls Total Total
Sales to external customers 2,274 365 214,066 2,488,431 217,527 2 705 958
Sales to other segments 203 - 203 29,938 (30,141} -
Revenue 2 274 568 214 066 2488 634 247 465 (30 141) 2705958
Gross profit 974 952 86,263 1,061,215 93,707 | 154 922
Operating profit before fareign exchange and exceptional dems 254 736 (25 729) 229 007 23,825 252 832
Operating profit 251,762 (25 588) 226 174 22,957 249 13t
Other investment costs 7017
Finance income 891
Finance costs (19 853)
Share of profits of associated undertakings and joint ventures 2,266
Profit before taxation 239,452
Taxation {59 839}
Profit for the perod 179,613
Sales to other segments are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up
Qther segment items included in the ncome statement for the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014
Retail Brands Total
(£ 000) (£ 000) (£.000)
Sports Retal Premiurs Lifestyle Tetal
Depreciation 50,549 4,689 55,238 1,725 56963
Amortisation 1348 687 2035 4,797 6,832
Impairment - - - 284 284
Infarmation regarding segment assets and liabilikies as at 27 Apri 2014 and capital expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended
Sports Retar Promum Litestyle Braads Elim:nations Total
<& 000 (£.000) (L 00w (£ 000) (£ aum)
Investments in associated undertakings and joint veniures 42176 - {413) 41,763
Other assets 1,609,024 96,601 183 103 {229,752) 1,658,976
Total assets = 1,651,200 96 601 182 690 {229752) 1,700 739
Jotal habshties (893,269 {123,554) (96,114} 229752 (883,185
Tangible asset add tions 141,328 6,978 2961 - 151 267
Intangible asset additions 33912 434 3,01 - 37 397
Total capital expendiure 175,240 7412 5972 - 188 624
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 28 Aprit 2013
Retail Brands Ehminations Total
{£ 000) (£ 000) (£ 000) (£ 000)
Sports Retail Pramium Liastyls Tetal Total
Sales to external custormers 1 833,264 143,321 1,976 585 208,995 - 2185580
Sales to other segments 8 288 - 3,288 33,807 (42 ,039] -
Revenue 1,841,552 143,321 1,984,873 242,802 {42 095) 2 185,580
Gross profit - 738 281 62 655 800936 53 822 - 894 758
Operating profit before foretgn exchange and exceptional stems 192,764 (1,059} 191,705 18,291 209 996
Operating profit 194,080 (980) 193,100 19,904 213004
(Other investment income 1,473
Finance ncome 1117
Finance costs (9 688)
Share of profits of associated undertakings and joint ventures 1320
Profst before taxation 207,226
Taxation (93,569)

Proht for ihe peras

161,687

Sales to other segments ace priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up
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Retail Brands Total
{EQRO) (£ 000} (£ 000)
Sports Retail Premium Lifestyle Total
Depreciation 43 521 1,906 45 427 2,493 47920
Amortisation 81 113 194 4,482 4676
Impairment 314 - 314 1903 217
Information regarding segment assets and habihties as at 28 Apnl 2013 and capital expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended
Sports Retall Pramium Litestyls Brands Elminations Total
(£ 080) {E 100} (£ 000} {£.000) {£.000)
Investments n associated undertakings and joint ventures 32,117 - - - 32117
Other assets 1,181,033 37 266 191 082 (32,915) 1 376 466
Total assets 1213,150 37 266 191,082 (32,915) 1 408 583
Tetal kabilities {651 046) {43,914) {101 861) 32915 (763 906)
Tangible asset additions 52,891 10284 3,888 - 67 063
Intangible asset additions 1,460 3447 1823 - 6730
Total capital expenditure 54 351 13,731 5711 - 73793
Geographic informatian
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014
13 § Non-UK Ehminations Tota
(£ 000} {E £00) (£ 008 (£ 008}
Segmental revenue from external customers 2063724 642,234 - 2,705 958
Total capital expenditure 84 956 103 668 - 188,624
Segmental assets 1 526 405 404,086 (229,752) 1700739
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 28 April 2013
K Hon-UK Eliminations Total
(£000) 1€ 000) (£ 000} (£ 00m
Segmental revenue from external customers 1,842,429 343,151 - 2,185 580
Total capital expenditure 59 556 4 237 - 737193
Segmental assets 1,214,320 227 178 (32,915} 1 408 583

The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as 1t s one of the mam measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing

performance

Reconciiation of operating profit te undertying EBITDA for the 52 week period ending 27 Apn) 2014
Sports Retarl Premwm Lyfestyls Brands Tatal
{£ 000} (£ 008 {E 000) {5 000
Dperating profit 251,762 (25,588) 22957 24913
Depreciation 50 549 4 689 1725 56 963
Impairment - - 284 284
Amaortisation 1348 687 4797 6,832
Excepticnal items 5531 - - 5531
Share of profit / (loss) of asso¢iated undertakings 2619 - (413) 2 266
Reported EBITDA 311,869 (20 212) 24,350 321,007
Charges for the bonus share scheme 11927 - - 11927
Realised FX gain {2 557) {141) 868 {1830)
Underlymg EBITDA 321,239 (20,353) 30,218 331,304
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Reconciliation of operating proht to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week peniod ending 28 Apnl 2013

Sports Retall Premium Liastyle Brands Total
(£ 000) (£ 008) (£ 000) (£ 000)
Operating profit / {loss) 194,080 (980) 19,904 213,004
Depreciation 43,521 1,906 2493 47 920
Impairment 34 - 1903 2217
Amortisation 8l 113 4482 4,676
Excepticnat items - - (625) 625)
Share of profit / (loss) of associated undertakings 1161 - (210} 951
Reported EBITDA 239,197 1,039 279417 268,143
Charges for the bonus share scheme 22,183 - - 22,183
Realised FX gamn {1,316) {19) (988) {2 383)
Underlying EBITDA 260,024 960 26,959 287,943
5 GTHER GPERATING [HCOME
52 weeks snded
27 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£'000) {€ 000)
Rent receivable 6,119 43249
Other 2,465 2950
4,583 7199
b EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks enden
27 Aprd 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 000) {€£000)
Profit on disposal of mtangible asset - 625
Impairment of tangible assets {5,531} -
{5,531} 625
The impairment relates to assets (i a newly acquired entity that were no longer required post acquisition
7 GPERATING PROFIT
Ogperating profit for the peniod 1s stated after charging / (crediting)
52 weaks ended
27 Apnit 2014 26 April 2613
(£ 000} & 000
Foreign exchange gains {1,830} (2 383)
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment
- pwned assets 53,933 47,920
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,432 4,676
impairment of intangible assets 284 2217
Operating lease rentals
- Land znd buildings 121,341 93 320
- Other j08 699
- 2,36

Luss o dispesas of tangible fued assets




Services provided by the Group's auditor
For the 52 weeks ended 27 Aprik 2014 the remuneration of the auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP and associated fiems, was a5 detailed below
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52 weeks endez

T Aprd 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 000) {000
Auddt services
Audit of the Company's and the consolidated financial statements 85 83
Audrt of subsidiary companies financial statements 585 585
Non-Audit services
Other services relating to taxation 249 260
All other services 208 86
§ [MPLOYEE COSTS
The average manthly number of employees, including Executive Directors emploved by the Group duning the period was
52 weaks anded
27 Aprit 2014 28 Apnl 7013
{Number} {Number)
Retail stores 13,609 11078
Disinbution, administration and other 3,536 2998
17,165 14076
The aggregate pawroll costs of the employees, including Executive Directors, were as follows
§2 weaks anded
27 hgrl 2014 28 April 2013
(£ 08D) {£000)
Wages and salaries 278,714 204 885
Social secunty costs 27835 15 407
Pension costs 1,398 811
307,948 221,103

A share-based payment charge of £11 927 000 (2013 £22,183,000) was recognised n respect of share awards duning the year This is inclusive of the related charges for expected

nahianal insurance contributions

Aggregate emoluments of the Drectors of the Company are summansed below

57 weeks snded

27 April 2614 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 008) € 000)
ﬂ;regale emoluments 605 655
Further details of Directors' remuneration are given in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 40
Details of certain key management remuneration are given i note 34
9 OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME
52 weeks ended
27 hprd 2014 28 Aprl 2013
{£ 000 (€ 000}
Profit on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 5413 -
Dividend income frem investments 1,604 1473
1017 1473
10 FINANCE INCOME
52 waeks snded
27 Aprd 2014 23 Apnl 2083
(E 000) (£ 000)
Bank nterest recevable 161 915
Other interest recevable 130 202
88t 1117




58 SPORTSDIRECT.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KA R AN L R S I |

11 FIRANGE COSTS

FINANCHAL STATEMENTS

$2 weeks enderd

27 Aprit 2014 28 Apn! 2013

E 030} 1£.000)

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 1513 6,606
Interest on ather Inans and finance leases 600 590
Interest on retirement benefit chligations (note 24) 547 497
Faw value adjustment to forward foregn exchange contracts 11,193 1 995
19,853 9688

W The fair value adustment to forward foreign exchange contracts relates to ditferences between the fais value of forward foregn currency contracts not designated for hedge

accounting from one period end to the next
12 TAXATION

52 weeks ended

27 Apnil 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 000 £ 000)
Current tax 57,569 59,298
Adjustment in respect of prior periods {280} 1 476
57,289 60 174
Deferred tax (note 25) 2,559 {5 205)
59,839 55,569

Tax reconcihation
Prafit before taxation 239,452 207 226
Taxation at the standard rate of tax in the UK of 23% (2013 24%) 55,074 49,734

Tax effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,445 1,669
Capital gan not deductible for tax purposes - {150)
Overseas tax losses 2,509 -
Other tax adjustments 1,81t 1584
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - Current tax (280 1,476
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - Defesred tax ! a0 1,256
58,818 55,569

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINGING GPERATIGNS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by driding the eamings atinbutable to ordinary shareholders of the parent by the waighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year

For dilsted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 585,513,537 (2013 568,971,942), 15 adjusted to assume conv

ersion ot ail dilutive potential ordinary

shares under the Group's Bonus Share Schemes being 32,676,278 {2013 51,852,895}, o give the diluted weighted average number of shares of 618,189,815 {2013 620,824 837)

Basic and diluted earmings per share

52 weeks anded

27 hpril 2014 27 April 2014 28 Aptil 2013 28 Apnik 2013

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

(£'000) (E000) (£ 000) 1£.000)

Profit for the penod 180,245 180,245 151596 151 596

Number in thousands Number in thousands

Weighted average number of shares 985,514 618,190 568 972 620 825
Penge per share Pence per share

Earnings per share 08 292 266 24
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The ungerlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared with the prior year and 15 calcelated by dviding underlying earnings by the
weighted average number of shares for the period Underlying earnings 15 used by management as a measure of profitability within the Group Underlying earnngs 1s defined as
prafit for the perod attnbutable to equity halders of the parent for each financial period but excluding the post tax effect of certain non-trading items

Tha Directors believe that the underlying earmings before exceptional items and underlying earnings per share measures provide additional useful information for shareholders
an the underlying performance of the business, and are consistent with hew business performance 15 measured intemally Underlying earnings 1s not a recognised proht measure
under IFRS and may net be directly comparable with “adjusted profit measures used by ather companies

52 weaks ended

27 April 2014 27 April 2014 28 April 2013 28 Aprl 2013
Bazic {iuted Basic Diluted
(000} (£'000) (£ 000) {£000)
Peohit for the perod 180,245 180,245 151 596 151 596
Post tax adjustmants to profit fer the perod for the followeng non-trading items
Realised gain on forward exchange contracts (1,313) (1,3713) {1763) {1763)
Fair value adjustment to forward foreign exchange contracts 8,395 8,395 1476 1476
Profit on disposal of lsted investments (4,068) (4,060) - -
Impairment of fixed assels 4,148 4,148 B B
Prafit on sale of intangible assets - - {463} 463
Fair value adjustments within associated undertakings - - {273} 273)
Impairment of goodwill 284 284 2217 2217
Underlying prefit for the penod 187,628 181,639 152 790 152 790
Humber in theusands Number 1n thousands.
Weighted average number of shares 585,514 618,190 968 972 620 825
Pance per share Pence per share
Underlying easnings ger share 21 303 269 246
14 PROPERTY PLANT AND £QUIPMERT
Fraehold land  Lang term laasehold  Shart-term leasehold Plant and
and burtding imp P Total
(£ 000} 1£ 000} 1£000) 1£.000) (£000)
Cost
At 29 Apnl 2012 219,534 11,386 113230 343043 687 193
Exchange differences 289 16 - 3706 4011
Acqursitions 8173 - 2811 5,196 16 180
Additions 9,692 815 - 40 376 50 883
Eiminated oa disposals {200 {256) (7 963) {5 066) {13 485)
At 28 Apnil 2013 237,488 11,961 108,078 387,255 744782
Exchange differences (3634) 358 - (8 284) {12 160)
Acquisitions 68 448 39 - 15476 83963
Additions 20 808 904 6 59] 39 €01 67 304
Eiminated on disposals {754) {430) (2 228) {6 956) {10,368)
At 27 Apni 2014 322 356 12 832 112,441 425892 873521
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 2% Apnil 2012 (32,684) {4792} {73257) {263 437} {374 170}
Exchange differences (93) (15} - {1318) (1426)
Charge for the penod {731) (95} 16,742} {40 352} {47 920}
Eliminated on disposals 4 83 5612 5 066 10770
At 28 April 2013 (33 504) {4 814) {74,387) (300,041) {412 746)
Exchange differences 137 {137) {166) 722% 7063
Charge for the perod {7,567} {150) {6 444) (42 302} {36 963}
Impairment - - - {5,531} (5531)
Ehminated on disposals 745 - 955 5,277 7.017
At 27 Aenl 2014 (40,189) {5101} {80 002) {335 868) {461 160)
Net book amount
At 27 Apnil 2014 282,167 1.1 32,439 90 024 412,361
At 28 Apnil 2013 203,984 7147 33,691 87,214 332036

Additions i the prior year do not reconcile directly to the purchase of property, plant and equipment per the consolidated cash flow statement due te non-cash additions

The impairment relates to assets in a newly acquired entity that were no longer required post acquisition
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trademarks and

Goodwill Iicences Brands Tetal
(£'000) (E 000} (£ 000 (£ 000}

Cost
At 29 Apnit 2012 136,312 50,037 76 039 262 388
Ansing on Busiagss combinations 6731 - - 6731
Additions through business combinations - 4,448 - 4 448
Other additions - 2,282 - 2,282
Exchange adjustment 3 895 1,128 4952 9,975
At 28 Apn) 2013 146,938 57,895 80 991 285,824
Ansing on business combinations 30,683 - - 30,683
Additiens through business combinations - 4847 - 4847
QOther additions - 1,827 - 1 827
Disposals (4,053} (1 000) - (5 053}
Exchange adjustment {8,348) (1473) (7,705) (17,526}
At 27 Apnl 2014 165,220 62,096 73 286 300,602
Amaortisation and impairment
At 29 Apnl 2012 (14 581) (22,657) - {37 238}
Amortisation charge - (4,676) - {4 676)
Impairment {2,217) - - (2217)
Exchange adjustment {335 {938) - {1273)
At 28 Apnit 2013 (17 133) (28271} - {45,404)
Amortisation charge - (6 832) - (6,832}
Impairment (284} - - (284)
Disposals 3897 1000 - 4,897
Exchange adjustment 1,849 281 - 2,130
At 27 Apnl 2014 (11,671 (33,822) - (45,493)
Net hook amaunt
At 27 Apnl 2014 153,549 28,274 13,286 255109
At 28 Apnif 2013 129 805 29,624 80,991 240,420

Amortisation 1S charged to selling, distnbution and admmistrative expenses in the consolidated income statement

The carrying value of goadwill and brands that are considered ta have an indefinite Iife are allocated to the Group's operating segments before aggregation With the exception of
Everlast, nane of the indvidual cash-genesating units (CGlis) are considered matenal to goodwill or indefinite Iife ntangibles (Brands) The carmying value of goodwill and brands
altocated to the Group s CGUs, (as aggregated except in the case of Everlast}, 15 shown below

Goodwill Brands.

(£ 000 (£ 000}

UK Sports Retail 9820 8,500
tnternational Sperts Retail 34,691 -
Premium Lifestyle 13692 -
Brands (excl Everlasi) 40,908 2,192
Everlast 54438 62,5%4
153 549 13 286

The Group tests the carrying amount ot geodwill ang assets with an inaefinite e annuaily fur mpainment v Muie inquently d thers are indicalions that thewr carning value might

be imparred The tarrying amounts of ether intangible assets are reviewed for tmpairment if there 15 an indication of impairment

Impairment 15 calculated by companng the carrying amounts 10 the value m use derved fram discounted cash flow projections for each CGU to which the intangible assets are
allocated A CGU is deemed ta be an ndividual fascia these have been grouped together into similar classes {or the purpose of formulating operating segments as reported in
note 4

Value n use calcutations are based on five year mapagement forecasts with a terminal growth rate applied thereafter representing management s estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs
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The key assumptions which are equally apphicable to each CGU 1n the cash flow projectiens used to support the carrying amount of gaodwill and intangibles with indefinite hves
as at 27 Apnil 2014 were as follows

International Brands (excl
UK Sports Retal Sports Retail Pramum Lifastyls Evarlast} Everfast
Sales growth 5%-6% 5% 6% 3%-4% 6% 1% -5%
Terminal sales growth 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Gross margin 35% - 45% 35% - 45% 40% - 50% 15% - 50% 25% - 30%
Capital expenditure Nii - £1m Nil-£1m Nil-£1m il - £1m Nil-£1m
Discount rates 1183% 11 83% 11 83% 11 83% 18 67%

The Group Weighted Average Cost of Caprialis used 10 UK Sports Retail International Sports Retai! Premium Lifestyle ard Brands {excl Everlast) as these CGU's are considered to
have similar risk profiles

The key assumptions are based on management's histoncal experience and future plans for each CGU
A reascnably possible change m any key assumption would not cause the camying value of any CGU to exceed 1ts recoverable amount

The intangible assets that have an indefimte hfe are brands and trading names and are considerac to have an indefimite Ife on the grounds of the proven langewity of the brands
and trading names and the Group's commitment to maintarmng those brands

All key assumpticns are consistent with known external sources of information

16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND JOINT VENTURES
The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures The following table shaws the zggregate movement in the Group s nvestment in associates and

Joint ventures

Associates

1£000}

At 29 April 2012 29470
Exchange differences 1301
Additions 26
Fair value adjustments to financial instruments 369
Share of profit 951
Al 28 Apnd 2013 32,117
Exchange differences {620)
Additions 8000
Share of profit 22685
41763

At 27 Apni 2014

Assocrates

The business actiwity of Heatons 1s that of household sporting and leisure goods retail Heatons operates in the Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland The Direclors do net
consider that they have significant influence over the financial and operating policies of Warmambool the parent company of Heatons and sc will continue to account for the

Company as an associate

Heatons has a coterminous year end with the Group There are no significant restrictions on the ability of associated undertakings to transfer funds to the parent other than those

imposed by legal reguirements

The remamning assocrates are not matenal in the context of the Group accounts

The Group s share of associates’ assets, habifities and income statement, which 1s included in the consolidated financial statements, s as foltows

27 Aprd 2014 28 Aprl 2013

{E 080 (£000)

Share of non-current assets 51,702 44108
Share o} current assets 24,459 18 889
Share of non-current habilities (18,259) {19153
Share of current lrabilities {16,139 {11,727}
41,763 2117

52 weehks snded

27 hpril 2014 28 Apnl 2013

(£ 000) £ 000)

Income 95,791 97,791
Expenses (§2,575) {95991)
Profit before taxation 2,176 1 800
Taxation (510} (849)
2,256 951

Profit for the period
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17 AVAILABLE-FER-SALE FINANGIAL ASSETS

27 Aprik 2014 28 April 2013

£ 000} (£ 000

Available-for-sale financial assets 116,504 47 645
The fair value of the available-for-sate investments s based on bid quoted market prices at the balance shee! date

The following table shows the aggregate movement 1a the Group s financial assets dunng the year

27 Aprit 2014 28 Apnit 2013

(£ 040 (£ 000)

At beginning of perod 47,645 46 634

Additions 55,467 -

Disposals {43,881) -

Revaluation through other comprehensive income 51,373 1,011

At end of pertod 116,504 47.645

The dispasal above relates 10 financial assets that were acquired in the year and therefore there 1s no reclassification adjustment between equity and the ncome statement on

disposal

The financial assets at 27 April 2014 relate to strategic mvestments held of between 11 1% and 11 8% n share capital

At 28 April 2013 and 27 Apni) 2014 the Group had no investments wn excess of 20% of share capital
18 INVENTORIES

27 Aprik 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 000} (£ 000
Raw matenals 147 386l
Goods for resale 569,332 443,101
569,479 446 962

The following iaventory costs have been recognised in cost of sales
27 April 2014 28 hpul 2013
(£ 000) (€000
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 1,551,036 1290822

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECE{VABLES

27 hprik 2014 28 April 2013
{£080} (£ 000}
Trade recevables 60,951 50417
Amounts owed by related parlies 1450 7564
Other debtors 19,060 B804
Prepayments 35,653 29,326
123,014 96,111

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recaivables approximates to therr fair value The maximum exposyre to credit nsk at the reporting date s the

carrying value of each class of asset above pius any cash balances

Ageing of trade recevables

27 Aprit 2014 28 Aprl 2013

(£ 000 1£000)

Lurreat 34 667 36786
0-30 days past due 18.467 5513
30-60 days past due 3,113 1759
60-90 days past due 1,194 2082
QOver 90 days past due 2,810 4217
50,851 50417

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired 1s considered o be good
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The movement n the bad debt provision can be analysed as follows

57 weeks ended
27 April 2014 28 Aprd 2013
(& 00m) i€ 000}
QOpening position 6,674 406)
Amounts charged to the income statement 2343 31322
Amounts wntten off as uncoiectable (649} (520)
Amounts recovered duning the year {32) (189)
Closing position 8,336 6674

The Groug has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers These bad debt prowisions / charges have been determined by
reference to past default experience and knowledge of the individual circumstances of certain receivables

The cther classes within trade and other receivables de not include impaired assets

20 CASH AND CASH EQUHVALENTS

27 Apeil 2014 28 Aprl 2013
(£ 000} 15 000
Cash in bank and i hand - Sterling 113,327 106 617
Cash in bank and in hand - US dotlars 15,874 17,309
Cash in bank and i hand - Euros 21,443 22,706
Cash in bank and in hand - Other 380 743
151,024 147 375
Bank overdraft {note 23) {5,742) (5,701)
Cash and cash equivalents including overdrafts at penod end 145,282 141674
21 SHARE CARITAL
27 April 2014 28 Apri 2013
(2 000} £000)
Authorised
999,500 010 ordinary shares of L0p each 99,950 99,950
439 990 redeemable preference shares of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100 000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
640 602 369 (2013 640,602,369) ordinary shares of 10p each 64,060 64,060
Share Capital
At 28 April 2013 ang 27 Apnl 2014 54,060 64 060

The Group holds 42,137 508 shares in Treasury

On 6 August 2013, Appleby Trust (Jersey) Limited as trustee of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust (the “the Trust }, sold 17,000,060 ordinary shares in a secandary glacing on
the London Stock Exchange with Goldman Sachs and Espinto Sante Investment Bank acting as joint bockrunners These skares represent all the ordinary shares which the Sports
Oirect employees elected to self on vesting of their awards under the 2009 Emgloyee Bonus Share Scheme A further 2,420,406 shares vested and were distributed to relevant staff

0n 2 Oclober 2013 the 4,000,000 shares granted under the 2069 Executive Bonus Share Scheme vested At 27 April 2014, the trust held 6 170,490 shares

Contingent share awards

The Executive Bonus Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Bonus Share Scheme which was approved by Sharehalders on 10 September 2010 and 15 a Revenue approved scheme the Board may make share
awards 1n respect of the ordinary shares n the company Awards may be made to Executives and Persons Discharging Managerial Responsibilities over 2 fised number of shares
subject to performance conditions Further details are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 40

An award of 8 073 036 shares was granted an 10 September 2010 at a share price of 125 5 pence, 4 000,000 of these shares kave since vested and 1,000 000 have since tapsed
These shares wll only vest if the performance conditiens (EBITDA targets) and service canditions {continued employment) are met No consideration ts payable in respect of these
awards

The Bonus Share Scheme

The 2011 Bonus Share Scheme was approved by the Board on 10 September 2010 The éirst award of 30 000 000 shares were granted on 10 September 2010 at an average price of
1255 pence At 27 Apnl 2014 22 672 000 (28 Apnil 2013 22 672 000} remained outstanding These shares will enly vest 1§ the performance conditions (EBITDA targets) and service
conditions {continued employment) are met over the next year

A share-based payment charge of £11,927,000 was recognised in respect of these share awards for the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014 based on the Directors best estimate of the
number of shares that will vest The charge 15 calculated based on the fair value on the grant date, which is deemed to be the date on which the entity and counterparty reached a
shared understanding of the scheme
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22 OTHER RESERVES

Parmanent Capnal Reverse

Shase Shate contntetion to redemption combination Hedging Total ather

capital premism capital reserve reserve reserve reserves

(£ 000) (£ 000) (£ 000} 1£000) (£ 000) (5 800) 1£.000}

At 29 Apnl 2012 64,060 874,300 50 8,005 (987 312} a17 {40,480)
Cash flow hedges

- recogmised in the period - - - - - 15408 15 408

- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - - - 196 196

At 28 Apnil 2013 64 060 874,300 50 8,005 (987,312) 16,021 (24,876}
{ash flow hedges

- recognised 1n the peniod - - - - - (3737 13737

- reclassified and reported in net profit - - - - - (17 909) (17 909)

At 27 Apnil 2014 64,060 374,300 50 8,005 (987,312 (5,625) (46 522)

The share premium acceunt 15 used to record the excess proceeds over nomina! value on the issue of shares
The parmanent contribution to capital refates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8 February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution
The capital redemphion reserve arose on the redemption of the Company s redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 Mareh 2007

The reverse combinabion reserve exists as a result of the adeption of the principles of reverse acquisition accounting in accounting for the group restructuniag which occurred on
2 March 2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company ana Sparts World Iternational Limited, Brands Heldings Limited, laternational Brand Management Limited and CDS
Holdings SA with Sports World International Limited as the acquirer

The hedging reserve represents the cumutative amount of gains and losses on hedging snstruments deemed effective in cash flow hedges The cumulative deferred gain or loss on
the hedging instrument 1s recogmsed in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts 1he income statement

Dther Balance Sheet Reserves
The foreign currency transiation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidianies and associates

The awn shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Sports Direct International plc purchased in the market and held by Sports Direct International plc
Empleyee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group s share aptions scheme see note 21

23 BORROWINGS

27 hpril 2014 28 April 2013
(£ 089) 1€ 000)
Non-current
Bank and other loans 6,764 245,625
Obhigations under tinance leases - ?
6,764 245627
Current
Bank overdrafts 5,742 5,701
Bank and other leans 350,484 50,052
356,226 55,753
Total borrowings
Bank overdrafts 5,742 5701
Bank and other loans 357,248 295,677
QObligations under finance leases - 2
362,990 301 380
An analysis of the Group s total borrowings other than bank overdrafis 1s as follows
27 hpril 2014 28 Apni 2013
(E 000} 1% 00w
Botrowings — Steshing M, 731 250,203
Borrowings — Other 116,517 45476
357,248 295,679

Loans are al! at rates of interest ranging between 1 15% and 2 0% over the interbank rate of the country within which the borrowing enbity resides

At 27 Apri 2014 the company had access to the folowing unsecured working capital faciities

» arevolving faciity agreement with ten financial nstitutions, with HSBC Bank plc acting as Agent of E300 milion At the year end a total of £214 miliion was drawn down

against thus facility
o arevolving taciiity agreement with Baigiays Bann pic mih & aggiegaic himt of SEQ miihen A tha year end thig farihty was fully drawn down

« 7 revotving facilily agreement with Handelsbanken plc with 2n aggregate imit of £25 milhien At the year end this facility was fully drawn down

Al of the above facilities were available until § March 2015
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On 23 May 2014 the company refinanced the above fazilities and entered into a new committed unsecured revolving facility agreement with thurteen financial institutions with
Barclays Bank plc acting as Agent This revolving facility can be drawn to an aggregate imit of £688 mullion and 13 available until 27 September 2018

The Group continues to cperate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants
The carrying amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not matenially different
Net debt at 27 Apnil 2014 was £212 Om (29 Apnil 2013 £154 Om)

24 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group s defined beneirt pension ebligations relate to Cunlop Slazenges Group Holdings Limited ( DSGHL") which was acquired on 28 January 2004 DSGHL operates a number
of plans warldwide, the Jargest of which is of the funded defined benefit type The Scheme has been closed to new members since 2005

The amaunts for the current and previous four periods following the acquisition of DSGHL are s follows

21 April 2014 28 Apn| 2013 29 Apnl 2012 24 Apnl 2011 25 Apr1 2010

(£ 060) £ 000) (£ 000y (£000) €000
Total fair value of plan assets 49 438 47411 40,105 36 858 33149
Present value of plan kabiities {64,340) (67,351) (59,423) (53,044) (52 888)
Net plan gbligations (15,350) (19,940 (19,318) (16 186) {19739)
Experience adjustments on plan habilities (46) (7 190) (5 53%) 869 {12 645)
Expenence adjustments on plan assets 3,906 4,372 38 1208 4,461

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and lesses recognised in other comprehensive income as at 27 April 2014 was an actuanal loss of £10 195,000 (2013 actuarial loss of
£13519,000)

There were no unrecognised actuarial gains or losses or past service costs as at 28 Apnil 2013 or 27 Apnil 2014

Amounts recogmsed 1n the income statement are as follows

52 weeks anded
27 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£ 080y i 000
Current service cost 22 14
Net interest expense 547 497
569 511

Tha current service cost 1s included within cost of sales The net interest expense 1s (ncluded within finance costs

Amounts recogmised in other comprehensive inceme 15 as foltows

§2 weaks ended

27 April 2094 28 Apnl 2013
(£000) (£ 000}
Actual return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest income (46) 4372
Actuarial gains/{losses) relating to plan habiities 3.906 (7,190}
3,860 (2818}
The actual return on plan assets for the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014 was a gain of £1 855000 (2013 gain of £6,321,000)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows
52 weeks ended
11 Apni 2014 28 Apnl 2013
(£onm) (€ 000)
At the start of the period 47411 40 105
Interest income based on disceunt rate 1,90 1949
Actuanal (loss)/gam (46) 4372
Emplayer contnbutons 2,768 2708
Employee contributions 12 11
Benefits paid out (2,488) (1734)
At the end of the pernod 49,498 47411

The Group expects to contnibute £2 720 000 to s defined benefit pensian plans for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2015
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The plan asset mux was as follows

17 Aprd 2004 28 Apnl 2013

(£ bog) (£ 000)

Equities 22,807 23555
Bonds 26,313 23149
Cash and other 318 707
49,498 47411

The fair values of the above investments ase determtned based on publicly available market prices wherever available Unquoted investments are stated at fair value estimates
proveded by the manager of the investment or fund

The principal assumptions underlying the actuanal assessments are

7 April 2014 28 Apnl 2033
% %)
Inflation rate 33 33
Future pension increases 33 33
Discount rate 43 40
Mortality assumphions

27 Aprit 2014 28 Apnl 2013

Life expectancy at 65 at penod end
Future pensioners - male 817 876
Future pensioners — female 502 898
Current pensioners — male 860 86 2
Current pensioners — female 881 88 3

The movements in the present value of the plan habilities are as follows
52 wyeks ended

27 Aprik 2014 28 Apni 2013
(£ 000) (£000)
At the start of the penod {67,351} {59 423)
Current service cost {22} (14)
Interest cost (2,429) (2 446)
Actuanal gainftloss) 3,906 {7 190}
Employee contributions {12) {11
Benefits paid out 2,488 1734
Exchange gain / {loss) 886 n
Acquisiions (note 29} {2,214) -
At the end of the period (64,848} (67 351)

The net movements in the net present value of the plan hiabilities were as follows

52 weeks ended

27 Apni 2014 28 April 2013

(£ 000) £ 000

Net liability at the start of the penod {18,940) (19318
Movement in fair value of plan assets 2,087 7,306
Movements in the present value of the plan liabtlities 2,503 (7 928)
{15 350) {19,940

Net hability at tne end of the pengd

In addition to the amounts recognised i relation 1o (he defined benefit retwrement plans, amounts of £519,000 and £155,000 have heen recogmsed in the nceme statement for the
peniods ended 28 A 2013 and 27 Apnl 2014 n relation to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
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Accounts

depreciation Tax losses Pension plan Qther temporary
exceeding tax recoverable liahilires ditferances Total
depreciation (£ 000) (£.000) (E 000} (£ 000) (£000}
At 29 Apnil 2082 1320 525 6,212 (1221} 6 836
Credited / (charged) to the income statement 1,080 (986) (239) 5,370 5205
Credited to the statement of other comprehensive income - - 648 3988 4636
Credited to reserves in respect of Bonus Share Scheme - - - 6297 6297
At 28 April 2013 2,400 (461) 6601 14,434 22974
Cretited / (charged) to the income statement 2142 (24) (275) (4,393) (2,550)
Credited to the statement of other comprehensive income - - (698) (4,170} (4,868)
Credited to reserves in respect of Bonus Share Scheme - - - (11213) (11,214}
Ansing on acquisition - 2742 - - 2742
At 27 Apnl 2014 4542 2,257 5,628 {5,343} 7084
27 April 2014 28 April 2013
(£ 03) (£.000}
Deferred tax assets 31,130 47952
Deferred tax trabilities (24,046) (24 973)
Net deferred tax balance 7,084 22974

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assels and habilities was 21% on the basis this was the tax rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferrad tax assets are recognised for tax losses recoverable and pension plan hahilities to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit i1s probable on the basis of the

Group s current expectations of future taxable profits

Included within other temporary differences 1s a deferred tax asset in relation to the bonus share scheme 2nd a deferred tax habilty recognised on ather intangible assets upon

acqinsition

Tne deferred tax effects of the acquisiions made in the year were considered and 1t was determined that there was no matenal impact on the group or the fair vaiue of net assets

acquired
26 PROVISIONS

Dnergus contracts

and ather
Dilapilations property costs Tofal
(£ 000) (£ 000 (£ 000)
At 28 Apni 2013 31838 9,234 41072
Amounts provided 2,39 1589 3979
Amounts utilised (19) (1,517) {1 536}
Amounts reversed {366) (5,369) {5735)
At 27 Apnii 2014 33 843 3837 37780

Thie dilapidations provision is the best estimatg of the present value of expenditure expected to be incurred by the Group in order to satisfy 1ts abligations to restore its leasehold
premises to the condition required under the lease agreements at the end of the lease discounted 2t 5% per annum The provisior 1s expected to be utihsed over the penod to the

end of each specific lease

The proviston in respect of onerous ease contracts represents the net cost of fulfilling the Group s abligatiens over the terms of these contracts discounted at 5% per annum The

provision 1s expected to be utilised over the penod to the end of each specific lease

The unwinding of the discount on provision over time passes through the ncome statement
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27 FIRANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{a) Financial assets and liabilities by category

The carmying values of financial assets and hiabiities, which are principally denominated in Sterting or US dollars were as follows

, Assets at far
Loans and yalue through  Availatibe for sale Nen-finaneial
receivables profit and loss  financial assets assets Total
(E'000) {£'000) (E'000) £'000) (£'000)
Assets - 2014
Property, plant and equipment - - - 412,361 412,361
Intangihie assets - - - 255,109 255,109
Investmenis in associated undertakings and jount ventures - - - 41,763 41,763
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 116,504 - 116,504
Deferred tax assets - - - 31,130 1,10
Inventories - - - 563,479 565,479
Dervative financial assets - 4,355 - - 4,355
Trade and other recewabies 50,831 - - 62,163 123,014
Cash and cash equivalents 151,024 - - - 151,024
211,875 4,355 116,504 1,368 005 1,700,739
Assets - 2013
Propesty, plant and equipment - - - 332,036 332,036
Intangible assets - - - 240,420 240,420
Investments in asscciated undertakings and joint ventures - - - 32,117 32117
Availahle-for-sale financial assets - - 47 645 - 47,645
Deferred tax assets - - - 47952 47 952
Inventories - - - 445,962 446 962
Dervative financial assets - 17 965 - - 17,965
Trade and other teceivables 66,785 - - 29,326 9% 111
Cash and cash equivalents 147,375 - - - 147,375
214,160 17,965 47 645 1,128,813 1 408,583
Liabilsties at fair
valug threugh profit Nen-financial
Loans and payables and loss fiabibities Total
(£ 000) (£ 000} {E 000) (£ 000}
Liabilities - 2014
Non-current borrowings 5,764 - - 6,754
Retirement henefit ohligations - - 15,350 15,350
Deferred tax hiabilities - - 24,046 24,046
Provisions - - 37,780 37,180
Derwative financial jiabilies - 18,665 - 18,665
Trade z2nd other payahles 235,483 - 152,556 392,015
Current horrowings 156,226 - - 156,226
Gurrent tax lamhties - - 32,335 32,335
502,453 18,665 262,087 983,185
Liabnlities - 2013
Nen-current Dorrowings 245,625 - 2 245627
Retirement benehit obligations - - 19940 19 940
Uelerred tax (1ao1lines - - 74,978 24 978
Provisions - - 41072 41,072
Trade and other payables 263,943 - 56318 320,261
Current borrowings 55753 - - 55753
Current tax habilities - - 56 275 56,275
565,321 - 198,585 763,906

Carrying values do not materialy differ from fair value
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Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determiming and disclosing the fair value of financial mstruments by valuation techmgue

o Level | guoted (unadjusted) pnces 1n active markets for identical assets or liabities,
o Level 2 other techmiques for which all inputs which have a signihcant effect on the recorded air value are observable either directly or indirectty, and
« level 3 techmques which use inputs which have a significant effect an the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

As at 27 April 2014 the only financial instruments held at fair value were Dervative financial assets and habiities which are classihed as Level 2 and Available-for-sale financial
assets which are classified as Level 1

(b} Derivatives foreign currency forward purchase contracts

The most significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations relates te purchases made in fereign currencies, arincipally the US dallar The Group's policy 15 to reduce
substantially the nsk assocsated with foreign currency spot rates by using forward fixed rate currency purchase contracts, taking inte account any foreign currency cash flows The
Group does not hold or 1ssue derwvative financial instruments for trading purposes however If derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted for as such and
accordingly any gain or less Is recogmised immediately 1n the income statement

The carrying values of forward foreign currency purchase contracts were as follows

27 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013

(£ 080} (€000)

Fair value of dervative inancial instruments - assets 4,355 17,965
Fair value of derrvative inancial instruments — (iabilities} {18,665} -

The sterling principa| amounts of forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forward rates were as follows

27 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013

(£ 000} (£.000)

US dollar purchases 540,348 285000
Contracted rates 161-171 163
Euro sales - (44 031}
Contracted rates - 113114

At 27 Aprif 2014 £540m of forward US dollar purchase contracts qualified for hedge accounting and the 1oss on fair valuabion of these contracts of £21 Em has theretore been
recognised in other comprehensive mcame This amaunt 1s sphit between a loss of £3 7m recogmised (n the peniod and a loss of £17 9m reclassified n the penad

Forward foreign currency purchase and sale contracts generally have a matunity at inception of approximately 12 months At 27 Apnil 2014 £245m of purchase contracts had a
maturity at inception of greater than 12 months (2013 £mil of purchase contracts and £nil of sale contracts)

{c) Sensitivity analysis
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group s prncipal fareign currency exposures are to US dollars and the Euro The table below iflustrates the hypothetical sensitivily of the Greup $ reported profit and equity to
a 5% ncrease and decrease in the US dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year end date, assuming all other vaniables remain unchanged The figures have
been calculated by comparing the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if exchange rates moved as illustrated The income
statement figures include the profit effect of any relevant derwatives which are not in a dessgnated cash flow hedge The impact an US dollar related hedging instruments is
meluded in equity

Positive figures represent an increase / {decrease) in profit or equity

Income statement Equity
27 April 2014 28 Bpril 2013 27 april 2014 28 Apnit 2013

(£ 020} £ 000) (£ 00} (£000)
Sterling strengthens by 5%
US dollar 812 | {5,205) (1,783)
Euro 2218 3 2,218 34
Sterling weakens by 5%
US doltar . {852) (702) 5,465 1 872
Euro {2,329 (35} {2,329) (35}

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table ilustrates the hypathetical sensitwity of the Group's reported profit and equity 1o a 0 5% increase or decrease i interest rates assuming all cther vanables
were unchanged

The &nalysis has been prepared using the following assumptions

* For figating rate assets and habidities, the 2mount of asset or abrity cutstanding at the balance sheet date 1s assumed te have been outstanding for the
whole year

» Fixed rate financizl instruments that ase carried at amortised cest are not subject to interest rate nisk for the purpase of this analysis
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Positive figures represent an increase m profit or equity

Income statement Equity
27 hpril 2014 28 Aprl 2013 27 April 2014 28 Apel 2013
(£'090) 1£.000) (£ 000} 1£.000)
Interest rate increase of 0 5% (1,690) (1,507) (1,690) {1507)
interest rate decrease of 0 5% 1,860 1,507 1,690 1,507
(d) Ligudity nisk
The table below shows the matunty analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the Group's financ:al liabilities
Lets than | year ito 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 years Tatal
(£ 000 (£ 000} (£ 000) (£ 000) (£00D)
2014

Bank loans and overdrafts 156,226 1,13 5,237 - 363,192
Yrade and other payables 239,483 - - - 239463

Derwative financial habihities
Cash inflows (401,719) {185,111 - - (506,895
Cash outflows 414,776 105,263 - - 520,039
608,747 1,817 5,237 - B15,800

ms3

Bank lpans and overdrafts 50,450 102 290,228 2,296 303,036
Obhgations under finance leases - 1 i - ?
Trade and other payables 165,976 - - - 169 976

Dervative financial habiltes
Cash inflows (344,439} - - - (344,439}
Cash outflows 327087 - - - 327 087
203,074 103 250,229 2,256 455,662

Gapital management

The camital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent compromising 1ssued share capital share premium and retained earnings and

cash and borrowings

It 1s 1he Group's policy to maintam a strong capital base so as to maintan investor credrtor and market confidence and to sustain the development of the business

In eespect of equity the Beard have decided that, in order to maximise flexibility 1n the near term with regards to 2 number of nargan:c growth opportunities under review not to

return any cash by way of a dividend at this time

The Board Is commutted to keeping thus policy under review and that it would look to evaluate alternative methods of returning cash to shareholders when appropriate

The abjective of the Bonus Share Scheme 15 to encourage employee share ownership and to link employee s remuneration to the performance of the company 1t 1s not designed as a
means of managing capital

In respact of cash and borrowings the Board regularly moniors the ratio of net debt to underlying EBITDA the working capital requirements and forecasted cash flows however ng
MIMMum or maximum ralios are set The ratio for net debt to reported underlying EBITDA , excluding charges for the bonus share schemes, 15 0 64 (2013 058) The objective 13 to
keep this figure below 2 5

Based on this analysis, the Board determines the appropriate return fo egquity halders whitss ensuring sufficient capital 1s retaned within the Group to meet its strategic objectives,
including but not hmited to, acquisition opportunities

These capital management policies have remained unchanged from the prior year

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21 Aprik 2014 28 Apnil 2013

(& 000 (€ 00D)

Trane payanies 239 463 169 976
Amounts owed to related undertakings 22 167
Other taxes including sacial secunty costs 22,230 23,684
Other payables 10,263 32 634
Accruals 120,041 93,800
392,018 320,261

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value
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79 ACGHISITIONS
Details of principal acquisiticns for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014 are set out below

1 29 Apnil 2013 Acquired the remaiming 20% of the ordinary share capita! of Cruise Clothing Limited As this)s an acquisition of a non-contralling interest 1t 1s outside
the scope of IFRS 3 The difference between the conswleration paid (£1 0m) and the value of non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition (£0 6m)
has been recogmsed as a debit to retained earnings of £0 4m

1 21 June 2013 Acquired the trading assets of Gelert out of admimistration fer cash consideration of £4 7m The pnmary business activity was the wholesale and retaii
of outdoor sporting equipment and clothing and was acquired te complement existing business activities

1 28 June 2013 Acquired 51% of the ordinary share capital of the Sports Eybl and Sports Experts Group (EAG) a retailer with 58 stores based in Austria, for consideration
of €10 5m The primary business activity was the sale of sporting equipment and clothing and was acquired in order to enter new terntories as part of
the Group s European expansion plan

In addition the Group entered into a put and call agreement to acquire the remaining 49% This option was exercised on 26 March 2014 for
consideration of €12 75m such that the Group now has full control and ownership of EAG which better enables the Group to implement its plans and
strategy in this region

As this 1s an acquisition of a non-controlling interest it 1s outside the scape of IFRS 3 The difference between the consideration paid (E11 Im} and the
value of non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition (£8 5m) has been recogrised as a debit to retained earnings of £19 5m

v 12 August 2013 Acquired 60% of the ardinary share capital of SIG, based in the Baltic region, for cash consideration of €7 Om The pnmary business activity was the sale
of sporting equipment and clothing and was acquired in order to enter new territonies as part of the Group's Eurepean expansion plan

In addition to acquirning 60% of the skare capital of SiG, the Group entered mto a call optson to acquire the remaining 40% The risks and rewards of
ownership of the remaining 40% remain with the non-controlling interests and therefore the eption 1s accounted for separately The call option has been
recogrised at fair value through profit or loss using the usual method of accounting for denvatives at their net fair value At the year end date no value
has been attributed to the option

The fair value of consideration paid, assets and labihities acquirec and resulting goodwill v respect of the abeve acquisitions 15 detailed below

EAR SIE Other Total

(£000) (£ 000) (£ 108) (£ 000)

Cash consideration 9,060 5,989 6,450 21499
Less fair value of net habilities/(assets) acquired 10 805 3,500 (5121} 9,184
Goodwill 19,865 9 489 1329 30683

The strategic rationale for the acquisitions of EAG 2nd SIG was to enter into new European territories in accordance with the Group s stated strategy The premium paid represents
the local employee and management expertise and ready-made infrastructure in these markets for which a value cannot be attributed to under IFRS3

In accounting for these acquisitions the Group has considered whether any fair value acjustments to the assets and hiabilities, including any separately identifiable intangible
assets, need to be recognised

The following items were considerad by the Group

Freehotd property — the majonty of the £80 6m of property, plant and equipment in the EAG balance sheet 15 freehold property The Group referred to a praperty valuation report that
was prepared shortly before the acquisition which prowided comfort that the book value was not materially different to market value Accordingly no fair value adjustment has been
made

Brands / Contracts — the principal actwities of both EAG and SIG are the retailing of third-party branded products There were no intemally generated brands or other commerciat
contracts that formad part of the acquisition

Fascia names — both EAG and SIG trace from established fascia names The Gioup considered the value of these fascia names using the current level of retail sales and an
indicative royalty rate discounted at an appropriate nsk adjusted cost of capital This exercise indicated that there was no material valug to be atinbuted fo the fascia names
Accardingly no fair value adjustment has besn made

Websites — the wabsites acquired wera not generating profits and therefore no value has been atinbuted to them

Operating leases — there are a number of operating leases within both EAG and SIG The Group consider the rentals payable under these leases to be approumate to market value
Accordingly no fair value adjustment has been made for intangible assets relating to operating leases The Group did identify that no provision had been made locally in respect of
foss making stores and therefore a fair value adjustment has been recognised to align this with the Group's policy

Costs of £1 2m relating to the above acquisibons were expensed thraugh the income statement during the year and were expensed as administration expenses

None of the acquisitiens included 1n ‘ather’ above are considered to be individually matenal
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EAG
The asset values at acquisition are detaled below

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Carrying values Fair value Fair value of net
at acgquisition adjustmant assets acquared
(£ 0O0} (£ 000} {E 090)
Property, plant and equipment 80,601 - 80,601
Intangible assets 9,117 {5,825 3,292
Investments 535 - 535
Deferred tax assets 2,742 - 2,742
Inventores 42,634 - 42 634
Trade and other recervables 4526 - 4 526
Cash and cash equivalents 5450 - 5450
Borrowings (93,912) - (93,912
Retirement benelit abligations (2234) - (2,234
Trade and other payables {60,903) {1565} {62,458)
Provisions - 433} {433)
Nan-controlling interests 5,608 2,854 8,462
(5,836} {4,969} (10 805)
There I1s no matenal difference between the gross and net amounts of recervables acquired
The fair vatue adjustments noted above relate to the conselidated goodwill within the books of EAG on acquisition and adjustments to employment related creditors
Cash flows arising from the acquisition are as follows
27 April 2014
1£ 000}
Cash ¢onsideration 9060
Cash acquired {5 450}
Net cash outflow in the cash flow statement 3610

SIE
The asset values al acquisition are detaiied below

Carrying values Provizional fair value

Fair value of net

at acquistion adjustmant assets acquired
(£000) (£.000} (£ 000)
Property plant and equipment 2,056 - 2,056
Intangible assets 155 - 155
Inventories 14,456 - 14 456
Trade and ather recewables 2,928 - 2,928
Cash and cash equwvalents 530 - 530
Borrowings (13,590) - (13,590)
Trade and other payables {12514) - (12,514
Non-cantrolling interasts 2479 - 2479
(3,500) - (3,500)

Cash flows ansing from the acquisitian are as follows
7 Apnl 2014
(£ 00D)
Cash consderation 5989
Gash acquired (5301
5459

et cash outflow in the cash flow statement
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The asset values at acquisition are detailed befow
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Garrying values  Provisional fair value

at

Farr valus of net
assels acquired

(£ 000) (£ 000} {£000}
Property plant and equipment 1306 - 1 306
Intangibie assets 1400 - 1400
Inventories 8906 - 8906
Trade and other receivables 1208 - 1208
Cash and cash equivalents 112 - 142
Borrowings {1609} - (1609)
Trade and other payables (5774) - (5774)
Non-controlling interests (428) - (428)
5121 - 5121
Cash flows anising from the acauisition are 35 follows

27 April 2014
{£ 000}
Cash considesation 6450
Cash acquired {112}
Net cash outflow in the cash flow statement 6,338

Since the date of acquisition the following batances have been included within the Greup's financial statements far the penod n respect of the above acquired entities
EAR Sig Dther Total
(£ 000} (£ 000} {£.000} (£.00m)
Revenue 214,598 39,901 22,153 276 652
Operating {loss) / profit {8,658) 457 (3738) (11939)
{Lass) / profit before tax (10,910} 195 (3,770} (14 485)

Had the above acquisitions beer included from the start of the peniod £2 754,000 000 of revenue, £253,386 000 of operating profit and £237 627 000 of profit before tax would

have been shown in the Groups financial statements

There were no contingent habihities acquired as a result of the above transactions

30 CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

§2 weaks endad

27 April 2014 28 Apnl 2013

(£ 000) (€ 0001

Profit before taxation 239,452 207,226
Net ftnance costs 18,962 8571
Other investment income {1,017} (1,473)
Share of profits of associated undertakings and joint ventures {2,266) {1320
Operating profit 249,13 213004
Depreciatzon 56,963 47920
Amortisatian 6,832 4676
Impairment 5815 2217
Profit on disposal of intangibles - {629)
Defined benefit pension plan current service cost b1 14
Defined benefit pension plan emplayer contnbutions (2,708) {2 708)
Share-based payments 11,927 22 183
Operabing cash inflow before changes in working capital 327,982 286 681
Incraase in recevables (18,241) {6579)
Increase in inventories (52,521) {102,026)
Decrease in payables (34,435) (18,982
222,185 159 054

Cash inflows from operating actraities
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31 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As at 27 Apni! 2014 the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Apra 2014 28 Apnit 2013
(£00m (£ 000)

Land and buildings
Within one year 99,041 88 044
In the secend to hfth years ncluswve 329,163 306,390
After five years 242,297 245,856
579,501 640,330

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts There are no clauses in relation to restrictions concermng dwidends, additional debt and further leasing
within our portfolio Contingent cents are payable on cerlain store [eases based on stare revenue For those leases that are tumover-related leases, the annual net lease
commitment 15 calculated using the estimated lease lrability and any changes in the rental charge are accounted for when known Amounts of £2 213,762 (2013 £5641 £00) were

charged to the income statement in relation to contingent rent

The Group sub-lets certain stand-alone retaif stores which ase ne longer operated by the Group The property rental sncome earned duning the 52 weeks ended 27 Aprd 2014 was

£6 118 000 (2013 £4,249 000)

Bs at 27 April 2014 the Group had contracts with sub-tenants for the following future mmmum lease rentals

27 Apri 2914 28 Apni 2013
(E'000} (£000)

Land and buidings
Within one year 5,808 3851
In the second to fifth years inclusive 17,812 13 147
After five years 22,388 15124
46,000 32122

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments of LNl mutfion as at 27 Apnif 2014 (2013 £5 & mulfion}

33 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LEABILITIES

There were no matenal contingent assets or habilities at the balance sheet date

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within IAS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures’ from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group comparies

as these have been eliminated on consolidation

The Group entered into the following matenial transactions with related parties

52 weeks ended 27 April 2014

Trade and other

Trade and ather

Sales Purchases receivables payables
Retztionship (£ 000} [{4)] (£ 000) (£ 000}
Related party
Heatons Asscciate 28,759 - 5271 -
Brasher Leisure Limited Associate 11,508 209 2,179 -
Newcastle United Football Club Connected persons 3,39 - - -
Rangers Retail Limited Associate 3,843 - - -
52 weeks ended 28 April 2013
Frade and other Trade and other
Szles Purchases recewvables payahles
Relatignship (£ 400) (5 00D) (€ 000 (£000)
Retated party L
Heatons Associate 26,820 - 3816 -
Brasher Leisure Limited Assocrate 11,023 4,554 2 611 136
NDS EHF Asscciate 3,130 - 998 -
Hewcastle United Football Club Connected persons 498 - - -
Queensdown Associates Associate 1,019 - - -

Alf related party transactions were undertaken on an arms length basis
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27 Agel 2014 2R Aol 2017
{E 000) i 00y

Key Management, Executive and Non-Executive Director Compensation
Salaries and short-term benehts 1435 1497
Share based payments 2,003 2069
3438 3 h66

Tota!

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The principal subsidvary undertakings of the Company at 27 Aprid 2014 were as fallows

Parcentags of issued

Hame Country ¢f incorparation  share capital heid Nature of bustnasy

Antigua Enterprises inc* USA 100 Sporting and leisure goods wholesale and brand licensing

Brands & Fashion NV* Belgium E00 Braad management and licensing _
Brands tne Limited™ England 100 Brand management and hcensing L
Brands Holdings Limited England 100 Brand management and hicensing

Cruise Clothing Lamated * Scotland 100 Fashign retail .
Donnay International SA* Belgium 100 Sporting and lessure goods wholesale and brand kcensing

Duntop Slazenger Group Limited*” England 100 Sporting and leisure goods whalesale and brand licensing _
Everlast Worldwide Inc * USA 100 Sporting and leisure goods wholesale and brand licersing

Field & Trek (UK) Lumited” England 100 Sporting and feisure goods retail

Firetsap Limited™ England 100 Fashign retail i
The Flannels Group Limied* England 51 Fashien retail . T
International Brand Management Limited England 100 Brand management T .
Kangol Holdings Limited* England 100 Fashion and leisure goods wholesale and brand hicensing

Karrmor Limited* England 100 Fashion and leisure goods wholesale and brand hcensﬁ—g- ’
Lillywhites Limited* England 100 Sporting and leisure goods retail .
Lonsdale Boxing Limited” Eagland 100 Sporting and lessure goods wholesale and brand licensing

Lonsdale Sports Limsted* England 100 Sporting and lersere goods wholesale and brand licensing ’
Smith and Brooks Heldings Limited* England 100 Fashion and leisure goods wholesate and brand hcensmg— -
Sondico Professionat Limited™ England 51 Fashion retail ) o
Spart Eybl GmbH Austra 100 Sporting and leisure goods retail )
Sports Essenbials Lirmited* England 100 Spaorteng and lessure goods wholesale and brand licensing

Sports Direct Estomia AS Estonia 100 Sparting and lersure goods retail

Sportsdirect com Retail {Europe) SA Balglum 100 Spaorting and leisure goods retail

Sportsdirect com Retait Limited England 100 Sporting and leisure goods retail -
Sportsdirect com SLYN doo Sloventa 100 Sporting and feisure goods retail o o
The Trademark Licensing Company Limited™* England 100 Brand licensing T -
Universal Cycles Limited*” England 100 Cycling wholesaler -
Used Tackle Limited* England 100 Sporting and leisure gaods retail -
West Coast Cagital (USC) Limited * Scottand 100 Fashion retai

= Held by an intermedate sebsidiary

All subsidianes have coterminous year ends Alf priacipal subsidiary undertakings operate in their country of incorporation

A full st of the Geoup s operating subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the next Annual Return filed at Companies House

There are no significand restrictions on the ability of the subsidiary undertakings te transter funds to the parent other than thase imposed by the legal requirements
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Sparts Direct International plc will provide a parental guarantee for the followsng Untted Hingdom incorporated subsidiary comparies thus entithng them 1o exemption from
statulosy audit wnder sectien 4794 of the Companies Act 2006

Gompany Name Company Number {ompany Kame Company Humber

£verlast Australiz Linuted 08103912 DI {New Cavendish Street} Limited 06306917

1 W Myers Lomuted 13352452 SO} (Newark) Limited 07853470

SD1 (Aberwystwyth) Lumited 02789996 SOI {Newpart) Limited 08679118

SDI (Ashiord) Lunited 07848460 SD1 {Newton Abbot) Limited 06836666

SDI {Ashington) Limited 07849231 SOI {Northampton) Limted 07852272

SDI (Ayr} Lumited 05528267 SOF (Nuneaton) Limited §7852249

SDI {Bangor} Limited 05529705 SDI {Oswestry} Limited 07852363 .
SDI {Barrow in Furness) Limited 07851574 SDI {Pasley) Limited 02933408

SDI {Basitdon) Limited 08512592 3DI {Penzance) Limited 07852297

SDI (Beddgelert) Limited 08577551 8D (Peterlee) Limited 07852401

SDE (Berwick) Limited 02739957 SDI (Ramsgate) Limsted 07852250

SD1 (Betws-y Coed} Lumited 06836673 S0I thedcar) Limited 02731452

SDI {Birkenhead) Limited 07849198 SDI (Rolle St) Limited 07852669

SDI (Bishop Auckland) Limtted 03004246 SDI {Scarhorough) Limited (6328463

SDI (Bridgwater) Limited £7852061 SDI (Scunthorpe) Limited 07852055

SDI (Burton) Limited (8495632 SDI (Slough) Limited 07852417 .

SDI (Carlisle) Limited 07851959 SDI (Southampton) Limited 08512480 o
5DI {Chatham) Limied 05836679 SDI (St Austell) Limsted (7852284 .

5DI {Clacton) Limited 07852078 SDF (St Helens) Limited 17852281 T
$DI1 {Colchester) Limited 05632790 SDI (Stafford) Limsted 08568681

SDI {Dunfermbine) Linted (8483679 SDt (Stoke Longton) Limted (7853877 -
SDI {Exmouth) Limited 06328505 SOI (Stoke Newington) Limited 07852207
_SDI {Fulham) Linuted 07852037 SOl (Stroed) Limited 07852251

SDI {Gaimsborough) Limiled 06338907 SBI (Sunderland) Limited 08755347 T

SDI {Galashiels) Limited 07852091 30l {Taunton) Limited 07852191 T
SDI (Gloucaster) Limited 07852067 SOl (Wakeheld) Lismited 08483711

3DI (Hastings) Limited 08525893 SDI (Walsall) Limited 07852289 T

SDI (Keighley) Limited 06260239 D1 (Weymouth) Limited 06716652

SDI {Kendal) Lrmited 06338918 SOI (Wishaw) Limited 06656365

SDI (Katmarnock) Limited (7853433 SD1 Properties {Wigan) Limited 06836522

SDI (Krkcalcy) Limited 07852097 SDI Property Limited 02767493 T
SOI (Lowestolt) Limited 07852265 Stirlings (Argyle Streef) Lmited SC088108 T
SDI (Neath) Limited 07853548 Queensdown Asscciates Limited 04258804

16 ULTIMAYE CONTROLLING PARTY
The Group +5 contrelled by Mike Ashley through his 100% shareholding in MASH Holdings Limited, which has a 58% shareholding 1n the Company

37 POSE BALANCE SHEFT EVENTS

Dn 28 May 2014 Sports Direct International pic and certamn subsidianes {the “Borrawers ) entered :nto a commitied, unsecured revolving facility agreement {the Revolving
Faciity }with 13 financial institutions, with Barclays Bank ple acting as Agent The Revolving Faciirty 1s available o any of the Borrewers and can be drawn 1o an aggregate it
of £688 million 1t1s capable of being utilised by way of cash advances andfor currency barrowings  This facility 15 not secured aganst any assets This facibty 1 avaitabie ustil
27 September 2018

On 18 june 2014 Sports Direct International pic acquired a 4 8% stake in MySale Group PLEC, which recently commenced trading on the Aternative Investment Markel of the
Loncon Stock Excnange On 14 sy 2014 Spots Diteel annvunved o parkiersing with mySale, inciuding a new omling offenaig i Austiahia snd New Zealand 74 the openmg of
three flagstup stares in Australia and one in New Zealand

On 20 June 2014 the Group sold a feehold propesty for £21 2m and then entesed into an agreement to iease the property back from the buyer

There were no other material post ba'ance sheet events after 27 Apni! 2014 to the date of this Annual Repart
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We have audited the parent company financial statements of Sports Direct
International plc for the 52 week peniod ended 27 Apni 2014 which compnise the parent
company balance sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framewark that
has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s
applicable law and Umied Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This repert 1s made soiely to the Company s members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 OQur audit wark has been undertaken
50 that we might staie to the company s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditos s report and fos no other purpese To the fullest extent
permitted by Jaw we do not accept or assume responsibiiity to anyone other than the
Company and the Companys members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opimions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the tinancial statements and for being satishied that
they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion

on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and international
Standards on Audtting (UK and treland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A description of the scope of an audit of financeal statements 15 provided on the
Financia! Reporting Council's website at www dre org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In gur opiman the parent company financial statements

« pive a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 27 Apnl 2014

* have been praperly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

GPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
in our opinion

= the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and

o the infermation given in the Strategic Report and Directors Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements ase prepared 1s consistent with the parent
campany financial statements

SPORTS DIRELT INTERNATIDNAL PLC 7 7
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTICON
We have nothing to report in respect of the foflowing matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you 1f, 1n our apinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent campany, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received fram branches not visited by us or

= the parent company financ:al statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report te be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not ceceived all the information and explanations we reguire for our audi

OTHER MATTER
We have reporied separately on the group knancial statements of Sparts Direct
International ple for the 52 week period ended 27 Aprd 2014

Philip Westerman

Semior Statutosy Auditor

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutosy Auditor Chartered Accountants
London

17 July 2014
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Hetes o0 oo
Fixed assets
Investments 2 1,077,408 1,066 026
Current assets
Debtors 3 14,984 1953
Cash at bank and in hand 186 139

15,170 2,092

Creditors amounts falling due within one year 4 (114,018) (89 141}
Net current habulities (93,848) (87,049}
Net assets 979,560 978977
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 5 54,060 B4 060
Share premium [ 814,300 874,300
Treasury shares reserve 6 {56,234} {56,234)
Permanent contribution to capital 6 50 50
Capital redemption reserve 1] 8,005 8 005
Own share reserve 6 (13,251 {64 375)
Profit and lpss account 6 181,630 153,171
Shareholders’ funds 7 978,560 578977

The accompanying acceunting palicies and notes form part of these financial statements

The finangial statements were appraved by the Board on 17 fuly 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
Director
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

feein o YEERSHLDLD 27 APRIL 2014

1 ACCOURTING POLICEES

Accounting policies

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with apphcable United Kingdom accounting standards A summary of the matenal accounting policies adopted are described
below

Basis of accounting
The accounts have been prepared under {he historical cost convention

As permitted by Section 408 of the Comparues Act 2006 a profit and loss account of the Company 15 not presented The Company s loss after taxation for the 52 week period 27
Agnil 2014 was £417 000 (2013 £3,249,000 loss)

Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

Cost represents cash consideration or the amount of ordinary shares 1ssued by the Company at nominal vatue after taking 2ccount of merger relief available under Section 612 of
the Campanies Act 2006 plus related acquisition costs capitalised at fair value

Deferred taxatign

Deferrad tax (s proviced for on a full provision basis on all tming differences, which have ansen but not reversed at the balance sheet date No timing differences are recognised
in respact of gains on sale of assets where those gains have been rolled over inte replacement assets A deferred tax asset 1s not recognised to the extent that the transfer of
econamtc benehit 1n future 1s mare unhkely than not

Deferred tax 1s calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which timing differences reverse based on tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Foreign currencies

Items ansing from trznsactions denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction At the balance sheet date ail
smonetary 2ssets and lsabihities denominated in foresga currencies ase translated at the closing rate or at the rate of exchange at which the transaction 1s contracted to be settled i
the futuse Al exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss account

Dwidends

Dywvidends on the Company's ordinary shares are recogmised as a hability in the Company's inancial statements and as a deduction from equity 1n the peniod in which the
dividends are declared Whers such dividends are proposed subject to the approval of the Company s sharehsiders, the dividends are only declared once shareholder approval has
been obtained

Equity instruments

An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities Equity instruments issued by the Company
with the exception of those accounted for via merger rehief available under Section 612 of the Compames Act 2006 are recorded at the proceeds recerved net of any direct 1ssue
costs

Income from Group undertakings
Income from Group undertakmgs 15 recognised when qualifying consideration 1s ceceved from the Group undertaking

Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemphion contaimed in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group

Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20 “Share-based Payments The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments fo certain directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries These are measured at far value at the date of grant which 1s expensed to the profit and loss on a straightling basis aver the vesting period
hased on the Group s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

The expected hife used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrichions 2nd behavioural
considerations A share-based payment charge of £11 927,000 was recogmsed for the 52 weeks ended 27 April 2014 based on the directors best estimate of the number of shares
that wili vest £11 345 000 of this share-based payment was recharged to subsidiary undertakings of the Company

2 INVESTMENTS

2014
{E 009
As at 28 Apnl 2013 1 066 026
Additions
Listed investments 43 866
Capstal contnbution in subsidiary 11345
Other additions 37
Disposals {43 866)
As at 27 Apnl 2014 1077 408

None of the Company s investments at 27 April 2014 are listed
The Company 1s the principal holding company of the Group The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are set out in note 35 to the Group financial statements

During the year the company acquired and disposed of £43,866,000 of shares in Debenhams plc
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[T SRR RN i 13 I AR S R

3 DEBIORS
ik 013
{E 00D) (£ 000)
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 318 318
Other debtors 14,512 995
(Other taxes and social secunty costs 154 -
Prepayments i 640
14,984 1 553
4 CREDITORS AMOUKTS FALLING DUE WITHIN DNE YEAR
2014 2013
(€ 000) (£ 000)
Trade creditors IL1 1138
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 112,554 47,14
Accruals 123 190
QOther taxes and social secunty costs - 39
114,018 89,141
5 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2014 2013
(£ 0t {€.000)
Authorised
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p each 89,950 99 950
499,990 redeemable preference shares of 10p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
Called up and fully pad
640,602,369 (2013 640,602,369) ordinary shares of 10p each 64,060 64,060
Share capital
At 28 Apnl 2013 and 27 Apnil 2014 64,060 64,060

& RESERVES

Share premium
accoum

Permanent

contrebition to Capital recempticn

reserve

Treasury share
reserve

Gwn share reserve

Profit and lass
account

£ 000) (£ 000} &':::} '00n) (£ 009) (€ 100)

At 28 Apni 2013 874,300 {56,234) 50 8005 (64 375) 153,171

Loss for the financial pericd - - - - - {417)

Share scheme vesting - - - - 51,124 (51,124)

At 27 Apnl 2014 874,300 (56,234) 50 8,005 {13 251} 101,630

The Company holds 42,137,508 ordinary shares in Treasury

7 RECONCILIATION GF MOVEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

014

(£000)

Opening shargholders funds 978,977

Loss for the financial pericd (41N

978,360

Clnsing sharehalders’ funds

§ POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No matenial post balance sheet events cecurred after 27 April 2014 te the date of this Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD

YL AR STATEMENT

FINANCHAL STATEMENTS

SPORTS QIRECT WATERNATIONAL PLC 8 '!
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

52 weeks ended 57 weehs ended 53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
28 Apnl 2013

27 Aprd 2084 {restatedy’ 29 Aprl 2012 24 Apnl 2011 25 Apnl 2010
11 )] (£.000) {£.000) % 000} (£ 0003

Continuing operations
Revenue 2,705,958 2 185,580 i 835,756 1599237 1451621
Cost of sales {1,551,036) (1 290,822} (1,091 480) (940,330 (862,490)
Gross prefit 1,154,922 894,758 744276 658 907 589131
Selling distnbution and administrative expenses {908,843) {689,578) {594 368} (527 273) (524611}
Other operating income 8,583 7,199 3268 5,289 3493
Regulatory enquiries - - - (7800)
Legal dispute - - 2309 (3,128 (2 186)
Impairment of 1angible fied assets {5,931} - - - -
Prafit on disposal of leasehold property - - 724 - -
Profit on disposal of freehold property - - 962 - -
Profit on disposal of intangible asset - 625 1,624 876 -
Exceptional ttems {5,538 625 5619 {2252) {9 986)
Operating profit 249,131 213004 158,795 134,671 58027
Investment income / {costs) 1,017 1,473 (5,800} (9481) 24653
Finance income 891 1117 6,426 2,560 40,150
Finance costs (19,853) (9,688) (8,481} (8953) (10528)
Share of profit of associzied underiakings and joint ventures 2,266 1,320 558 (8) 7200
Profit before taxation 239,452 207,226 151 498 118,789 119502
Taxation (59,839) {55,569) {45 867) {35,566) (30 286)
Profit for the period 179,613 151 657 105 631 83,223 89216
Equity holders of the Group 180,245 151,596 106,198 84,173 89433
Non-controlling nterests (632} 61 (567) (950) {217}
Profit for the period 179,613 151 657 105,631 83 223 89216

Notes to the consohidated income statement five year record

1 All information 15 presented under [FRS

2 The five year record has been prepared on the same basis as the financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apn| 2014 as set out in note 1, basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements

3 Restatement relates to the adoption of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits {see note 1)
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

Registrar and transfer office

Computershare Investor Services Plc

The Pavilions .
Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS13 BAE

Company Secretary and registered office

Sports Direct International plc

Unit A Brook Park East

Shirebrook

NG20 BRY

Telephone 6845 129 9200

Sports Direct Internatronal ple 15 registered in England and Wales {No 6035106}

Sohicitors

Freshhields Bruckhaus Dennger
65 Fleet Street

London

ECAY {HS

Brokers

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citi Centre

Canada Sguare

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5LB

Epinto Santo Investment Bank

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London

ECAM 7AL

Gotdman Sachs Limited
Peterborough Court

133 Fleet Street
London

ECAA 28B

Prmcipal Bankers
Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

Londen

£14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc

8 Canada Square
London

F14 5HO

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
Melton Street

Euston Square
Lendon

NW1 2EP

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 3 00pm on Wednesday 10
September 2014 at Sports Divect International plc, The Auditorium Uit D, Brook Park
East, Shirebrook NG20 8RY Each shareholder s entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting the arrangements for which are described in a separate notice

\

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Results

For the year to 26 Apnl 2015

Intenm management stalement 10 September 2014

Hadf year results announced 11 December 2014

Intenm management statement 18 February 2015
Preliminary anncurcement of full year results 16 July 2015
Annual Report circulated July / August 2015

Sharehatder helpine

The Sports Direct shareholder register 1s maintained by Computershare who are
responsible for making dwidend payments and updating the register, including details
of changes to shareholders addresses If you have a query about your shareholding in
Sports Direct you should contact Computershare’s Sports Direct Shareholder fielpling
on 0870 707 4030 Calls are charged at standard geographic rates although netwark
charges may vary

Address The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road Bristol BS99 67Z
Website www computershare com

Website

The Sports Direct website at www spartsdirectplc com provides news and details of the
Company's activities plus information for sharehoiders and contains seal time share
price data as well as the latest results and announcements

Unsolicited mail

The Company 15 obliged by law to make its share register publicly availa ble and
as a consequence some sharehalders may receive unsohcited mail including from
unauthonised investment firms

For more informatian on unauthorised nvestment firms targeting UK mvestors wisit the
wehsite of the Financiat Conduct Authonty at www fca gov uk

i you wish 1o imit the amount of unsolicited mail you receive contact

The Malling Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London

WIW 853

Telephone 0207291 3310

Fax 0207323 4226

Emasl mps@dma org uk or register on-hne at
www mpsoniine org uk




